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December 23, 2003 

Honorable Mayor and Members  
of the City Council 
City of Cape Coral, Florida  

Dear Mayor and Members of City Council: 

We are pleased to present to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Cape Coral, 
Florida (the City) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.  Chapter 218.39, Florida Statutes and the City 
Charter require that a complete set of financial statements be published within one year of fiscal year end and 
presented in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 
and audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by licensed 
independent certified public accountants. 

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, 
including all disclosures, rests with the management of the City.  We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in 
all material respects and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and the results 
of operations of the City, on a Government-wide and Fund basis.  All disclosures necessary to enable the reader 
to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included. 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to 
ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that sufficient, reliable, 
adequate accounting data is compiled for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Internal accounting controls have been designed 
to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material 
misstatement.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed 
the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management.  We believe that the City’s internal controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable 
assurance of properly recorded financial transactions. 

In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls.  The objective of these controls is to ensure compliance with 
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council.  The City also 
maintains an encumbrance system that is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in all fund 
types.  Encumbrances for governmental type funds outstanding at fiscal year-end are reported as reservations of 
fund balance.   

In compliance with the laws of the State of Florida the City’s financial statements have been audited by KPMG 
LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants.  The audit was performed to provide reasonable assurance 
that the financial statements are free of material misstatement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.  The 
independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The independent auditor concluded, based upon the 
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s financial statements 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent 
auditors’ report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 



 

  
 
 

 

  

  
 

  

 

 

  

 
 

SUMMARY OF PRESENTATION 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION – includes the table of contents, this letter of transmittal, which is designed to 
complement the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and should be read in conjunction with it, the 
City’s organizational chart, and the list of City officials. 

FINANCIAL SECTION – includes the auditors’ opinion, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), Basic 
Financial Statements, Required Supplemental Information, and Combining Financial Statements and Schedules. 
GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  The MD&A can be found 
immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

STATISTICAL SECTION – includes selected financial and general information presented on a multi-year 
comparative basis.  This information is designed to reflect social and economic data, financial trends and the 
fiscal capacity of the City. 

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION – is required in order for the City to be in conformity with the provisions of the Single 
Audit Act and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations and in conformity with the Florida Single Audit Act (Section 215.97, Florida Statutes) 
and Chapter 27D-1, Rules of the Executive Office of the Governor, Florida Administrative Code.  Included in this 
section are the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance and the auditors’ 
reports on internal control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

THE CITY 
In 1970, by referendum of the people of the City, a Council/City Manager form of government was adopted, and 
the City of Cape Coral was incorporated.  The policy-making body of the City is a City Council composed of eight 
(8) members, seven (7) members elected at large on a nonpartisan basis from districts and the Mayor (the eighth 
member).  A Mayor is elected at-large on a nonpartisan basis and has one (1) vote and no veto authority.  All 
terms run for a four (4) year period with the Mayor and three (3) council members being elected at one election 
and two years later the remaining four (4) council members are elected.  The City Council is responsible for all 
policy-making functions of the government and retains the services of a City Attorney, City Auditor and City 
Manager.  The City Manager is responsible for all administration of the City. 

The City provides a comprehensive range of municipal services including general government, public safety, 
community development, public works, planning, utilities, and parks and recreation. 

THE REPORTING ENTITY 
This report includes all of the funds of the City.  In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, we have included all 
component units for which the City Council is financially responsible.   

The component unit has been blended with the financial statements presented for the Primary Government 
because the component unit exclusively serves the City.  The blended component unit is the Community 
Redevelopment Agency. 

The City Council also appoints the board of directors for the City of Cape Coral Health Facilities Authority; 
however, in evaluating this entity as a component unit, the Authority did not meet the criteria established by GAAP 
for inclusion in this report. 

II 



 
 
 

 

 
  

 

 

  
  

  

 

 

Of' Me:ii:·co 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
The City of Cape Coral is located on the southwest coast of Florida, in Lee County.  The City is approximately 125 
miles south of Tampa, at the mouth of the Caloosahatchee River.  The City is principally a residential, recreational 
and vacation community.  One bridge connects the City to South Fort Myers and the Southwest Florida 
International Airport, one bridge connects to Central Fort Myers and the commercial district, and two bridges to 
the north of the City connect it with Fort Myers.  This peninsular city lies between the scenic Caloosahatchee 
River, Charlotte Harbor and the Intra-coastal Waterway. 

Cape Coral is one of the nation’s first master-planned communities.  It is the third largest city in Florida in land 
area, encompassing 114 square miles.  The most populated city in Southwest Florida, Cape Coral has a 
population of 124,449 as of September 30, 2003. 

The population is an active one and younger than many people realize with a median age of 42.  What began as 
a traditional retirement community has become one of Florida’s most attractive areas for young families as well. 

In addition to broad boulevards and paved streets, the City is interlaced with over 400 miles of waterways, 
providing home sites with access to the Intra-coastal Waterway and the Gulf of Mexico.  Recreational facilities are 
provided by a number of City-owned parks, municipal golf course, yacht club and community park and water park. 

Strategically situated between Tampa and Miami, Cape Coral serves a major distribution role between the two 
cities.  It has emerged as a secondary market for manufacturers who need to distribute goods throughout other 
parts of Florida, the southeastern United States and the world. 

The Fort Myers/Cape Coral area was named one of the best places to live by Money Magazine and received 
accolades from Expansion Management Magazines as a Four-Star Community, one of the top U.S. communities 
in which to live and work. 

For additional information concerning the City, please visit our website at http://www.capegov.org. 

The following demographic and economic trends have emerged over the past few years: 

¶ The City’s population has grown to 124,449 as of September 30, 2003, an increase of 51% since 1993. The 
significant growth in Cape Coral’s population has created pressure to improve, expand and diversify service 
delivery to the increasing number of younger families moving into the City.  The City’s median age has 
decreased from 48 years in 1987 to 42 in 2003. 

¶ The City has been experiencing significant growth.  The City’s population is projected to increase to over 
155,000 by 2010. Cape Coral was recently ranked the nation’s ninth-fastest growing city.  Meeting the needs 
of our community as it continues to grow is still the City’s number one priority.  While having a positive impact, 
growth also represents a challenge to continue meeting the City’s service delivery system needs. 
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¶ The total taxable assessed value in Cape Coral increased 30.2% over last year, from $5,608,534,540 to 
$7,300,200,100. As the table below shows, new construction has been steadily increasing over the past 
seven years following a decline in 1997. The changes in total assessed taxable value result from new 
construction and changes in the value of existing property.  The positive increases in total value are no longer 
attributable only to new construction.  The value of existing property is steadily increasing due to a strong 
resale market for residential homes as well as efforts to expand the commercial tax base. 

 Fiscal Taxable Percent 
Year 

 1995 
 Assessed Value

3,601,126,430 
 Increase/(Decrease)

1.0 
 1996 3,648,079,090 1.3 
 1997 
 1998 

3,632,010,230 
3,638,777,570 

(0.4) 
0.2 

 1999 3,742,215,220 2.8 
 2000 3,932,343,640 5.1 
 2001 4,237,777,910 7.8 
 2002 4,714,588,660 11.3 
 2003 5,608,534,540 18.9 

2004    7,300,200,110         30.2 

¶ The “Save Our Homes” took effect January 1, 1995 and caps the assessed value on homesteaded property 
to the consumer price index or 3%, whichever is lower. 

¶ Growth in the City of Cape Coral is expected to continue well into the next decade, primarily due to the 
following factors: 

§ Significant, remaining undeveloped residential property in the recently completed utility expansion areas. 

§ Utility expansions in the Pine Island Road (State Road 78) commercial corridor and Southwest residential 
areas. 

§ Completed Mid-Point Bridge and Veterans Parkway, thereby creating a major east-west access through 
the City and connection to I-75 via Fort Myers. 

§ Completed Diplomat Parkway extension to State Road 41 through two commerce parks. 

§ Major transportation improvements along Cape Coral Parkway from Coronado to Chiquita, the Burnt 
Store Road extension connecting Veterans Parkway with Burnt Store Road, and major new commercial 
developments planned on Pine Island Road (State Road 78). 

¶ The City’s ability to expand and diversify its tax base will be a major factor in providing additional financial 
resources to fund an increasing demand for services. 

STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK 
Vision 2020 – A young, progressive waterfront community becoming the urban center of Southwest Florida, 
offering economic and social opportunities, with unparalleled quality of life. 

Mission Statement 

We, the City of Cape Coral, will meet our community’s needs through the efficient and professional delivery of 
quality services, and with pride and integrity, in an open, honest, spirit of teamwork, respecting the self-worth of 
the individual and the environment.   
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Shared Values 

× Involvement and participation of citizens in City government 
× Delivery of quality services that are both efficient and effective 
× A customer-oriented approach to everything we do 
× Honest, respectful and ethical behavior by all City employees 
× Stewardship of responsibility for city resources 
× Accountability for performance and finances 

City Goals: In Harmony with Mission and Values 

City Goals 

The above mission and value statement is reflected in the City’s areas of priority (goals).  The overall Citywide 
goals have been condensed into four areas, as shown below. 

1. Economic Stability 

To enhance diversity of the City’s tax base by supporting favorable economic conditions, encouraging the 
maintenance of environmental health and employing strategies to attract specific markets. 

2. Service Delivery 

To provide the highest level of service delivery by maintaining a highly qualified and competent workforce and 
implementing principles of team work and employee empowerment. 

3. Safe Community 

To maintain the City as one of the safest communities in the nation by continued application of proactive 
public safety concepts (community-oriented policing, advanced life support, community emergency response 
teams, etc.) and the on-going pursuit of innovative approaches to public safety service delivery. 

4. Customer Focus 

To provide the Cape Coral community the highest quality of service delivery through our commitment to 
customer service, customer input and on-going employee training. 

The successful linkage of missions, strategic planning, community input and broad goals into specific 
objectives to be achieved compliments this comprehensive financial management system by linking the 
strategic plan objectives and survey priorities into actual service delivery in terms of next year’s or future 
departmental specific goals. 

SIGNIFICANT ACHIEVEMENTS 
Significant accomplishments during FY 2003 are delineated below: 

¶ Cape Coral Parkway Six-Laning – Segment C, west of Santa Barbara Boulevard, Segment D between 
Pelican Boulevard and Skyline Boulevard, and the sanitary lift station west of Skyline were completed in fiscal 
year 2003.   

¶ Construction for Veterans Parkway Extension and Burnt Store Road Extension was completed.  The Lee 
County Department of Transportation completed the Veterans Parkway Extension – Surfside to SW 11th 

Avenue.  This was the last link to complete the corridor between the Midpoint Memorial Bridge and Burnt 
Store Road/State Road 78. 
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¶ The design for the Gleason Parkway Extension road project is 75% complete.  Construction is to start by 
March 2004 and be completed by the end of fiscal year 2004. 

¶ Roadway resurfacing of 100.025 lane miles in Phases V and VI (City units # 35, 37, 48, 49, 50, and 95) was 
completed. 

¶ Utilities Expansion Projects: 
- Pine Island Road commercial corridor construction was completed.  Estimated equivalent lots in this 

utility expansion area is 4,445 for water, 5,540 for wastewater and 4,059 for irrigation services. 
- Southwest One residential area construction is 99% complete.  Estimated equivalent lots in this utility 

expansion area is 7,165 for water, 7,282 for wastewater and 7,307 for irrigation services. Estimated 
completion date is early in fiscal year 2004.  The estimated completion date of the Master Pump 
Station is early in fiscal year 2004.   

- Southwest Three residential area construction has commenced and is approximately 60% complete. 
Estimated equivalent lots in this utility expansion area is 8,263 for water, 8,268 for wastewater and 
8,377 for irrigation services.  Estimated completion date is fiscal year 2004. 

- Southwest Two residential area design is complete.  Estimated equivalent lots in this utility expansion 
area is 7,235 for water, 7,316 for wastewater and 7,618 for irrigation services.  Construction is to 
begin in fiscal year 2004 with an estimated completion date in fiscal year 2005. 

¶ Began construction of a clarifier at the Everest Parkway Water Reclamation Plant.  The project will improve 
the plant’s ability to handle hydraulic loading and represents the first phase of a planned plant expansion. 
Estimated completion date is in fiscal year 2004 

¶ Began demolition of an old pump station and construction of the new Southeast Pump Station.  Estimated 
completion date is in fiscal year 2004. 

¶ The Santa Barbara Sewer Force Main Construction was completed. 

¶ Completed improvements under the Gator Slough Phase III–Horizontal Well project and improvements under 
Gator Slough Phase IV project.  These projects included installing above ground piping and valves at the 
equipment pad, an underground well, pumps and control panel for a transfer pump station, interconnection of 
four canal basins, and fencing.   

¶ Completed the Four Mile Ecological Preserve – Canoe/Kayak Shelters renovations.  Construction of the Four 
Mile Cove Ecological Preserve – Pier and Access Path (boardwalk), Portage Area, Fishing Dock and Kayak 
Launch is 75% complete.  Construction is on schedule to complete all improvements by November, 2003.   

¶ Construction of the in-house fuel tanks was completed and activated in fiscal year 2003.  These aboveground 
tanks were installed at eight sites – Fleet Management, City Hall, Coral Oaks Golf Course, and Fire Stations 
1, 5, 6, and 7, and Services Division.  The City also has a mobile fuel unit with 1,000 gallons of diesel fuel for 
off-road equipment and for fire trucks in emergency situations such as brush fires. 

¶ Completed Construction of the Fleet Management Office Building.   

¶ Completed Construction of the Lake Kennedy Special Populations Building addition. 

¶ City Council and Youth Crime Intervention Program, Inc., a non-profit organization, joined in an agreement to 
raise funds for the construction of a Youth Center located at Lake Kennedy Municipal Park.  Construction was 
completed during fiscal year 2003.  The City assumed ownership and maintenance of the facility. 

¶ Construction of the Parks and Recreation Maintenance Building is 97% complete.  Completion estimated in 
early fiscal year 2004. 
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¶ Real Estate Acquisitions: 
- Acquired 171.082 acres for an Academic Village. 
- Acquired 25.36 acres for the North Cape Treatment Plant. 
- Acquired 1.71 acres for Santa Barbara Access. 
- Acquired various properties for the Parks and Recreation Department to be used as follows: 

33 acres for Southwest Community Park 
4.36 acres for Lake Meade Park 
2.5 acres for Lake Kennedy expansion 
2.18 acres for Festival park  
.8 acres for expansion of Yacht Club 
.46 acres for the Northwest Softball Complex 

¶ Cape Coral is the ninth fastest growing city in the U.S. with populations greater than 100,000.   

¶ The Economic Development Office designed a new tourism promotional campaign based on three tourism 
categories: sports and athletics, eco-tourism, and family fun.  The keystone of the campaign is a new 
brochure that is available to travelers at tourist information centers, the Southwest Florida Regional Airport in 
Lee County, and via the City’s website.   

¶ A Public Safety Net, software and hardware for an integrated program for Computer Aided Dispatch, Records 
Management System, and Field Reporting System, was installed to improve communication efforts with the 
Police and Fire Departments. 

¶ Sun Splash Water Park Lifeguard Team was awarded silver medals at the Southwest Regional Lifeguard 
Championships in Pigeon Forge, Tennessee.  The team qualified for the National Lifeguard Championships 
that were held in Los Angeles for a second year in a row. 

¶ Selected as one of the top 10 Digital Cities in the nation by the Center for Digital Cities and Microsoft. 

¶ “Do The Right Thing” program recognized 134 children for positive acts.  Two $1,000 scholarships were 
granted to “Do The Right Thing” winners. 

¶ Achievement of Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget Award for the FY 
2002-03 Budget.  

FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (starting on page 3) summarizes the Statement of Net Assets 
and Statement of Activities and reviews the changes (from the beginning to the end of the period and current year 
to the prior year).  The Government-wide financial statements (in detail) are presented on pages 17 through 19 
and are intended to present the City in a manner similar to private-sector businesses. 

Additionally, the Fund Financial Statements (starting on page 20) are designed to address the Major (or more 
significant) individual funds by category.  An explanation of these complementary presentations can be found in 
the MD&A (starting on page 5) and in the notes (See Note I on page 32). 

The following review of the types of commitments against unrestricted net assets for the governmental and 
business-type activities is designed to complement the otherwise available information. 

Commitments Against Unrestricted Net Assets 

The Unrestricted Net Asset balance represents assets available for the general use of the City.  While the City 
Council and the administration may have made varying commitments against these balances, these choices are 
subject to revision/change. 
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The normal types of commitments are: 

Encumbrances – where a contract exists to purchase/acquire some item or construct a capital project that will be 
acquired/constructed after the September 30, 2003 statement date. 

Project Commitment – where a tentative pre-contract commitment has been made and a related project budget 
established for a significant capital or maintenance effort (normally to be preformed by a yet-to-be-hired, third-
party contractor). 

Working Capital – is available resources set aside to ensure the normal and ordinary conduct of business (the 
payment of bills and salaries) given certain cyclical flows of revenue. 

Other – other tentative commitments that may be for future capital agendas, emergency reserves, etc. 

It should also be understood that having reasonable levels of reserves is essential to the bond markets 
perceptions of local government sound financial position and related ability to utilize private sector styled business 
practices. 

Business-type Activities 

The City’s Business-type Activities are summarized in the MD&A and the Government-wide financial statements 
as a combined single column.  The major individual funds are presented in the Fund Financial Statements (see 
pages 24 - 28) and the nonmajor funds are presented in the combining statements (see pages 115 – 117). 

To complement the available presentation, the schedule on page IX reflects data for Water and Sewer operations, 
not including special assessment bond funds, and the data for the Stormwater Fund.  The income level was more 
than sufficient to meet required debt service coverages under the City’s bond covenants. 

ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES 
Debt Coverage 

For the Year Ending September 30, 2003 

Water and Stormwater 
Sewer (d) Utility 

Operating Revenues $ 26,894,473 
Operating Expenses
   (excluding depreciation) 18,043,818 
Net Operating Revenues 8,850,655 
Investment Income 766,073 
Net Revenues Available for Debt Service (excluding Impact Fees) 9,616,728 
Impact Fees (Water and Sewer) 8,249,378 
Net Revenues and Impact Fees Available for Debt Service 17,866,106 
Annual Debt Service  (a) 4,021,914 
Debt Service Coverage from Net Revenues (100% test) 2.39 
Annual Debt Service  (b) 5,318,101 
Debt Service Coverage from Net Revenues
   and Impact Fees (120% test) 3.36 

9,241,823 

5,341,900 
3,899,923 

120,915 
4,020,838 

573,831 
7.01 

Calculation per Water and Sewer Bond Resolution, Section 5.04 Rates 
Annual Debt Service  ( c ) 2,300,062 
Debt Service Coverage from Net Revenues 7.77
   and Impact Fees (120% test) 

(a) Includes debt service on Bonds and Subordinated Indebtedness paid from Net Revenues. 
(b) Includes debt service on Bonds and Subordinated Indebtedness paid from Net Revenues and Impact Fees. 
(c) Includes Senior Bonds only. 
(d) Does not include special assessments. 
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PENSION PLANS 

Pension funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity.  Pension funds are accounted 
for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. 

The City currently maintains three pension funds: the General Employees’ Retirement Fund, the Police Officers’ 
Retirement Fund, and the Firefighters’ Retirement Fund, which are Defined Benefit single-employer pension 
plans.   

GASB Statement No. 27 has eliminated the standardized measure of the employer’s pension benefit obligation 
(PBO), and it has been replaced by a measure of the liability calculated using the actuarial method employed for 
funding purposes.  

Comparative data for the three defined benefit single-employer pension plans is delineated below: 

General Employees’ Police Officers’ Firefighters’ 
Category Pension Plan Pension Plan Pension Plan Total 

Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability:  

2003 $7,516,552 $1,598,438  $2,829,467  $11,944,457 
2002 5,983,183 1,780,789 2,977,141 10,741,113 
2001 6,037,366 1,878,506 2,745,876 10,661,748 
2000 6,076,294 1,991,144 2,728,938 10,796,376 
1999 6,095,766 2,002,446 2,890,799 10,989,011 

A further analysis of the City’s pension funds shows that the City has contributed 103% of its annual required 
contribution, and the actuarial value of assets has grown to $154,849,070, as shown below. 

 Annual Pension 
 Cost % of APC Actuarial Value 

Fiscal Year     (APC)     Contributed   of Assets 

2003 $3,620,625  103%   $154,849,070 
2002         3,402,332  107        147,058,968 
2001 3,016,305  108 139,669,621 
2000 3,018,414  116 127,427,171 
1999 3,779,218 100 110,176,809 

The above information includes the three City-administered defined benefit plans.   

CASH MANAGEMENT 

Most of the City’s cash is invested with the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund Investment Pool with the 
State Board of Administration (“SBA”) of Florida.  Temporarily idle cash is invested for a period of three to four 
days in an interest bearing account with a local banking institution before being transferred to the SBA.  In 
addition, the City utilizes the services of an investment management firm – Gardnyr Michael Capital, Inc. to assist 
in enhancing investment returns on non-pension related funds. Salem Trust Company manages the City’s 
pension funds. 
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As of September 30, 2003, the City’s portfolio was invested as follows: 

Amount Percent of
   __Investment Area
SBA 

   (millions)
$  135.6 

    Total 
46.6% 

 Pension Funds 140.9 48.4 
 Investment Manager 

Sun Trust/Other 
 Total 

9.7 
   4.9 

$291.1 

3.3 
  1.7

100.0% 

During FY 2003, SBA yields have gone from 1.91% to 1.32% as of September 30, 2003. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City employs a full-time risk manager who oversees loss prevention programs.  In addition to an insurance 
reserve cash balance of $1,500,000 at September 30, 2003 and disaster reserve cash balance of $1,000,000 for 
the same period, the City is a member of the Public Risk Management of Florida and has third-party coverage in 
force for property and bodily injury. 

MAJOR ISSUES 
The City’s ability to meet the demands of financing growth will be determined by achieving success in promoting 
economic development, maintaining and improving revenues and phasing in increases in service delivery.  The 
following are major issues the City will need to address in the next few years: 

Growth and Economic Development 

The real estate sector is key to Florida’s economic outlook which has been characterized by continued growth 
throughout 2003, reflected in record-high home sales, rising home prices, and substantial increases in both 
residential and nonresidential construction activity.  It is expected that these sectors will continue to grow in 2004.   

No issue continues to influence the City’s future more than growth and economic development.  These two factors 
hold the potential to reshape the quality of life for those who reside in the City. 

The City’s economic development mission is to diversify its tax base and enhance economic opportunities in order 
to relieve the current tax burden on the average homeowner.  This burden is directly related to a tax base 
predominately made up of residential properties.  Therefore, with continued rapid growth and ever expanding 
needs for municipal services to meet the needs of such growth, an aggressive and comprehensive plan for 
growing existing businesses and recruiting new “tax-base enhancing” employers to Cape Coral becomes a critical 
activity.  Therefore, to achieve this mission the City has determined to pursue the following activities: 

¶ Promote targeted business attraction and expansion. 
¶ A new community promotion program through targeted advertising and marketing efforts. 
¶ Improve the City’s assistance provided to small businesses through the Cape Coral Small Business Institute. 
¶ Participate in Tourism and Quality of Life enhancement efforts. 
¶ Results of the Citizens’ Survey show that fire, rescue and emergency services and road maintenance/street 

repair represent top priorities for future spending.  The City will continue to provide funding for these priorities. 
¶ The City will be rebuilding Fire Stations #3 and #4, facade improvements to Fire Station #1 in keeping with the 

downtown CRA theme, as well as the construction of Fire Station #8. 
¶ The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) is working on redeveloping the Commercial District.  North 

side of the Chantry Canal property is to be used for public access for boating and other water-related 
activities.  Full development of the site will continue in FY 2004.  Another waterfront mixed use area has been 
identified on the north side of Cape Coral Parkway entering the City off the Cape Coral Bridge.  The CRA is 
working on developing the site for waterfront commercial and chamber activities. 
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Asset Management and Comprehensive Plan Implementation 

The City of Cape Coral Asset Improvement Program is a comprehensive program detailing future plans for City 
assets. Revenues and expenditures included in the Asset Improvements Program are integrated into the budget 
process.  All items in the Plan are also included in the City’s long-range planning process. 

The goals and objectives of the Plan are: 

ü to increase efficiency of City operations by maintaining assets in a working condition. 

ü to recommend an annual level of combined expenditures for capital, major maintenance and equipment 
replacement to aid in the stabilization of property tax levies from year to year. 

ü to identify assets no longer needed by the City and assess the salvage/recoverable value of these assets, if 
any. 

ü to reduce utility and maintenance costs by identifying improvements that will result in annual cost savings. 

ü to recommend a long-term plan for each asset. 

ü to identify a plan for proposed maintenance and replacement of existing assets and acquisition of new assets 
which is based on a reasonable expectation of what the City can afford. 

ü to be an ongoing tool for annual asset tracking, update the asset inventory and reassess long-term plans. 

The funding requirements of the Asset Improvements Program for the next five years (FY 2004-2008) are 
significant and summarized below: 

Capital Improvements $448,912,657 
 Capital Maintenance 153,402,791 
 Capital Equipment 13,228,815 

Capital Vehicle    16,863,512
 Total $632,407,775 

The program presents a structured plan to promote orderly growth patterns and capital improvements in the 
following manner: 

ü Compliance with the capital improvements elements of the Comprehensive Plan. 

ü Utility expansions in the Southwest Areas in conjunction with results of the utility master plan update and the 
engineering and feasibility analyses conducted by Dames & Moore. 

ü Land acquisition and construction of Fire Stations #8 and #9. 

ü Design and construction of Fire Stations #3 and #4 to replace deteriorated stations and renovations to Fire 
Station #1. 

ü Land acquisition, design and construction of a new Public Safety Building and Training Facility. 

ü Roadway improvements including resurfacing, lighting, median curbing and landscaping. 

ü Santa Barbara Boulevard access management, signalization and roadway improvements. 

ü Widening of Del Prado Boulevard from State Road 78 (Pine Island Road) to Kismet Parkway. 

ü Roadway improvements along Chiquita Boulevard. 

ü Widening of State Road 78 (Pine Island Road) from Santa Barbara Boulevard to Burnt Store Road. 
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ü Intersection improvements and widening of SE 47th Terrace from Coronado Parkway to Palm Tree Boulevard. 

ü Yacht Club pool resurfacing and Pavilion and Gatehouse renovations. 

ü Land acquisition and development of major and municipal parks. 

ü Construction of an anoxic basin and replacement of the existing grit removal component at the Southwest 
Water Reclamation Facility. 

ü Expansion of the Everest Parkway Water Reclamation Facility. 

ü Construction of a new 8.0 MGD Reverse Osmosis Plant. 

The City’s ability to finance these programs and remain in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan will be a 
major directive in future City budgets. 

Future Initiatives 

Over the years, through conservative financial management, the City has been able to build solid fund balances 
and reserves. 

Difficult challenges face the City in future years.  The need to enhance the financial strength of the City and, at the 
same time, the quality of life are among the most consequential and pressing issues that Cape Coral must 
address.  Four initiatives foster the future efforts: 

¶ Financial Stability 
¶ Strategic Planning 
¶ Community Involvement and Customer Focus 
¶ Mission, Performance-Based Budgeting 

Financial Stability 

Financial Management Policies 

The City has a set of Financial Management Policies adopted by the City Council.  The budget follows the 
financial management policies promoting strong financial position. 

Debt Administration 

Debt Administration is discussed in the MD&A on pages 13 - 14 of this report. 

Strategic Planning 

Future spending plans need to emphasize a structured program to promote orderly growth patterns, as evidenced 
by the capital improvements element of the Comprehensive Plan, transportation improvements through the City’s 
utility expansion areas and commerce parks, planned unit developments, and the downtown redevelopment 
streetscape and parking improvements.  The focus to plan for the future continues with the strategic planning 
effort being undertaken by City staff.  This effort will culminate into a continuous and systematic process where 
the City will make decisions about future outcomes, how outcomes are to be accomplished and how success is 
measured and evaluated.  While recent management initiatives have set the stage for the Citywide strategic 
planning endeavor, there is no question that such a process can improve our organization’s efficiency, 
effectiveness, decision-making ability, teamwork, sense of ownership and quality of work.  Responses to this 
effort have been conducted through strategic planning workshops each year among City Council members, City 
Attorney, City Manager, Department Heads, and Division Managers. 
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Based on the most recent discussion, City Council has identified the follow strategic objectives as priorities for the 
City: 

1. Land Acquisition – Continuation of a comprehensive program to meet public facility needs and provide 
opportunities for larger scale economic development. 

2. Implementation of Master Plans, Corridor Studies and Land Development Code – To enhance the 
City’s economic development, expand public facility amenities, and serve the recreational and commercial 
needs of a growing community. 

3. Business Incentives – Expand and develop new, competitive incentive programs, including tax rebates or 
abatements, impact fee credits or abatements, cash incentives, fee waivers, land assemblage, and others 
that will promote growth of existing businesses, attract new business investment, and create a balanced 
City economy in which the share of ad valorem tax paid by homeowners will be reduced. 

4. Academic Village – Enhance educational opportunity for Cape Coral residents through the development of 
a site that will include a high school, technical colleges, and degree-granting academic institutions. 

5. Parks and Recreation Attractions – Develop current and future park facilities as regional attractions 
including expansion of Sun Splash Waterpark; creation of a skate park; and expansion of the Yacht Club 
facilities. 

6. Engineering Services – Review effectiveness of various delivery methods; construction manager at risk; 
design/bid/build – outsourcing of design; and design/bid/build – in-house design. 

7. Electric Undergrounding – Continuation of a review of future undergrounding electric transmission and/or 
distribution service in order to achieve final outcomes of increased visual aesthetics, reduced maintenance, 
and/or increased property values. 

8. Streets Maintenance and Sidewalk Installation – Continuation of effort to improve overall quality of 
streets and construction of sidewalks. 

9. Exotic and Obnoxious Growth Removal – Explore options for funding the removal of obnoxious growth 
as required by ordinance. 

10. Tree Canopy – Increase tree canopy through development of various landscaping ordinances to include 
special assessment programs for residential neighborhoods. 

11. Competitive Salary and Benefits – Development of programs that lead to recruitment and retention of 
employees which include evaluation of current compensation structure and adjustments to collective 
bargaining agreements in order to reduce vacancies caused by compensation issues. 

12. Facility Planning and Needs – Planning for, locating, and construction of future City government facilities 
including such projects as a new public safety building, centralized records center, second boat lock on 
Southwest Spreader Waterway, boat lock on the Northwest Spreader Waterway, and an analysis of the 
Everest Parkway maintenance complex. 

13. Legislative Advocacy – Increase influence in the legislature and regional government by establishing 
regular council-administration contacts and/or the use of professional lobbyists on an as needed basis. 

14. Revenue Structure and Sufficiency – Review the revenue structure and sufficiency of major funds to 
include the exploration of alternative revenue sources in order to ensure diversification of revenue streams 
and greater assurance that beneficiaries of service pay for the service. 

Council is committed to being responsible for planned growth in our ever-changing community.  The strong desire 
to stay on track has enabled the City to forge ahead and continue to grow into one of the largest cities on the 
Southwest Coast of Florida. 

Community Involvement and Customer Focus 

As part of the annual planning process, the City organizes surveys, focus groups, workshops, meetings, 
information programs, and other appropriate forums to encourage and promote public participation.  This input is 
used to evaluate programs and develop priorities for the City services plan.  Listening and responding to citizen 
priorities is essential to the City’s planning process. 

Every two years the City conducts a survey to obtain citizens’ priorities and level of satisfaction with city services. 
In the survey, we asked citizens to comment on Cape Coral’s economic stability, safe community, service 
delivery, and customer focus.   
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In May 2003, the City initiated its third Citizen’s Survey through in-house measures.  The following are the top 5 
citizen priorities from this survey: 

¶ Fire, Rescue and Emergency Services 
¶ Road Maintenance/Street Repair 
¶ Police Services 
¶ Managing Stormwater 
¶ Attracting Business 

Mission, Performance-Based Budgeting 

An integral part of the City’s efforts towards strategic planning is defining the program mission and identifying 
program objectives to be accomplished.  Future budgets should continue this directive through Citywide, 
departmental and program mission statements, as well as performance measures per program.  The 
implementation of a comprehensive performance management system is a major focus to lead the City into future 
decisions regarding service delivery.  Performance measures are now updated and published on a periodic basis 
to better serve as a management tool. 

FINANCIAL REPORTING ACHIEVEMENT 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cape Coral for its comprehensive 
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.  This was the 17th consecutive year that the 
City has achieved this prestigious award. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards.  Such 
reports must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable 
legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, 
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated service of the 
Financial Services Department staff.  Their continuing efforts toward improving the accounting and financial 
reporting systems improves the quality of information reported to the City Council, State and Federal Agencies, 
and the citizens of the City of Cape Coral.  We sincerely appreciate and commend them for their contributions.   

Respectfully submitted, 

Mark C. Mason, CPA 
Financial Services Director 

Linda Senne 
Controller 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Honorabk! Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City or Cape Coral. Flooda: 

We have audited the accompanying financiaJ statements of the governmental activities. the 
business-type activities, each major fund. and the aggregate remaining fund informa1ion of the 
City or Cape Coral, Florida (!he City), as or and ror the year ended September 30. 2003. which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in lho tabte of contents. These 
financial statements are the responslbilily of the City·s management. Our respOflsibiJity is 10 
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in acc0<dan-ce with auditing standards generally accepted In the United 
S!3tes of Americo .lnd tho cUJnd~1de, oppli~blc lo finonciol 01.1ditG oontoincd in Covammenl 
AudJting Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of tho Unjted Stales. Those standards 
require lhal we plan and perlorm the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether !he 
financial statements arc free of ma1orial misstatement. An ai.1dll Includes examining, on a test 
basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and signific-anl estimates made by 
management. as \vetl as evaluating the overall financial slatement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statemenLS refeued 10 above present fairly, in all material respcc,s, 
the respective financial position of the govcmmontaJ activities, the buslness4 type activities. each 
major fund. and lhe aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cape Carat, Florida. as 
of September 30. 2003, and the respecbve changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformily \..,;th accounling principles generafly 
accepted m lhe Uniled Slates of America. 

In accordance wllh Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repO<t, dated 
December 23, 2003, on our consideration o f the Cily's internat control over financial reporting 
and our lests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, ,egulalioc,s. oontracts, and grants. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wilh Govemment Auditing 
Standards and should be read in CO(IJUOClion with this repcrt in considering the results of our 
audit. 

·- ,,,,_ •• ,~-.. - .. ~ •• i 1111:::::.~:: ,-. ., -.... •'--' .. ,., .. 



The management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) on pages 3 through 16, budgetary 
comparison informatioo on pages 75 through 76, and schedules of funding progress and 
schedules of contributions from employer and other conttibutlng entitles on pages 77 through 80. 
are not a re,qulred patt o f the basic financial statements but are supplementary information 
required by tho aocounling principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We 
have applied certain limited procedures. which consisted principally of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required suppJementary 
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on il 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statemenls. The inlroductory section, the 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budget and actual scheduJes. 
and the statistical !.action .1te presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Addrtionally, the acoompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards and state financial asSistal\Ce is presented for purposes of 
addition.al analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A·133, Audits 
of states, Local Governments, and Non-Profrt Organizations, and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the 
Avdffor General and is not a required par1 of the basic financial statements. The combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budget and actual schedules and schedule of 
expenditures o f federal awards and state financial assistance have been subjected to the 
avditing procedures applied in the audit of I.he basic financial statements and, In our opinion, are 
falrty stated. i.n all mate-rial respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the audi!ing 
prooedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion oo them. 

December 23, 2003 

https://addition.al


 
 

 

    
 

 

  
 

 

  

 

 

   
 

 

 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The City of Cape Coral’s (the “City”) discussion and analysis is a narrative overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.  It is designed to (a) assist the 
reader in focusing on significant financial issues,  (b) provide an overview of the City’s financial activity, 
(c) identify changes in the City’s financial position, (d) identify any material deviations from the financial 
plan (the approved budget), and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s 
activities, resulting changes and current known facts, please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial 
statements (beginning on page 17). 

HIGHLIGHTS 

Financial Highlights 

¶ At the close of fiscal year 2003, the City’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $381.5 million (net assets). 
Governmental and business-type assets exceeded its liabilities by $115.5 million and $266 million, 
respectively.  

¶ The City’s total net assets increased by $45.4 million, or 13.5%, in comparison to the prior year. 

¶ The City had $144.2 million of unrestricted net assets that can be used to meet the City’s ongoing 
obligations. 

¶ Total revenues increased $31.9 million, or 23.3%, in comparison to the prior year. 

¶ Total expenses increased $13.7 million, or 12.5%, in comparison to the prior year. 

¶ The City’s governmental activities reported total net assets of $115.5 million, which is an increase of 
$22.8 million, or 24.6%, in comparison to the prior year.  Approximately 13.7% of the total, or $15.8 
million, is unrestricted and thus available for spending. 

¶ The City’s business-type activities reported total net assets of $266 million, which is an increase of 
$22.6 million, or 9.3%, in comparison to the prior year. Approximately, 46.5% of the total, or $123.7 
million, is unrestricted and thus available for spending. 
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USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The following diagram presents the City’s financial statements. 

     Basic 
     Financial 
     Statements 

Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis (MD&A) 

(required supplementary information) 

  Government-Wide Fund Financial 
Financial Statements   Statements  

 (pages 17-19)        (pages 20-30) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 (pages 31-71) 

Required Supplementary Information 
(other than MD&A) 

(pages 73 - 80) 

The focus of the City’s financial statements is on both the City as a whole (government-wide) and the 
major individual funds.  Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address 
relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison and enhance the City’s accountability. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and statement of activities (found on 
pages 17-19) are designed in a manner similar to a private-sector business in that all governmental and 
business-type activities are presented in separate columns which add to a total for the Primary 
Government.  Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide statements.   

The focus of the Statement of Net Assets (the “Unrestricted Net Assets”) is designed to be similar to a 
bottom line for the City and its governmental and business-type activities.  This statement combines and 
consolidates governmental fund’s current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with 
capital assets, including infrastructure, and long-term obligations.  Net assets is the difference between 
the City’s assets and liabilities.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving. 

The Statement of Activities reflects the expenses of a given function, which are offset by program 
revenues.  Program revenues are defined as charges for services, operating grants and contributions, 
and capital grants and contributions directly associated with a given function. 

Governmental activities are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues whereas the business-
type activities are primarily supported by user fees and charges for services.  The governmental activities 
of the City include general government, public safety, public works, community development, parks and 
recreation, and transportation.  The business-type activities of the City reflect private sector type 
operations (water and sewer, stormwater utility, yacht basin, building division, golf course and water 
park), where the fee for service typically covers all or most of the cost of operation, including depreciation. 
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Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity.  The operations for each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue, and expenditures or expenses, as 
appropriate.  Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds, based upon 
the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 

The City’s funds are presented in separate fund financial statements.  These funds are presented on a 
Governmental Fund Financial Statement and a Proprietary Fund (Business-type) Financial Statement. 
The City’s major funds are presented in separate columns on the fund financial statements.  The funds 
that do not meet the criteria of a major fund are considered non-major funds and are combined into a 
single column on the fund financial statements. 

While the total column on the Proprietary Fund (Business-type) Financial Statements (see pages 24-26) 
is the same as the Business-type column at the Government-wide Financial Statement, the Governmental 
Funds Total column requires a reconciliation because of the different measurement focus (current 
financial resources versus total economic resources) which is reflected on the page following each 
statement (see pages 21 and 23).  The flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and 
the interfund transfers as other financial sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal 
payments as expenditures.  The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital 
assets and long-term obligations (bonds and others) into the Governmental Activities column in the 
Government-wide Statements. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements (found on pages 20-23) are prepared on the modified accrual 
basis using current financial resources measurement focus.  Under the modified accrual basis, revenues 
are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets.   

Two of the City’s governmental funds, the General Fund and Gas Tax Fund are classified as major funds. 
All other governmental funds are combined into a single column on the governmental major-fund financial 
statements.  Individual fund data for the non-major funds is found in the combining statements as 
supplemental financial data (found on pages 85-96). 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, the following Special Revenue 
Funds: gas tax, police confiscation-federal, police confiscation-state, fire impact fee, park impact fee, road 
impact fee, community redevelopment agency, community development block grant, local housing 
assistance, and greenscape donations, Debt Service, and all the Capital Projects Funds. A budgetary 
comparison has been presented for these funds which compares not only actual results to budget, but 
also the original adopted budget to final budget. (found on pages 75-76 and pages 97-113) 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (found on pages 24-28), like government-wide financial 
statements, are prepared on the full accrual basis.  Proprietary funds record both operating and non-
operating revenues and expenses.  Operating revenues are those that are obtained from the operations 
of the proprietary fund. 

Two of the City’s proprietary funds, the Water and Sewer Fund and Stormwater Utility Fund are classified 
as major funds.  All other proprietary funds are combined into a single column on the proprietary major-
fund financial statements.  Individual fund data for the non-major funds is found in the combining 
statements as supplemental financial data (found on pages 115-117).  Enterprise funds are used to report 
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
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Fiduciary Fund Financial Statement 

The Fiduciary Fund Financial Statement (found on pages 29-30) is not presented as part of the 
Government-wide Financial Statements because the resources of these funds are not available to 
support the City’s programs.  Fiduciary (Trust and Agency) Funds represent trust responsibilities of the 
government, however these assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of 
the government. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS 

The Government-wide Financial Statements were designed so that the user could determine if the City is 
in a better or worse financial condition from the prior year.  The building division was moved to an 
enterprise fund and solid waste was moved to an agency fund in fiscal year 2003. Both funds were 
previously reported within the general fund.  The beginning balances have been adjusted to reflect this 
change so that the prior year comparison can be made. 

Summary of Net Assets 

The following table reflects a Summary of Net Assets for fiscal years 2003 and 2002. 

City of Cape Coral, Florida 
Summary of Net Assets 

 (in millions) 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
 Total assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

2003 2002 
$ 51.1 $ 53.8 

102.3 78.0 
153.4 131.8 

Business-type 
Activities 

2003 2002 
$ 144.4 $ 123.9 

321.0 266.1 
465.4 390.0 

T
2003 

$ 195.5 
423.3 
618.8 

otal 
2002 

$ 177.7 
344.1
521.8 

Current and other liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 
 Total liabilities 

6.3 
31.6 
37.9 

8.5 
30.6 
39.1 

8.4 
191.0 
199.4 

7.7 
138.9 
146.6 

14.7 16.2 
222.6 169.5
237.3 185.7 

Net assets:
 Invested in capital assets,
   net of related debt 
 Restricted 
 Unrestricted 
 Total net assets 

75.1 
19.9 
20.5 

$ 115.5 

50.8 
11.9 
30.0 

$ 92.7 

132.0 
10.3 

123.7 
$ 266.0 

129.6 
11.0 

102.8 
$ 243.4 

207.1 
30.2 

144.2 
$ 381.5 

180.4
22.9

132.8
$ 336.1 

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt is the largest portion of net assets.  This represents 
capital assets (land, buildings, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure), net of accumulated 
depreciation, and the outstanding related debt used to acquire the assets.  The invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt balance of $207.1 million (54.3% of total net assets) increased $26.7 million or 14.8%, 
in comparison to prior year. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 

The restricted net asset balance of $30.2 million (7.9% of total net assets), increased $7.3 million or 
31.9%, in comparison to prior year.  This balance represents resources subject to external restrictions on 
their use. 

The unrestricted net asset balance of $144.2 million (37.8% of total net assets), increased $11.4 million or 
8.6%, in comparison to prior year.  This balance represents resources that are available for spending. 
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Summary of Changes in Net Assets 

The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the current and previous fiscal year. 

City of Cape Coral, Florida 
Summary of Changes in Net Assets 

(in millions) 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 

REVENUES: 
Program Revenues:
   Charges for Services $ 13.1 $ 10.7 $ 45.1 $ 40.8 $ 58.2 $ 51.5
   Operating Grants and
     Contributions 13.9 12.7 - - 13.9 12.7
   Capital Grants and 
     Contributions 15.0 8.1 24.3 13.9 39.3 22.0 
General Revenues:
   Property Taxes 34.1 29.2 1.4 1.6 35.5 30.8
   Franchise Taxes 3.4 3.3 - - 3.4 3.3
   Communication Taxes 3.8 3.5 - - 3.8 3.5
   Gas Tax 6.4 6.0 - - 6.4 6.0
   Interest Income 1.0 1.3 7.2 5.8 8.2 7.1
   Gain on sale of capital assets 0.1 - - - 0.1 -
Total Revenues 90.8 74.8 78.0 62.1 168.8 136.9 

EXPENSES: 
Program Activities 
Governmental Activities:
   General Government 15.9 11.0 - - 15.9 11.0
   Public Safety
     Police 16.7 15.5 - - 16.7 15.5
     Fire 12.3 11.3 - - 12.3 11.3
   Public Works 5.1 4.9 - - 5.1 4.9
   Community Development 1.1 1.4 - - 1.1 1.4
   Parks and Recreation 7.6 7.3 - - 7.6 7.3
   Transportation 9.6 9.6 - - 9.6 9.6
   Interest on Long-Term Debt 1.5 1.7 - - 1.5 1.7 
Business-type Activities:
   Water and Sewer - - 38.9 34.2 38.9 34.2
   Stormwater Utility - - 7.0 6.0 7.0 6.0
   Nonmajor Enterprise - - 7.7 6.8 7.7 6.8 
Total Expenses 69.8 62.7 53.6 47.0 123.4 109.7 

Increase in Net Assets Before
   Transfers 21.0 12.1 24.4 15.1 45.4 27.2 
Transfers 1.8 4.9 (1.8) (4.9) - -
Increase in Net Assets 22.8 17.0 22.6 10.2 45.4 27.2 
Net Assets - beginning 92.7 75.7 243.4 233.2 336.1 308.9 
Net Assets - ending $ 115.5 $ 92.7 $ 266.0 $ 243.4 $ 381.5 $ 336.1 

Total revenues increased $31.9 million, or 23.3%, in comparison to prior year.  Total expenses increased 
$13.7 million, or 12.5%, in comparison to prior year. 
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Operating Grants & Contributions 

Charges for Services 

Capital Grants & Contributions 

Property Taxes 

Franchise Taxes 

Communication Taxes 
Gas Tax 

Other 

Governmental Activities 

The governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $22.8 million.  This represents 50.2% of 
the total increase in net assets.  The increase in the governmental activities’ invested in capital assets net 
of related debt is $24.3 million, or 47.8% in comparison to prior year. 

The following is a chart of revenues by source of governmental activities by percent of total revenues. 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Gas Tax Communication Other Charges for Services 
7% Taxes 1% 14% 

4% 
Operating Grants 
and Contributions 

Franchise Taxes 15% 
4% 

Capital Grants and Property Taxes 
Contributions 38% 

17% 

Total revenues for governmental activities increased $16 million or 21.4%, in comparison to prior year. 

The following is a chart of revenues by source for governmental activities for fiscal years 2003 and 2002. 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 
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Charges for services reported in the governmental activities increased $2.4 million, or 22.4%, in 
comparison to prior year.  This increase was primarily the recognition of revenue for administrative fees 
charged to the enterprise funds. 

Operating grants and contributions reported in the governmental activities increased $1.2 million, or 9.4%, 
in comparison to prior year.  This increase was primarily the recognition of on-behalf payments from the 
State as revenues and expenditures. 
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Capital grants and contributions reported in the governmental activities increased $6.9 million, or 85.2%, 
in comparison to prior year.  This increase was primarily due to the volume of permits being issued and 
an increase in the fire, road, and park impact fee rates.  Each permit issued results in collection of impact 
fees.  For residential construction, there was a 5% increase in the fire impact fee rate in fiscal year 2003 
($253 in fiscal year 2003 as opposed to $241 in fiscal year 2002), there was a 10% increase in the road 
impact fee rate in fiscal year 2003 ($1,379 in fiscal year 2002 as opposed to $1,258 in fiscal year 2002), 
and there was a 145.6% increase in the park impact fee rate in fiscal year 2003 ($1,115 in fiscal year 
2003 as opposed to $454 in fiscal year 2002).  Also, the Youth Center Building and various parcels of 
land were donated to the City. 

Property taxes reported in the governmental activities increased $4.9 million, or 16.8%, in comparison to 
prior year.  Taxable assessed property valuation of $5,608,534,540 for fiscal year 2003 represents a 19% 
increase over the previous fiscal year.  The increase in the assessed property values resulted in higher 
ad valorem tax revenues. 

The following is a chart of expenses by program of governmental activities. 

Expenses by Program - Governmental Activities 
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Total expenses for governmental activities increased $7.1 million, or 11.3% in comparison to prior year. 

General government expenses reported in governmental activities increased $4.9 million, or 44.5%, in 
comparison to prior year due to an increase in computer maintenance, upgrades, software licenses, and 
training and support; salaries, wages and benefits; and an increase in the number of City employees. 

Public Safety Police expenses reported in governmental activities increased $1.2 million, or 7.7%, in 
comparison to prior year due to increases in salaries, wages and benefits, professional services, travel 
and training, and repairs and maintenance. 

Public Safety Fire expenses reported in governmental activities increased $1.0 million, or 8.8%, in 
comparison to prior year due to increases in salaries, wages and benefits, telecommunication services 
and operating supplies. 

Interest on long-term debt reported in governmental activities decreased .2 million, or 11.8%, in 
comparison to prior year due to refundings and retirement of debt. 

Business-type Activities 

The business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $22.6 million.  This represents 49.8% of 
the total increase in net assets.  The increase in the business-type activities’ unrestricted net assets is 
$20.9 million, or 20.3% in comparison to prior year. 
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The following is a chart of revenues by source for business-type activities. 

Revenues by Source -
 Business-type Activities 
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Charges for Operating Grants & Capital Grants & Property Taxes Investment Income 
Services Contributions Contributions 

Charges for services reported in business-type activities increased $4.3 million, or 10.5%, in comparison 
to prior year.  This increase is a direct result of additional customer connections to the water and sewer 
system as new construction occurs and expansion areas are completed and an increase in the 
stormwater utility collections as a result of stormwater charges being on the non-ad valorem tax section of 
the property tax bill.  There was also a 31.9% increase in the number of residential construction permits 
issued during fiscal year 2003 (4,558 residential construction permits in fiscal year 2003 as opposed to 
3,456 construction permits in fiscal year 2002) resulting in a significant increase in permit fees. 

Capital grants and contributions reported in business-type activities increased $10.4 million, or 74.8%, in 
comparison to prior year.  This increase was primarily due to Southwest Three utility expansion payments 
received from benefited property owners.  Also, property owners in Pine Island and Southwest One utility 
expansion areas connected to water and sewer services resulting in water and sewer impact fee 
collections. 

Interest income reported in business-type activities increased $1.4 million, or 24.1%, in comparison to 
prior year.  This increase was due to the property owners being billed interest for Southwest One utility 
expansion areas for the first time in fiscal year 2003. 

The following is a chart of expenses by program of business-type activities. 

Expenses by Program -
 Business-type Activities 

40.0 
35.0 
30.0 

M
ill

io
ns

 

25.0 
20.0 
15.0 
10.0 
5.0 
0.0 

FY 2003 
FY 2002 

Water & Sewer Stormwater Utility Nonmajor Enterprise 

Water and sewer expenses reported in business-type activities increased $4.7 million, or 13.7%, in 
comparison to prior year.  This increase was primarily due to depreciation expense associated with Pine 
Island and Southwest One utility expansion areas being reclassed from construction in progress to capital 
assets.  Also, an increase in the number of water meters installed during fiscal year 2003 (3,181 meters in 
fiscal year 2003 as opposed to 1,559 meters in fiscal year 2002). 
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Stormwater expenses reported in business-type activities increased $1.0 million, or 16.7%, in 
comparision to prior year due to increases in salaries, wages and benefits, professional services, repairs 
and maintenance, and the Lee County Tax Collector’s fee associated with putting the stormwater charges 
on the non-ad valorem tax section of the property tax bill. 

Nonmajor enterprise expenses reported in business-type activities increased $.9 million, or 13.2%, in 
comparison to prior year.  This increase was salaries, wages and benefits which resulted from 11 new 
positions in the building division due to increases in the number of permits issued, inspections and other 
related building activities. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are comprised of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund and 
capital projects funds. Governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus that 
provides information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. 

The General fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all financial resources, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $11 million, while total fund balance reached $13.5 
million.  The fund balance of the City’s general fund decreased by $3 million during the current fiscal year. 
Key factors in this decrease are as follows: 

¶ Taxes increased $4.9 million, or 16.8%, in comparison to prior year due to an increase in the 
assessed propety value thus increasing the ad valorem tax revenues. 

¶ Increased expenses in the Information Technology Department for computer upgrades and training. 

¶ The general fund expenditures include $6.8 million for land acquisition for the Academic Village. 
Costs were funded through an interfund advance which affected fund balance but not cash position. 

The Gas Tax fund is used to account for the local option gas tax.  This fund has a total fund balance of 
$6.3 million, all of which is reserved for the payment of road improvements and related items. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City’s proprietary funds are comprised of the enterprise funds.  An enterprise fund is used to account 
for activities for which a fee is charged to external users for goods and services.  These funds provide the 
same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.  The 
following are noteworthy facts and changes from prior year. 

Water and Sewer Fund. The City continues with their water and sewer expansion programs due to 
increased development throughout the City.  Capital contributions increased in comparison to prior year 
due to collections of Southwest Three Utility Expansion prepayments by benefited property owners. 

Stormwater Utility. The City’s stormwater utility collections increased as a result of stormwater charges 
being on the non-ad valorem tax section of the property tax bill.  
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Budgetary Highlights 

The following is a brief review of the budgeting changes from the original budget to the final budget for the 
General Fund (see budget to actual comparison on page 75). 

General Fund. The final amended budget increased $8.98 million (includes transfers), or 12.2%, from the 
original budget, which can be briefly summarized as follows: 

¶ $264,086 increase for carryovers 
¶ $3,738 increase allocated to Public Works 
¶ $34,110 increase allocated to Council and City Manager 
¶ $509,927 increase allocated to Fire Department 
¶ $123,271 increase allocated to Parks and Recreation 
¶ $274,619 increase allocated to Police Department 
¶ $135,000 increase allocated to Information Technology Department 
¶ $90,000 increase allocated to Ecopark 
¶ $7,545,256 increase allocated to government services which is a combination of the following: 
§ $650,000 increase for the Youth Center 
§ $6,843,280 increase for land acquisition for the Academic Village 
§ $51,976 increase for public safety building 

General Fund.  Significant variances from final budget to actual amounts are summarized as follows: 

Revenues: 
¶ Licenses and permits were less than budgeted by $3,006,977.  The building division was budgeted 

within  the general fund but reclassed to an enterprise fund. 
¶ Charges for services were more than budgeted by $2,919,293.  The general fund’s allocation of 

administrative fees for enterprise funds was reported as charges for services but budgeted as 
transfers to the general fund.    

Expenses: 
¶ General government expenses were less than budgeted by $1,838,242.  The building division was 

budgeted within the general fund but reclassed to an enterprise fund. 
¶ Parks and recreation expenses were less than budgeted by $1,107,595.  This is due to vacant 

positions and budgeted projects that were not completed and carried over to fiscal year 2004. 
¶ Capital outlay expenses were less than budgeted by $5,018,108.  This is due to $2.5 million budgeted 

land acquisitions that were not acquired prior to fiscal year end and various budgeted projects that 
were not completed and carried over to fiscal year 2004. 

Transfers in were less than budgeted by $2,916,277.  The allocation of administrative fees for enterprise 
funds was reported as charges for services but budgeted as transfers to the general fund.  

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The City’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt, for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of September 30, 2003 amounts to $207.1 million (net of accumulated depreciation).  The 
total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt, for the current fiscal year was 
14.8%. 
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The following schedule reflects the City’s capital assets as of September 30, 2003 and 2002. 

City of Cape Coral, Florida 
Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 
(in millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 
Land $ 22.7 10.1 3.8 3.0 26.5 13.1 
Buildings 26.3 24.0 17.4 18.1 43.7 42.1 
Building Improvements 0.3 - 0.1 - 0.4 -
Improvements other than buildings 4.5 3.7 247.3 189.6 251.8 193.3 
Equipment 9.4 7.5 4.2 4.2 13.6 11.7 
Infrastructure 36.0 17.0 - - 36.0 17.0 
Construction in progress 3.1 15.7 48.2 51.2 51.3 66.9
 Total capital assets $ 102.3 78.0 321.0 266.1 423.3 344.1 

Major capital asset purchases/projects during the current fiscal year included the following: 

¶ Purchased AS 400 Mainframe Computer System. 
¶ Purchased a public safety net, software and hardware for Police and Fire Departments. 
¶ Purchased several pieces of heavy equipment, trucks, utility vehicles and vans. 
¶ Police purchased 28 new vehicles, three utility vehicles, one truck and one boat. 
¶ Fire purchased a heavy duty rescue pumper truck, a pierce rescue truck, one trailer and one other 

truck. 
¶ Department of Community Development purchased 13 new trucks. 
¶ Real estate acquisitions (see details on page VII). 
¶ Completion of Cape Coral Six-Laning. 
¶ Completion of Fleet In-House Fuel Tank System. 
¶ Completion of Fleet Management Office Building. 
¶ Completion of Gator Slough Project, Phases III and IV. 

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on pages 47-49 of this report. 

Long-Term Debt 

During the period April through June, three major rating institutions (Moody’s, Fitch and Standard & 
Poor’s) evaluated the City’s financial management, economic conditions and administrative practices. 
Based on their evaluations, the following ratings were achieved: 

Agency 
Moody’s 
Fitch       

 General Obligation 
 Insured       Underlying

Aaa A1 
AAA A+ 

Water & Sewer 
  Insured       Underlying 

Aaa  A1 
AAA  A+ 

Standard & Poor’s AAA A+ AAA     A 

The general obligation underlying ratings were all upgrades while the water & sewer underlying ratings 
represented first time, stand alone ratings for the City’s utility system. 
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The insured rating is based on the credit worthiness of the company insuring the bonds, whereas an 
underlying rating is based upon the credit worthiness of the issuer or security which is actually pledged for 
the repayment of the bonds. 

At September 30, 2003, the City had $216.3 million of outstanding debt (excluding compensated 
absences).  The general obligation bonds, which are backed by the full-faith and credit of the City, had an 
outstanding balance of $10.7 million, or 4.9%, of the total outstanding debt.  Revenue bonds, which are 
secured soley by specified revenue sources, had an outstanding balance of $51.6 million, or 23.9%, of 
the total outstanding debt.  Special assessment debt which is collateralized by special assessments 
levied against the benefited property owners, had an outstanding balance of $53.8 million, or 24.9%, of 
the total outstanding debt.  Notes payable, which are collateralized by the related equipment, tax 
increment revenue (within the geographic boundaries of the Community Redevelopment Area), water and 
sewer revenue, and special assessment revenue, had an outstanding balance of $97.5 million, or 45.1%, 
of the total outstanding debt.  Capital leases, which are collateralized by the related equipment, had an 
outstanding balance of $2.7 million, or 1.2%, of the total outstanding debt. 

The following is a schedule of outstanding debt as of September 30, 2003 and 2002. 

City of Cape Coral, Florida 
Outstanding Debt 

 (in millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 
General Obligation Bonds $ 8.7 9.6 2.0 3.1 10.7 12.7 
Revenue Bonds 15.8 16.4 35.8 38.1 51.6 54.5 
Special Assessment Debt with
  Governmental Commitment - - 53.8 22.6 53.8 22.6 
Notes 0.2 0.3 97.3 72.5 97.5 72.8 
Capital Leases 2.6 0.8 0.1 0.2 2.7 1.0 
Total $ 27.3 27.1 189.0 136.5 216.3 163.6 

The City’s total debt increased by $52.7 million (32.2%) during the current fiscal year.  The key factors in 
this incerase were new debt issues for assessments in Southwest One, Southwest Three and Pine Island 
utility expansion areas and new capital leases (land for future park, safety network, AS 400 computer 
system, and equipment).  

During the current fiscal year, the City refinanced some of its existing debt to take advantage of favorable 
interest rates and reduce total future debt service payments.  

¶ The City issued Special Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 in the amount 
of $6,240,000 at an interest rate ranging from 2.0% to 3.75% and maturing in 2012.  Proceeds 
from the bonds, together with other available funds, were used to refund all of the outstanding 
$6,540,000 Franchise Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. 

¶ The City issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A in the amount of $8,705,000 
at an interest rate ranging from 2.0% to 2.75% and maturing in 2009.  Proceeds from the bonds, 
together with other available funds, were used to refund all of the outstanding $8,455,000 Florida 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1993. 

¶ The City issued Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 in the amount of 
$14,075,000 at an interest rate ranging from 2.0% to 5.25% and maturing in 2018.  Proceeds 
from the bonds, together with other available funds, were used to refund all of the outstanding 
$14,900,969 (including accreted value) Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 
1993. 

14 



 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

The ratio of net bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of general bonded debt per capita are 
useful indicators of the City’s debt position to municipal management, citizens, and investors.  This data 
for the City at September 30, 2003 was as follows: 

General 
Obligation 

Bonded Debt 
Debt Ratios Only 

Debt Per Capita 
  (estimated population 124,449 as of September 30, 2003) $86 
Debt to Assessed Taxable Value of Property as of 
  September 30, 2003 ($5,608,534,540) .19% 
Debt Per Capita as a Percentage of Per Capita Income                     
  (estimated per capita income of $29,540 as of June 30,2003) * .29% 

*  Latest per capita data available. 

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 11 on pages 51-63 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 

The State of Florida operates primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes.  Local 
governments (cities, counties, and school boards) primarily rely on property and a limited array of 
permitted other taxes (sales, gasoline, communication services, etc.) and fees (franchise, occupational 
licensing, etc.) for their governmental activities.  There are a limited number of state-shared revenues and 
recurring and non-recurring (one-time) grants from both the state and federal governments. 

For the business-type and governmental activities (impact fees, etc.) the user pays a related fee or 
charge associated with the service. 

The following factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2004 fiscal year. 

¶ Unemployment rates were examined and the City of Cape Coral has a lower unemployment rate 
compared to the state and nation.  Utilizing September 2002, as a benchmark, the City had a 4.3% 
unemployment rate as compared to the state which had a 5.6% unemployment rate, and the nation 
which had a 5.7% unemployment rate. 

¶ The real estate sector is a key to the City’s economic outlook which has been characterized by 
continued growth throughout 2003.  The City’s population increased by 9,530 residents to 124,449, 
an increase of 8.3% over the 2002 population. 

¶ Increasing home sales and increases in both residential and nonresidential construction activity. 

¶ Low interest rates are a factor in the outlook for both residential and nonresidential building. 

¶ The final year of a five-year utility rate program ended in FY2000.  In FY2001 the City contracted with 
a Company to complete a water and sewer revenue sufficiency analysis: a utility rate study to 
determine whether utility revenues derived from existing and scheduled user fees are sufficient to 
meet the needs of all three systems (water, wastewater and irrigation).  The objective of the project 
was to evaluate the coverage of the City’s rates over a short-term or five-year period and a long-term 
or twenty-year forecast period.  During the course of the study, it was determined that the results of 
the study should be combined in the form of a ten-year projection period.  The model is currently 
being updated with preliminary results indicating that a rate increase will be required in FY2007.  The 
model allows for phased-in rates beginning in FY2004 at 2.4%.  No changes to the existing capacity 
and commodity rates in all three systems (water, wastewater and irrigation) were incorporated in the 
adopted FY2004 budget.  Any shortfalls in current revenue will be offset by existing cash reserves 
and will be applied to the purchase of one-time non-reoccuring capital expenditures. 
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¶ An increase in the stormwater utility rates was adopted and incorporated into the operating budget. 
The following are the adopted stormwater utility rates: 

   FY 2004      
 $40.00     

  FY 2005      
  $43.00     

 FY 2006      
    $50.00    

 FY 2007 
  $57.00 

¶ Inclusion of 3.0% - 6.5% average wage adjustments for police officers, sergeants, and lieutenants 
and continuation of pay-for-performance plan for non-bargaining unit employees (average 4% merit). 
Increases resulting from pay range adjustments, firefighter, blue, white, and supervisory contract 
negotiations will be funded through reserves. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors 
and creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be directed to the Financial Services Department, 1015 Cultural Park Blvd., Cape 
Coral, FL  33990. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
September 30, 2003 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,999,913 $ 20,033,529 $ 71,033,442 
Investments 1,506,090 3,008,330 4,514,420 
Interest receivable 3,721 136,205 139,926 
Accounts receivable, net 1,054,961 1,542,817 2,597,778 
Notes receivable 562,081 562,081 
Intergovernmental receivable 1,993,175 363,394 2,356,569 
Internal balances (6,484,783) 6,484,783 
Inventories 109,701 392,713 502,414 
Prepaid items 115,827 103,014 218,841 
Net pension asset 685,175 685,175 
Restricted: 

Cash and cash equivalents 68,057,935 68,057,935 
Investments 5,176,125 5,176,125 
Accounts receivable, net 2,040,836 2,040,836 
Assessments receivable, net 388,967 35,959,081 36,348,048 
Unamortized bond issue costs 152,227 1,160,517 1,312,744 

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation): 
Land 22,667,140 3,824,404 26,491,544 
Buildings 26,320,248 17,367,103 43,687,351 
Building Improvements 304,548 67,475 372,023 
Improvements other than buildings 4,486,150 247,294,982 251,781,132 
Equipment 9,435,764 4,175,613 13,611,377 
Infrastructure 36,013,120 36,013,120 
Construction in progress 3,068,617 48,243,952 51,312,569 

Total assets 153,382,642 465,432,808 618,815,450 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 2,692,084 5,520,818 8,212,902 
Accrued payroll 1,955,802 798,487 2,754,289 
Deposits 31,304 826,862 858,166 
Accrued interest payable 148,096 1,136,803 1,284,899 
Deferred revenue 1,485,393 131,977 1,617,370 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 3,631,296 12,222,474 15,853,770 
Due in more than one year 27,948,405 178,767,813 206,716,218 

Total liabilities 37,892,380 199,405,234 237,297,614 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 75,136,338 131,999,783 207,136,121 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 449,461 10,301,964 10,751,425 
Transportation 14,455,500 14,455,500 
Fire public safety facilities 1,747,647 1,747,647 
Park facilities 3,151,991 3,151,991 

Unrestricted 20,549,325 123,725,827 144,275,152 
Total net assets $ 115,490,262 $ 266,027,574 $ 381,517,836 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Functlon11/Prggrams 
Governmental activities: 

General Government 
Public Safety: 

Police 
Fire 

Public Works 
Community Development 
Parks and Recreation 

Transportation 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water and Sewer 
Stormwater Utility 
Yacht Basin 
Building Division 

Golf Course 
Water Park 

Total business-type activities 
Total Government 

Exeenses 

$ 15,882,687 

16,681,383 
12,343,150 
5,086,678 
1,130,261 
7,565,632 
9,645,598 
1,518,503 

69,853,892 

38,977,836 
6,986,521 

164,781 
3,575,291 
1,701,144 
2,275,012 

53,680,585 
$ 123,534,477 

Prosram Revenues 

Charges for 
Services 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 8,834,807 $ 13,207,879 $ 1,971,634 

237,594 
285,015 

888,275 
2,306,109 

562,680 

362,445 

59,243 
160,054 
104,792 

591,574 
1,250,923 

1,486,110 
4,316,109 
5,426,170 

13,114,480 13,894,413 15,042,520 

27,184,806 
9,241,823 

247,277 
5,017,511 
1,412,752 
1,978,423 

45,082,592 
$ 58,197,072 $ 13,894,413 

24,316,758 
1,451 

2,623 

24,320,832 
$ 39,363,352 

General revenues: 
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 

Property taxes, levied for debt service 
Franchise taxes 
Communication taxes 

Gas tax 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of capital assets 

Transfers 
Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 
Net assets - ending 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes In Net Assets 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ 8,131,633 $ $ 8,131,633 

(15,489,770) (15,489,770) 
(10,807,212) (10,807,212) 

(5,027,435) (5,027,435) 
1,404,178 1,404,178 
(838,622) (838,622) 

(3,656,748) (3,656,748) 
(1,518,503) (1,518,503) 

(27,802,479) (27,802,479) 

12,523,728 12,523,728 
2,256,753 2,256,753 

82,496 82,496 
1,442,220 1,442,220 
(285,769) (285,769) 
(296,589) (296,589) 

15,722,839 15,722,839 
$ (27,802,479) $ 15,722,839 $ (12,079,640) 

$ 32,441,753 $ $ 32,441,753 
1,712,396 1,401,052 3,113,448 
3,379,802 3,379,802 
3,791,547 3,791,547 
6,407,369 6,407,369 

951,489 7,193,049 8,144,538 
138,387 138,387 

1,751,499 (1,751,499) 
50,574,242 6,842,602 57,416,844 
22,771,763 22,565,441 45,337,204 
92,718,499 243,462, 133 336,180,632 

$ 115,490,262 $266,027,574 $381,517,836 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

September 30, 2003 

Other Total 
Governmental Governmental 

General Gas Tax Funds Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 21,055,935 $ 6,568,945 $ 23,375,033 $ 50,999,913 

Investments 1,506,090 1,506,090 

Interest receivable 3,721 3,721 

Accounts receivable, net 1,054,961 1,054,961 

Notes receivable 562,081 562,081 

Intergovernmental receivable 1,148,514 844,661 1,993,175 

Due from other funds 679,210 679,210 

Advances to other funds 728,791 728,791 

Inventories 109,701 109,701 

Prepaid items 102,992 8,305 4,530 115,827 

Restricted assessments receivable 388,967 388,967 

Total assets 26,389,915 6,577,250 25,175,272 58,142,437 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Llabllltles: 

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 1,803,784 283,862 604,438 2,692,084 

Accrued payroll and compensated absences 2,641,810 42,057 13,413 2,697,280 

Due to other funds 679,210 679,210 

Deposits 31,304 31,304 

Deferred revenue 1,485,393 303,503 1,788,896 

Advances from other funds 6,884,306 329,268 7,213,574 

Total liabilities 12,846,597 325,919 1,929,832 15,102,348 

Fund balances: 

Reserved for: 

Advances 728,791 728,791 

Inventories 109,701 109,701 

Encumbrances 1,607,203 1,591,922 972,293 4,171,418 

Prepaids 102,992 8,305 4,530 115,827 

Debt service 449,461 449,461 

Transportation 4,651,104 4,651,104 

Unreserved, reported in: 

General fund 10,994,631 10,994,631 

Special revenue funds 17,501,320 17,501,320 

Capital project funds 4,317,836 4,317,836 

Total fund balances 13,543,318 61251,331 23,245,440 43,040,089 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 26,389,915 $ 6,577,250 $ 25,175,272 $ 58,142,437 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

September 30, 2003 

Fund balance total $ 43,040,089 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Capital assets $ 134, 187,494 
Accumulated depreciation (31,891,907) 102,295,587 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 303,503 

Unamortized bond issue costs are not current financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 152,227 

Net pension asset resulting from overfunding of the police and fire 
pension plans is not reported in the funds. 685,175 

Debt interest payable that will not be liquidated with current financial 
resources is not reported in the funds. (148,096) 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Bonds and notes payable 
Leases 
Compensated absences long-term 

$ (24,601,099) 
(2,558, 150) 
(3,678,974) (30,838,223) 

Net assets of governmental activities $ 115,490,262 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

General Gas Tax 
REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Property $ 32,014,131 $ 
Franchise 3,379,802 
Communication 3,791,547 
Gas 6,407,369 

Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 595,301 
Intergovernmental 14,862,263 
Charges for services 10,078,573 
Impact fees 
Interest income 478,613 80,280 
Other revenue 1,385,445 5,976 

Total revenues 66,585,675 6,493,625 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 12,447,269 
Public safety: 

Police 15,714,682 
Fire 11,662,507 

Public works 4,920,654 
Community development 1,122,139 
Parks and recreation 6,709,222 
Transportation 4,962,919 3,037,985 

Capital outlay 11,296,921 241,296 
Debt service: 

Principal 783,570 
Interest and fiscal charges 83,249 

Total expenditures 69,703,132 3,279,281 
Excess of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (3,117,457) 3,214,344 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 1,499,642 500,000 
Transfers out (1,379,129) (3,103,356) 
Bond proceeds 
Payment to escrow agent to refund bonds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 120,513 (2,603,356) 
Net change in fund balances (2,996,944) 610,988 

Fund balances - beginning 16,540,262 5,640,343 

Fund balances - ending $ 13,543,318 $ 6,251,331 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 2,140,018 

177,162 

2,020,927 

10,082,109 
392,596 
898,138 

15,710,950 

$ 34,154,149 
3,379,802 
3,791,547 
6,407,369 

177,162 
595,301 

16,883,190 
10,078,573 
10,082,109 

951,489 
2,289,559 

88,790,250 

2,234,256 14,681,525 

7,894 
32,052 

36,942 
125,724 

13,236,365 

15,722,576 
11,694,559 
4,920,654 
1,122,139 
6,746,164 
8,126,628 

24,774,582 

2,169,583 
1,287,158 

19,129,974 

2,953,153 
1,370,407 

92,112,387 

(3,419,024) (3,322, 137) 

7,766,381 
(3,431,952) 
10,470,000 .. 

(10,577,963) 
4,226,466 

807,442 
22,437,998 

$ 23,245,440 

9,766,023 
(7,914,437) 
10,470,000 

(10,577,963) 
1,743,623 

(1,578,514) 
44,618,603 

$ 43,040,089 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Net change in Fund balance - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation 
in the current period. 

Capital outlay $ 24,774,582 
Depreciation (5,122,998) 

The net effect on the governmental funds of capital assets transferred between 
governmental and enterprise funds. 

General fund to water and sewer $ (123,294) 
Water and sewer to general fund 23,207 
General fund to building division (191,001) 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets is to increase 
net assets. 

Donations $ 1,794,472 
Deletions (18,895) 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are 
not reported as revenues in the funds. 

1 ne issuance or Iong-term oeot \e.g., oonos, Ieases1 provIoes currem nnancIaI resources 
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of the governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, 
premiums, discount, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts 
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of 
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 

Principal debt payments $ 2,953,153 
Bond proceeds (10,470,000) 
Principal payment to escrow agent to refund bonds 10,351,600 
Deferred loss on refunding 184,764 
Premium, discount and deferred loss amortization 88,141 

Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the fund financial statements. A 
portion of the prior year net pension asset was applied in current year resulting in a 
decreased expenditure in the fund financial statements and a reduction to the net pension 
asset on the statement of net assets. 
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

(1,578,514) 

19,651,584 

(291,088) 

1,775,577 

303,503 

3,107,658 

(48,861) 

(148,096) 

22,771,763 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
September 30, 2003 

Other 
Water and . Stormwater Enterprise 

Sewer Utility Funds Total 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,924,490 $ 5,378,923 $ 3,730,116 $ 20,033,529 
Investments 2,002,080 1,006,250 3,008,330 
Interest receivable 112,299 23,906 136,205 
Accounts receivable, net 1,535,552 2,637 4,628 1,542,817 
Intergovernmental receivable 111,465 251,929 363,394 
Inventories 343,103 49,610 392,713 
Prepaid items 12,628 82,770 7,616 103,014 

Total current assets 15,041,617 6,746,415 3,791,970 25,580,002 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted: 

Cash and cash equivalents 67,452,804 250,000 355,131 68,057,935 
Investments 5,176,125 5,176,125 
Accounts receivable, net 2,040,836 2,040,836 
Assessments receivable, net 35,959,081 35,959,081 

Total restricted assets 110,628,846 250,000 355,131 111,233,977 
Advances to other funds 6,884,306 6,884,306 
Unamortized bond issue costs 971,370 79,045 110,102 1,160,517 
Capital assets: 

Land 2,121,511 53,542 1,649,351 3,824,404 
Buildings 25,534,442 1,650,478 27,184,920 
Building improvements 67,742 1,451 3,327 72,520 
Improvements other than buildings 376, 148,059 18,002,954 7,476,924 401,627,937 
Equipment 18,947,039 4,548,152 1,793,176 25,288,367 
Construction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 
47,031,230 

{169,626,733} 
1,171,328 

{9,855,739} 
41,394 

{5,786,099} 
48,243,952 

{185,268,571 l 
Total capital assets, net 300,223,290 13,921,688 6,828,551 320,973,529 

Total noncurrent assets 418,707,812 14,250,733 7,293,784 440,252,329 

Total assets $ 433,749,429 $ 20,997,148 $ 11,085,754 $ 465,832,331 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 
Settlement payable 

Total current liabilities-

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Deposits 
Accrued interest payable 
Debt: 

General obligation bonds 
Revenue bonds 
Special assessment debt 
Notes 
Capital leases 

Total debt 
Deferred revenue 

Total current liabilities payable from 
restricted assets 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Advances from other funds 
Compensated absences 
Debt: 

General obligation bonds 
Revenue bonds 
Special assessment debt 
Notes 
Capital leases 

Total debt 
Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
September 30, 2003 

Other 
Water and Stormwater Enterprise 

Sewer Utill!)'. Funds Total 

$ 5,035,452 $ 293,152 $ 192,214 $ 5,520,818 
521,541 186,107 294,625 1,002,273 
5001000 500,000 

6,056,993 479,259 486,839 7,023,091 

504,963 24,616 297,283 826,862 
1,015,553 75,617 45,633 _ 1,136,803 

1,300,000 1,300,000 
2,390,000 390,000 640,000 3,420,000 
2,350,881 2,350,881 
4,440,097 4,440,097 

7,710 7,710 
10,480,978 390,000 647,710 11,518,688 

131,977 131,977 

12,001,494 490,233 1,122,603 13,614,330 

399,523 399,523 
729,514 230,719 352,522 1,312,755 

699,775 699,775 
23,598,332 3,637,202 5,195,520 32,431,054 
51,437,537 51,437,537 
92,815,013 92,815,013 

711679 71,679 
16815501657 3,637,202 5,2671199 177,4551058 
169,2801171 31867,921 6,0191244 179,167,336 
187,338,658 41837,413 7,628,686 199,804,757 

121,191,655 9,894,486 913,642 131,999,783 
10,301,964 10,301,964 

114,917,152 6,265,249 2,543,426 123,725,827 
$ 246141oi711 $161159,735 $ 3,457,068 $ 266,027,574 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Otherrev~nue 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 
Contractual services, materials and supplies 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 
Operating income (loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Intergovernmental 
Interest income 
Ad valorem taxes 
Interest expense and bond discount amortization 
Loss on disposal of assets 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Income (loss) before contributions 
and transfers 

Capital contributions 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total contributions and transfers 
Change in net assets 

Total net assets - beginning 
Total net assets - ending 

Water and 
Sewer 

$ 26,076,149 
111081657 

27,184,806 

7,900,491 
10,593,878 
1519621403 
341456.772 
(7,271,966) 

121,812 
7,068,474 
1,401,052 

(4,336,441) 
(184,623) 

4,070,274 

(3,201,692) 

24,194,946 
123,294 

(1,924,436) 
22,393,804 
19,192,112 

22712181659 
$246,410,771 

Stormwater 
Utility 

$ 9,225,042 
16,781 

9,241,823 

2,991,483 
2,350,417 
1,432,624 
6,774,524 
2,467,299 

120,915 

(208,817) 
(3,180) 

(91,082) 

2,376,217 

1,451 

(616,789) 
(615,338) 

1,760,879 
14,398,856 

$ 16,159,735 

Other 
Enterprise 

Funds 

$8,410,026 
2451937 

8,655,963 

5,014,662 
1,862,759 

529,076 
7,4061497 
1,249,466 

3,660 

(298,203) 
(11,528) 

(306,071) 

943,395 

2,623 
666,432 

669,055 
1,612,450 
1,844,618 

$3,457,068 

Total 

$ 43,711,217 
1,371,375 

45,082,592 

15,906,636 
14,807,054 
17,924,103 
48,637.793 
(3,555,201) 

121,812 
7,193,049 
1,401,052 

(4,843,461) 
(199,331) 

3,673,121 

117,920 

24,199,020 
789,726 

(2,541,225) 
22,447,521 
22,565,441 

243,462, 133 
$266,027,574 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Other 
Water.and Stormwater Enterprise 

Sewer Utlli!X Funds Total 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash received from customers $ 27,593,691 $ 9,087,121 $ 9,084,789 $ 45,765,601 
Cash payments to suppliers (8,454,981) (1,948,210) (1,540,266) (11,943,457) 
Cash payments to employees (7,843,925) (2,958,070) (4,563,154) (15,365, 149) 
lnterfund service payments (2,12019921 (703,604} (186,040} (3,010,636} 

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,173,793 3,477,237 2,795,329 15,446,359 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING 
Transfers in 666,432 666,432 
Transfers out (1,901,230) (616,789) (2,518,019) 
Advances to other funds (6,843,279} (6,843,279} 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities (8,7441509) (616,789) 666,432 (8,694,866) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (70,391,339) (1,072,139) (558,981) (72,022,459) 
Payment to refunding escrow agent (686,890) (908,218) (1,595,108) 
Proceeds from debt issuance 63,214,679 422,134 63,636,813 
Principal payments on debt (11,493,688) (434,357) (291,959) (12,220,004) 
Collection of special assessments 19,972,684 19,972,684 
Capital contributions 22,161,772 22,161,772 
Collection of taxes for bond debt service 1,401,052 1,401,052 
Interest paid (3,873,691) (196,549) (182,712) (4,252,952) 
Advances from other funds 53,043 53,043 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 
financing activities 20,304,579 (1,703,045} (1,466,693} 17,134,841 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of investments 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
Interest income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 
Cash and cash equivalents - ending 

(6,699,000) 
14,400,000 
1,684,378 
9,385,378 

30,119,241 
48,258,053 

$ 78,377,294 

1661545 
166,545 

1,323,948 
4,304,975 

$ 5,628,923 $ 

31660 
31660 

1,998,728 
2,086,519 
4,085,247 

(6,699,000) 
14,400,000 

1,854,583 
91555,583 

33,441,917 
54,649,547 

$ 88,091,464 

The following reconciles cash and cash equivalents 
to the Statement of Net Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

$ 10,924,490 
67,452,804 

$ 781377,294 

$ 5,378,923 
250,000 

$ 5,628,923 

$ 

$ 

3,730,116 
355,131 

4,085,247 

$ 20,033,529 
68,057,935 

$ 88,091,464 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Other 
Water and Stonnwater Enterprise 

Sewer utility Funds Total 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTMTIES: 

Operating income. (loss) $ {7127119662 $ 2,467,299 $ 1,249,466 s !3,555,201 l 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 15,962,403 1,432,624 .. 529,076 17,924,103 
Provision for uncollectible accounts 53,900 53,900 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Accounts receivable (216,460) (2,637) 1,716 (217,381) 
Intergovernmental receivable 165,843 (251,929) (1,569) (87,655) 
Inventories (23,538) 2,651 (20,887) 
Prepaid items (4,260) (82,770) (459) (87,489) 
Restricted accounts receivable (160,347) (160,347) 
Assessment receivable (8,271) . (8,271) 
Unamortized bond issue costs 97,928 9,209 11,447 118,584 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 298,170 (139,505) 137,577 296,242 
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 56,556 33,413 451,508 541,477 
Deposits 223,835 11,533 295,488 530,856 
Restricted deferred revenue 118,428 118,428 

Total adjustments 161445,759 1,009.938 11545,863 1910011560 
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 9,173i793 $ 3,477,237 $ 2,795,329 $ 151446,359 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash Investing, capital and financing activities: 
Water and Sewer recoginized $53,328 of restricted accounts receivable through capital contributions. 
Water and Sewer assessments receivable new loans of $271,289. 
Water and Sewer accreted interest for revenue bonds of $741,906. 
Decrease in fair value of investments of $86,462. 
Water and Sewer recognized $438,621 equipment and utility lines donations through capital contributions. 
Water and Sewer recognized capital asset transfers of $10,856. 
Stonnwater Utility recognized capital asset transfers of $36,595. 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

STATEMENT OF.FlPUCIARY NET ASSeTs 
FJDOCIMY.FUNDS 
September 30; 2903 

· Pension Trust 
Funds 

Agency 
Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,303,445 $ 1,392,643 
Employee contributions rpivable 3,282,276 
Accounts receivable - 46.000 

. 81585,721 11438,643 
Investments, at fair value: 

U.S. government obligations 8,839,448 
Federal agency notes 6,959,812 
Corporate bonds 17,201,654 
Corporate stocks 66,761,569 
Mortgage-backed securities 14,369,575 
Mutual funds 21,466,023 -

Total investments 135,598,081 .-
Total assets 144,183,802 1,438,643 

LIABILITIES 
Refunds payable and other liabilities 3,521,690 
Due to others 

Total liabilities 3,521,690 I 
1,43811643 
1,438,643 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 140,6621112 

The accompanying notes to the financial. statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Pension 
Trust 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions: 

Employer $ 3,702,030 
Employee 3,282,132 
State 1,027,798 

Total contributions 8,011,960 
Interest income: 

Net increase in fair value of investments 14,959,239 
Interest 3,287,894 

Total interest income 18,247,133 
Less investment expenses {406,525} 

Net interest income 17,840,608 
Total additions 25,852,568 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefits and refunds 5,467,310 
Administrative expenses 130,200 

Total deductions 5,597,510 
Change in net assets 20,255,058 

Net assets - beginning 120,407,054 
Net assets - ending $ 140,662,112 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
September 30, 2003 

NOTE I.  ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.  Organization 

The City of Cape Coral, Florida (the City) was incorporated in 1970 pursuant to the laws of Florida, 
Chapter 70-623. The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government, which is 
comprised of an elected City Council (eight members) including an elected mayor, and a City 
Manager appointed by the City Council. The City provides the following services: public safety, 
recreation, cultural, community development, transportation, planning and zoning, water and 
wastewater services, stormwater utility services, and general administrative services. 

For financial reporting purposes, the accompanying financial statements include all the operations of 
the City for which the City is financially accountable. The City is financially accountable for 
organizations that make up its legal entity, as well as legally separate organizations that meet certain 
criteria. The criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity entails those cases where the City or its 
officials appoint a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and is able to impose its will on 
the organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or 
burdens to the City. 

The Cape Coral Community Redevelopment Agency (Agency) is a blended component unit of the 
City and was created in 1986 by Ordinance 51-87 of the City of Cape Coral, Florida, pursuant to 
Section 163.356 of the Florida Statutes. The City Council appoints the Agency’s Board of Directors. 
The Agency provides services for the benefit of the City. The Agency’s projects result in capital 
assets (mainly infrastructure) being owned by the City. The Agency’s transactions are recorded and 
reported by the City. The Agency does not publish individual component unit financial statements. 

2.  Related Organization 

The City’s officials are responsible for appointing the members of the Board of the City of Cape Coral 
Health Facilities Authority.  The City’s accountability for this organization does not extend beyond 
making these appointments; therefore, there is no blended or discrete financial presentation for this 
entity. 

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental 
accounting and financial reporting.  The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which along with subsequent GASB 
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. 

Basic Financial Statements – GASB Statement No. 34 

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and 
fund financial statements along with the notes to the financial statements.  The focus of the financial 
statements is on either the City as a whole or major individual funds (within the fund financial 
statements).  Both the government-wide and fund financial statements (within the basic financial 
statements) categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.  In the Statement 
of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities columns are reflected on a full 
accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as 
long-term debt and obligations. 
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The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function (Public Safety, Parks and Recreation, etc.).  Program revenues are defined as charges for 
services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributions directly associated 
with a given function.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues.  

The Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net costs per function (Public Safety, Parks 
and Recreation, etc.) which are otherwise being supported by general government revenues 
(property taxes, franchise taxes, gas taxes, etc.).  The Statement of Activities reduces gross 
expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants.  The 
program revenues must be directly associated with the function.   

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s water 
and sewer function and various other functions of the government.  Elimination of these charges 
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in 
aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. 

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. 
The emphasis of the fund financial statements is on the major funds.  Major individual governmental 
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns and the non-major 
funds are summarized into a single column. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The Government-wide Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary 
Fund financial statements.  The City’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements 
by type (pension and agency).  Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a 
third party (pension participants, other local governments, and other entities) and cannot be used to 
address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the 
government-wide statements.  Since agency funds report only assets and liabilities they do not have 
a measurement focus.  They do, however, use the accrual basis of accounting to recognize 
receivables and payables. 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Since the governmental fund 
statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the 
government-wide statements’ governmental column, a reconciliation is presented on the page 
following each statement, which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to transform the fund 
based financial statements into the governmental activities of the government-wide presentation.   

The focus of the Statement No. 34 model is on the City as a whole and the fund financial statements. 
The focus of the Fund Financial Statements is on the major funds of the governmental and business-
type activities.  Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed to enhance the 
usefulness of the information.   

Basis of accounting refers to when revenue and expenditures/expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.   
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The Government-wide Financial Statements and the Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial 
Statements are presented on an accrual basis of accounting.  The Governmental Funds in the Fund 
Financial Statements are presented on a modified accrual basis of accounting. 

1. Accrual: 

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred. 

Proprietary funds record both operating and non-operating revenues and expenses.  Operating 
revenues are those that are obtained from the operations of the proprietary fund that include 
charges for services and user fees.  Non-operating revenues are not related to the operations of 
the proprietary fund and include interest earnings and intergovernmental revenue.  Operating 
expenses represent the cost of operations, which includes depreciation.  Non-operating expenses 
are not related to operations such as interest expense. 

The proprietary funds follow private-sector standards issued prior to December 1, 1989, to the 
extent those standards do not conflict with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
statements.  However, pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That 
Use Proprietary Funds Accounting, the City has elected not to apply Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989 by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board. 

2. Modified Accrual: 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to 
accrual (i.e., both measurable and available).  “Available” means collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  The City 
considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Primary 
revenue sources that have been treated as susceptible to accrual include, where material, 
intergovernmental revenue, franchise fees, communication taxes and charges for services. 
Property taxes are accounted for when measurable and available as described in Note II.  Grant 
revenue is considered earned and is accrued when all eligibility requirements are met.   

In applying the “susceptible to accrual” concept to intergovernmental revenues pursuant to 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions (the City may act as either provider or recipient), the 
provider should recognize liabilities and expenses and the recipient should recognize receivables 
and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements including time requirements, are met. 
Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met should, under most 
circumstances, be reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by recipient.   

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related fund liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. Exceptions to this general rule 
include principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when due. 

Basis of Presentation 

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds.  The operations for each fund 
are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, 
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses.  Resources are allocated to and accounted for in 
individual funds, based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. 
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Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the 
determination of major funds. The City’s major funds are presented in separate columns on the 
governmental fund financial statement and the proprietary fund financial statement.  The funds that 
do not meet the criteria of a major fund are considered non-major funds and are combined into a 
single column in the fund financial statements and detailed in the combining section.  

The following major funds are used by the City: 

1. Governmental Funds: 

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement (in the Fund Financial Statements) is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances 
of financial resources) rather than upon net income.  The following is a description of the major 
Governmental Funds of the City: 

a. General Fund is the general operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all financial 
resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

b. Gas Tax Fund accounts for the Local Option Gas Tax, which is used for road improvements 
and related items. 

2. Proprietary Funds: 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes 
in net assets, financial position, and cash flows, which is similar to businesses.  The following is a 
description of the major Proprietary Funds of the City: 

a. Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s water and sewer 
utility programs. 

b. Stormwater Utility Fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s stormwater 
drainage program. 

3. Other Fund Types: 

Additionally, the City reports the following Fund types 

a. Pension Trust Funds are used to account for three defined benefit plans which accumulate 
resources for pension benefit payments to its employees/retirees. 

b. Agency Funds are used to account for the City’s collection of school impact fees, at the time 
of building permit issuance, for the Lee County School Board, collection of solid waste fees 
for Waste Management Inc. and to account for monies held for Youth Crime Intervention 
Program Inc., a non-profit organization. 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity, Revenues, and Expenditures/Expenses 

1. Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 

The City, for accounting and investment purposes, maintains a pooled cash and investments account. 
This gives the City the ability to invest large amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to 
maximize earning potential.  The pooled cash and investments consist of the Local Government 
Surplus Funds Trust Fund administered by the Florida State Board of Administration, direct U.S. 
securities, money market, and savings accounts. 
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Interest income is allocated based upon the proportionate balance of each fund’s equity in pooled 
cash and investments. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers highly liquid investments (including 
restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and 
cash equivalents. 

2. Investments 

The City’s investments are reported at fair value. 

Investments, including restricted investments, consist of mutual funds, U.S. Government securities, 
corporate debt and equity securities, and securities of governmental agencies unconditionally 
guaranteed by the U.S. Government. 

3. Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered.  These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other 
funds” or “due to other funds”.  Any balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal 
balances.” 

Assessments receivable – the City levies a special assessment against benefited property owners for 
construction of water, wastewater and irrigation utility expansion in certain areas of the City. 

Noncurrent portions of interfund loan receivables classified as advances between funds, as reported 
in the fund financial statements, are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account in applicable 
governmental funds which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available financial 
resources, and therefore, are not available for appropriation.   

4. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

Inventories, consisting primarily of expendable supplies held for consumption, are stated at cost (first-
in, first-out method). The City utilizes the consumption method of accounting, which provides that 
expenditures are recognized when inventory is used. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

5. Capital Assets 

Capital assets include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets.  Infrastructure assets are 
defined as public domain fixed assets such as roads, bridges, sidewalks, traffic signals, and similar 
items that are immovable and of value only to the governmental unit.  Capital assets are reported in 
the government-wide financial statements in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns, as well as the proprietary fund financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City 
as assets with an initial, individual cost of $1,000 or more and a useful life in excess of one year. 
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not 
available.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized, but are expensed as incurred. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
related assets.  The ranges of the useful lives are as follows: 
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Assets Years
 Equipment 3-5 
 Traffic signals 15 
 Parking lots 20 

Roads   30 
 Sidewalks 30 
 Bridges 40 

Improvements other than buildings 5-40 
Building improvements 10-20       

 Buildings 30-50 

6. Compensated Absences 

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay 
benefits, which will be paid to employees upon separation from City service if they meet certain 
criteria.  The City’s policy requires the employees to receive a cash buyout on an annual basis once 
their bank reaches a certain level depending on the employee’s job classification.  These benefits 
plus their related taxes are classified as compensated absences.  The accumulated compensated 
absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary 
funds for both the current and long-term portions.  For the Governmental Funds, the amounts 
normally liquidated with expendable available financial resources are accrued in the individual funds 
and the remaining portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) is maintained 
separately and represents a reconciling item between the fund and government-wide presentations. 

7. Long-term Obligations 

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. 

8. Bond Discount, Bond Premium, Issuance Costs, and Deferred Loss on Defeasance 

In governmental funds the face amount of debt issued is reported net of bond premiums and 
discounts as other financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds, bond premiums and discounts, 
issuance costs, and deferred loss on defeasance are amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straight-line method, which does not result in a material difference from the effective interest method. 
The face amount of the debt issued is reported net of bond premiums and discounts whereas 
issuance costs are recorded as other assets. 

9. Deferred Gain/Loss from Current Refunding or Advance Refunding of Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements and enterprise funds, the difference between the re-
acquisition price (new debt) and the net carrying value of the old debt on refunded debt transactions 
is deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense using the straight-line method over the 
shorter of the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt.  The deferred amount is offset 
against the new liability. 

10. Utility Capital Expansion Fee (Impact Fee) 

The City utilizes utility capital expansion fees as a means for funding capital expansion required to 
meet system demands resulting from growth.  These fees are recorded as capital contribution 
revenue in the Enterprise Funds when charged. 
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11.  Special Assessments 

The City levies a special assessment against benefited property owners for construction of water and 
wastewater utility expansion in certain areas of the City. The special assessments are recorded as 
capital contributions net of refunds in the enterprise funds. 

The City also levies a special assessment against benefited property owners for construction of 
seawalls. 

12.  Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue recorded in the General fund relates to occupational licenses, lot mowing fees, and 
user fees that are not earned until the next fiscal year. 

Deferred revenue recorded in the other governmental funds relates to special assessments that are 
not collectible in the current year.  The special assessments revenue will be recognized when billed. 

Deferred revenue in the enterprise funds relates to golf course memberships, rain checks and gift 
certificates that will be redeemed in the next fiscal year. 

13.  Intragovernmental Allocation of Administrative Expenses 

The General fund incurs certain administrative expenses for other funds, including accounting, legal, 
data processing, personnel administration, and other services.  The governmental funds that receive 
these services were charged $482,012 for fiscal year 2003.  These amounts are eliminated in the 
statement of activities.  The enterprise funds that receive these services were charged $3,010,636 for 
fiscal year 2003.  These amounts are recorded as revenue in the general fund and operating 
expenses in the enterprise funds. 

14.  Restricted Net Assets and Reservations of Fund Balance 

In the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements, when both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts 
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted for a specific future use.  Designations 
of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.  Unreserved, 
undesignated fund balance indicates funds that are available for current expenditure. 

In the proprietary funds, restricted net assets are used to indicate segregation of a portion of net 
assets equal to certain assets that are restricted for meeting various covenants as may be specified 
and defined in the revenue bond indenture or other legal commitment. 

15. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
as of the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures or 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE II.  PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes are levied on November 1 of each year, and are due and payable upon receipt of the notice 
of levy. The Lee County, Florida Tax Collector’s office bills and collects property taxes on behalf of the City. 
The total tax rate of 6.3745 mils per $1,000 of assessed taxable property value consists of 5.8033 mils to 
finance general governmental services and 0.5712 mils to finance general obligation debt service for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which the 
taxes are levied. On May 1 of each year, unpaid taxes become a lien on the property. The past due tax 
certificates are sold at public auction prior to June 1, and the proceeds collected are remitted to the City. 

No accruals for the property tax levy becoming due in November 2003 are included in the accompanying 
financial statements since such taxes are levied for the subsequent fiscal year and are not considered 
available at September 30, 2003. 

NOTE III.  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Compliance With Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions 

The City has no violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions. 

NOTE IV.  DETAILED NOTES 

1. Cash and Investments 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except for those in 
which the cash and investments must be segregated due to bond indenture or other legal restrictions such 
as in the pension trust funds. 

Deposits 

Deposits whose values exceed the limits of federal depository insurance are entirely insured or 
collateralized pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act). 
Under this Act, financial institutions which are qualified as public depositories place with the State Board of 
Administration securities which have a market value equal to 50% of the average daily balance for each 
month of all public deposits in excess of applicable deposit insurance. The Public Deposit Security Trust 
Funds have a procedure to allocate and recover losses in the event of default or insolvency. When public 
deposits are made in accordance with Chapter 280, no public depositor shall be liable for any loss thereof. 
All City depositories at year-end were designated as qualified public depositories. The bank balance of 
deposits insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation or pursuant to Chapter 280 of the Florida 
Statutes was $733,575 as of September 30, 2003. 

Investments 

Florida Statutes 218.415 and the City’s Investment Policy Ordinance 87-00 authorize investments in the 
Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (SBA), U.S. Government securities and agencies, 
Federal instrumentalities, interest-bearing time deposit or savings accounts, repurchase agreements, 
commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, state and/or local government taxable and/or tax-exempt debt, 
mutual funds, and any other investment authorized by bond resolutions. Certificates of deposit, savings 
accounts and bank balances whose value exceeds the amount of federal depository insurance are 
collateralized pursuant to the Act of the State of Florida. Additionally, the Pension Trust Funds are 
authorized to invest in corporate bonds and equity securities. 
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The City invests in non-derivative mortgage-backed products in part to modify exposure to certain risks, to 
enhance yields on investments, or to affect changes in investment portfolios without significantly affecting 
liquidity. Within the mortgage-backed securities category are investments in mortgages and principal and 
interest strips. Diversification of investments as to the investment type and the term to maturity serve to 
reduce both market and interest rate uncertainty. The City has and shall maintain prudent diversification of 
investments as to both issuer and term; in addition, to the extent possible, the City matches its investments 
with anticipated cash flow requirements. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including 
Repurchase Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, the City’s investments are categorized 
as follows to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the City: 

Category 1 Includes investments that are insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its agents 
in the City’s name, or held by the City’s agents in a Depository Trust Company custodial 
account. 

Category 2 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by a counterparty’s trust department 
or agent in the City’s name. 

Category 3 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities 
counterparty, its trust department or agent, but not in the City’s name. 

are held by a 

Investments in mutual fund pools (commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances) and the Local Government 
Surplus Funds Investment Pool Trust Fund (SBA) are not categorized as they are not evidenced by 
securities that exist in physical or book entry form. 

The City invests funds throughout the year with the Local Government Surplus Funds Investment Pool Trust 
Fund (SBA), which is administered by the State Board of Administration, under the regulatory oversight of 
the State of Florida. The SBA pool’s investments are recorded at amortized cost, consistent with GASB 
Statement No. 31. The value of the City’s position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

There were no losses during the period due to default by counterparties to investment transactions, and the 
City had no other types of investments during the year other than those described above. 
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Carrying/ 

Catego!} 1 Catego!}2 fair value 

General lnves.tments 

U.S. Treasury bonds $ 1,139,400 $ $ 1,139,400 

Federal ag~ncy bonds/flotes 81551,145 8,551,145 
Total generarinvesrments $ 9,690,545 $ $ 9.690,545 

Cash Equivalents 
Money market $. .. $ 2,112,383 $ 2.112,383 

Pem~lon Trust Funds 

U.S. Treasury bonds, notes and bills $ 8,839,449 $ $ 8,839,449 

Fedef:al agency guaranteed securities 6,959,812 6,959,812 

Corporate bonds 17,201,653 17,201,653 

Corporate stocks 66,761,569 66,791,569 

Mortgage.backed securities 14,369,575 14,369,575 

Mutual funds 21z466,023 . 211466,023 
Total pension trust funds $ · 135,598,081 '$ $ 135,598,081 

Investments not subject to categorization: 

Money market: 

Pension trust funds 5,303,445 

Local Government Surplus Trust Funds 

Investment Pool (SBA) 135155~225 

Total non-categorized 1401855,670 

Total investments, excluding money market account 286, 144,296 

Deposits, including money market fund 4,931,795 

Total deposits and investments $ 291,076,091 
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The following schedule reconciles the deposit and investment information on page 41 to the City's Net Assets: 

Current Noncurrent - R'5trlcted 
Cash Cash Tc>tal 

and cash and cash ~hand 
eguivalents Investments egulvalents Investments Investments 

Govemma$J.Actlvl"es: 
General $ 21,055,935 $ 1,506,090 $ $ $ 22,562,025 
Gas Tax 6,568,945 6,568,945 
Nonmajor:, Governmental 231375,033 23,375,033 

Total Governmental 50,999,91§ 1,506,090 52,506,003 

Business-type Activities: 
Water and Sewer 10,924,490 2,002,080 .. 67,452,804 5,176,125 85,555,49~ 
Stormviater 5,378,923 1,006,250 250,000 6,635;173 
Nonmajor Enterprise 3,730,116 355,131 4,085,247 

Total Business-type 20,033,529 3,008,330 68,057,935 5,176,125 96,275,919 

Fiduciary Funds: 
Trust 5,303,445 135,598,081' · 140,901,526 
Agency 1,392,643 1,392,643 

total Fiduciary Funds 1,392,643. 5,303,445 135,598,081 14i,294, 169 

Total $ 72;426,085 41514,420 $73,361,380 $ 140,TT4,206 $291,076,091 ! 

2. Restricted Cash and Investments 

Restricted cash and investments of the proprietary funds represent resources to be restricted for capital 
improvements, debt service, and renewal and replacement. 

Water and 
Sewer 

Stormwater 
Utll~ 

Nonmajor 
Enterertse Total 

Restricted for capital improvements 
Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for renewal 

$ 22,423,798 
47,107,834 

$ $ 183,653 
171,478 

$ 22,607,451 
47,279,312 

and replacement 3,097,297 2501000 3,347,297 

Total restricted assets $ 72,628,929 $ 250,000 $ 355,131 $ 73,234,060 
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3. Accounts and Assessments Receivable 

Other
 Governmental 

General Funds Total 
Unrestricted: 
Interest $ 3,721 $ - $ 3,721 
Notes - 562,081 562,081 
Intergovernmental 1,148,514 844,661 1,993,175 
Gross accounts receivable 3,007,570 - 3,007,570 
Less: allowance for uncollectibles (1,952,609) 1 - (1,952,609) 

Total net unrestricted 2,207,196 1,406,742 3,613,938 

Restricted: 
Assessments - 388,967 388,967 

Total net restricted - 388,967 388,967 

Total net receivables $  2,207,196 $  1,795,709 $  4,002,905 

1 The City lawfully requires that weeds, grass, or underbrush be kept at a height of not more than 12 inches.  Where land 
owners in the City choose not to maintain their own vacant property in compliance with the ordinance, the City provides such 
service and bills the owner a fee.  The city invokes the right to lien properties with unpaid lot mowing bills and has chosen not 
to write-off delinquent balances.  Bills are sent out in February of each year.  Before the end of each fiscal year the allowance 
for uncollectibles is adjusted to include all unpaid balances over 90 days past due. 

Business-type activities: 
Other 

Water and Stormwater Enterprise 
Sewer Utility Funds Total 

Unrestricted: 
Interest $          112,299 $        23,906 $                   - $ 136,205 
Intergovernmental 111,465 251,929 - 363,394 
Gross accounts receivable 1,926,241 234,412 4,628 2,165,281 
Less: allowance for uncollectibles (390,689) 2 (231,775) 3 - (622,464) 

Total net unrestricted 1,759,316 278,472 4,628 2,042,416 

Restricted: 
Assessments 35,959,081 - - 35,959,081 
Gross accounts receivable 2,040,836 - - 2,040,836 

Total net restricted 37,999,917 - - 37,999,917 

Total net receivables $ 39,759,233 $        278,472 $              4,628 $ 40,042,333 

2 The City bills users for water and sewer services monthly; before the end of each fiscal year the allowance for uncollectibles 
is adjusted to include all unpaid balances over 90 days past due. 

3The City by ordinance, bills each property owner within the City a fee to provide for and to make repairs to the stormwater 
runoff system designed to help alleviate standing water and provide water quality following heavy rains.  The billing is done 
annually in October and before the end of the fiscal year the allowance for uncollectibles is adjusted to include all unpaid 
balances over 90 days past due.  The billing for most properties in the City has been transferred to the tax roll for fiscal year 
2003. 

The City has established a delinquent collection team as well as three law firms under contract, to assist in 
collection of delinquent utility assessment and stormwater utility accounts.  These firms specialize in such 
services and are working on foreclosing delinquent utility assessment and stormwater accounts.  The City 
monitors the accounts on a monthly basis.  The City has not established an allowance for the utility assessments; 
ultimately through liens/foreclosures, the revenue is expected to be recovered. 
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4. Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Liabilities 

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities at September 30, 2003 is as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Other 

Gas Governmental 
General Tax Funds Total 

Accounts and contracts payable $      1,717,018 $            283,862 $ 604,438 $ 2,605,318 
Intergovernmental payable 9,266 - - 9,266 
Accrued liabilities 77,500 - - 77,500
 Total $      1,803,784 $            283,862 $ 604,438 $ 2,692,084 

Business-type activities: 
Other 

Water and Stormwater Enterprise 
Sewer Utility Funds Total 

Accounts and contracts payable $      5,031,868 $            293,152 $            158,176 $ 5,483,196 
Intergovernmental payable 3,584 - 34,038 37,622
 Total $      5,035,452 $            293,152 $            192,214 $ 5,520,818 

5. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2003 is as follows: 

Due to/from other funds: 

Receivable Fund 
General 

Total 

Payable Fund 
Eco Park 
Community Development Block 
Grant 

Purpose for Balance 
Awaiting grant reimbursement 

Awaiting grant reimbursement 

Amount 
$ 606,736 

72,474 
$ 679,210 

Advances to/from other funds: 

Receivable Fund 
General 

Payable Fund 
Seawall Phase VI 
Seawall Phase VII 
Seawall Phase VIII 

Golf Course Land Purchase 

Water Park 

Purpose for Balance 
Construction/repaid by assessments 
Construction/repaid by assessments 
Construction/repaid by assessments 

Clubhouse expansion project 1 

Construction of Slide 2 

Amount 
68,073 

242,164 
19,031 

53,043 

346,480 

Total General Fund $ 728,791 

Water and Sewer General Academic Village Land purchase 3 
$ 6,884,306 

1 Operations at the Golf Course provide funds to repay the advance.  The advance is scheduled to mature in September 2009. 
2 Operations at the Water Park provide funds to repay the advance.  The advance is scheduled to mature in April 2005. 
3 Annual principal repayment of $977,611 plus interest over seven years. 
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lnterfund Transfers: 

Transfers In 

General Nonmajor Water and Nonmajor Capital 
Transfers Out: Fund Gas Tax Governmental Sewer Entererise Asset Transfers Total 

General Fund $ $ $ 1,054,129 2,9 $ $ 325,000 4 $ $ 1,379,129 

Gas Tax 303,356 2,800,000 3,103,356 

Nonmajor Governmental 346,596 1,6 2,743,924 341,432 3,431,952 

Water and Sewer 789,010 1,6 1,112,219 2,3 23,207 1,924,436 

Stormwater Utility 60,680 1,6 500,000 10 56,109 616,789 

Capital Asset Transfers $ 123,294 123,294 

Total Transfers Out $ 1,499,642 $ 500,000 $ 7,766,381 $ 123,294 $ 666,432 $ 23,207 $ 10,578,956 

1 Funds transferred to the General fund are for reimbursement at budgetary established levels for administrative services. 
2 Various funds transferred receipts restricted to the debt service fund as debt service payments became due. 
3 The Gas Tax fund transferred $2,800,000 and the water and sewer fund transferred $1,000,000 to a nonmajor governmental fund (Cape Coral Six-Laning) 

for road construction. 
4 The general fund transferred $325,000 to a nonmajor enterprise fund (Golf Course) at budgetary established levels to support operations. 
5 Park impact fees are transferred to the Water Park to support debt service. 
6 Various non-recurring transfers of funds. 
7 This represents capital assets that were transferred to/from governmental funds to/from proprietary funds. 
8 Various special revenue funds made transfers to capital projects funds for construction. 
9 General Fund transferred $90,000 to a nonmajor governmental fund (Eco Park) for capital improvements. 

10 Stormwater transferred $500,000 to the Gas Tax fund for reimbursement at budgetary established levels. 
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6. Intergovernmental Revenue 

Intergovernmental revenue at September 30, 2003 is as follows: 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

General Fund Funds Total 
Operating Grant and State Shared Revenue: 

Community development $        160,037 $                      - $  160,037 
Parks and recreation 104,792 - 104,792 
Police 362,445 - 362,445 
Public works 11,744 - 11,744 
Local shared revenue 348,389 - 348,389 
State shared revenue 12,859,489 - 12,859,489 

Capital Grant Revenue: 
Community development 20,000 - 20,000 
Parks and recreation 296,277 554,817 851,094 
Police 591,574 - 591,574 
Fire 60,000 - 60,000 

Other Intergovernmental Revenue:
 Community development - 1,466,110 1,466,110 

Other Inter-local Agreements 47,516 - 47,516 
Total 14,862,263 $        2,020,927 $  16,883,190 

7. Interest Income 

Interest income as of September 30, 2003 is as follows: 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Investment income $ 876,177 $   1,375,459 $ 2,251,636 
Interest on advances 21,232 42,893 64,125 
Interest billed on loans 22,910 5,763,181 5,786,091 
Interest received from tax collector 31,170 11,516 42,686

 Total $ 951,489 $   7,193,049 $ 8,144,538 
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8. Operating Leases 

The City has entered into various lease agreements for copiers, fax machines and police motorcycles. These 
leases are accounted for as operating leases. The leases are generally for a 3 or 5-year term and include renewal 
options. The following schedule reflects the operating lease obligations for the next five years. There are no current 
leases extending beyond 2008. 

Year Ending 
September 30 

2004 
2005 

. 2006 
2007 
2008 

Total 

Lease 
Payments 

$ 150.020 
129,770 

54,3f2 
19,622 
10,129 

$ 363,853 

9. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2003 was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Beginning 
B•lance 

$ 10,168,579 
1516541019 
2518221598 

Increases 

$ 13,180,171 
10,971,442 
24,151,613 

Decreases 

$ (681,610) 
1231556,844} 
{24,238,454} 

$ 

Ending 
Balance 

22,667,140 
31068,617 

25,735,757 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 
Building improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Building improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

28,775,432 

7,019,492 
21,671,256 
2419881001 
82,454,181 

(4,696,728) 

(3,328,275) 
(14,274,264) 

F,983,540} 
{30,2821807} 

3,048,592 (13,327) 31,810,697 
307,910 307,910 

1,216,969 (183,918) 8,052,543 
5,151,189 (3,484,672) 23,337,773 

20,048,327 {931514} 4419421814 
29,772,987 

(793,721) 
(3,362) 

(413,411) • 
(2,889,462) 
{1,0231042} 
{5, 1221998} 

{3,115,431 l 108,451,737 

(5,490,449) 
(3,362) 

175,293 (3,566,393) 
3,261,717 (13,902,009) 

76,888 {8,9291694} 
3,513,898 {3118911907} 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 521171,374 24,6491989 {2611533} 76,5591830 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 77!9931972 $ 4818011602 $ p4.499,987! $ 102,295,587 
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Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Business-type activities: 
Capltal assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 
Water and sewer 
Stormwater 
Other enterprise 

Total Land 
Construction In progress 

Water and sewer 
Stormwater 
Other enterprise 

Total Construction in progress 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

$ 1,374,165 
31,900 

115961308 
3,002,373 

50,786,183 
437,845 

51~4,028 
5412261401 

$ 882,826 
21,842 
53043 

937 511 

89,073,260 
733,483 
45,360 

89,852,103 
70,789,614 

$ (115,480) 

(115,480) 

(72,828,213) 

(3,986) 
(72,832, 179) 
(72,947,859) 

$ 2,121,511 
53,542 

1,649,351 
3,824404 

47,031,230 
1,171,328 

41,394 
4812431952 
52,068,356 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 

Water and sewer 25,534,442 25,534,442 
Stormwater 
Other enterprise 1,850,478 11650,478 

Total buildings 27,184,920 27,184,920 
Building Improvements 

Water and sewer 67,742 67,742 
Stormwater 1,451 1,451 
Other enterprise 3,327 3327 

Total building improvements 72520 72,520 
Improvements other than buildings 

Water and sewer 306,473,870 73,324,021 (3,849,832) 376,148,059 
Stormwater 18,002,954 18,002,954 
Other enterprise 7,600,858 103,784 (227,898) 7 476,924 

Total improvements other than buildings 
Equipment 

332,on,880 7314271785 (3,877,528) 401,627,937 

Water and sewer 18,477,103 805,402 (335,486) 18,947,039 
Stormwater 4,097,870 514,618 (84,336) 4,548,152 
Other enterprise 

Total equipment 
Total capital assets, being depreciated 

115121800 
24,087,TT3 

$ 383,350,373 

372,924 
1,692,944 

$ 7511931249 

(92,548) 
(492,350) 

$ (4,369,878) 

1793176 
251288,367 

$454,173,744 
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Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 

Water and sewer $ (8,536,125) $ (668,923) $ $ (9,205,048) 
Stormwater 
Other enterprise (566,890} (45,879} (612,769} 

Total buildings (9,103,015} (714,802} (9,817,817} 
Building improvements 

Water and sewer (4,570) (4,570) 
Stormwater (31) (31) 
Other enterprise (444} (444} 

Total building improvements (5,045} (5,045} 
Improvements other than buildings 

Water and sewer (132,726,864) (14,499,925) 3,589,543 (143,637,246) 
Stormwater (5,826,531) (899,351) (6,725,882) 
Other enterprise (3,914, 150} (283,373} 227,696 (3,969,827} 

Total improvements other than buildings (142,467,545} (15,682,649} 3,817,239 (154,332,955} 
Equipment 

Water and sewer (16,262,173) (788,985) 271,289 (16,779,869) 
Stormwater (2,651,477) (533,242) 54,893 (3,129,826) 
Other enterprise (1,058,034} (199,380} 54,355 (1,203,059} 

Total equipment (19,971,684} (1,521,607} 380,537 (21,112,754} 

Total accumulated depreciation (171,542,244} (17,924,103} 4,197,776 p 85,268,571 l 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 211,808,129 57,269,146 (172,102} 268,905,173 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 266,034,530 $128,058,760 $(73, 119,761 l $ 320,973,529 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 1,027,364 
Public safety 

Police 955,758 
Fire 611,749 

Public works 166,024 
Community development 8,122 
Parks and recreation 835,011 
Transportation 1,518,970 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 5,122,998 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer $ 15,962,403 
Stormwater 1,432,624 
Other enterprise 529,076 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 17,924,103 
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10. Construction Commitments 

The City has active conslruction projects as of September 30, 2003. The projects include access to canal 
waterways, widening and reconstruction of existing streets, replacement of the public safety network, planning of 
new fire stations, improvements to parks, water production enhancements, and utility expansions. At year-end, 
the City's commitments with contractors are as follows: 

Total Spent to Remaining 
Contract Date Commitment 

Governmental activities: 
Chantry canal launching facility/marina 1 $ 63,000 $ (12,497) $ 50,503 
Chiquita boat lock 1 126,600 (109,098) 17,502 

Del Prado wldening2 495,111 (387,262) 107,849 
Gleason Parkway extension (land and design)2 329,650 (311,698) 17,752 
Chiquita widening study2 32,663 (19,848) 12,815 
Country Club Boulevard improvements2 774,526 (30,996) 743,530 

Police/Fire public safety network3 2,019,567 (718,500) 1,301,067 
Design of new fire station #33 86,700 (16,278) 70,422 
Design of new fire station '#83 75,960 (9,495) 66,465 

Parks and recreation office and maintenance building 
at everest annex" 189,473 (170,525) 18,948 

Camelot Park - tennis courts and parking lots" 89,775 (42,160) 47,615 
Eco Park pond and loop boardwalk4 18,000 (7,266) 10,714 
Horton Park improvements" 12,453 (8,717) 3,736 
Rotary Park - glover bright trail and boardwalk4 464,979 (2781769} 186,210 

Total governmental activities 4,778,457 (2,123,329) 2,655,128 

Business-type activities: 
Water production enhancements5 2,529,265 (1,103,588) 1,425,677 

Utility Expansions:8 

Southwest 2 water, wastewater and Irrigation (design only) 
Southwest 3 water, wastewater and lnigatlon 

Total business-type activities 
Total $ 

43,784,898 
42 958228 
89 272 391 
941oso1848 $ 

(4,324,208) 
(37,695,644) 
!43,123,440l 
(45,246,769) 

39,460,690 
5262 584 

46148 951 
$ 48,604,079 

' The access to canal waterways ls funded through the general fund. 

' The widening and reconstruction of existing streets Is funded from the Community Redevelopment Agency, gas taxes, 
road impact fees, and water and sewer operations. 

' The public safety improvements are funded by grants, fire impact fees and the general fund . 
• Park Improvements are funded by grants and the general fund. 

' The water production enhancements are funded by water and sewer operations, impact fees and betterment fees . 
• The utility expansions are financed by State Revolving Fund Loans and special assessment debt, both will be repaid by 

the benefited property owners. 

50 



1

GeM-tal 
obllgaEklll ~8\INUfJ C.. pilb.l fo ;ises 

Qovg mml!IT!ai 1,1:.t~ ls bonds bll!nft ND'IH ~ii!bliJJ l!al.able Tmbd 

0r~f181 l!m;tJOIJJ $ l!I,~ ! 11.a§51DOO s 850,000 :s 4·2'19.71i $ JO-.B6 !},. 7 UI 

Debl l)ci'J1lbl11 - bedllrtl"!I !1,1 ,ij~.(lt(I , (;, 3t.ti 'i!O!J 355,.110 736,2.52 2:7. 1. 4..002' 
Og1,it l1o~ !!l,l'OS,000 t.~.000 Z,\ll}ll. 71 ij 13,,Ci3!).71 ii; 

Debrr!!lhed ~ I 63,5 ,ooot !2.27'tMiOOl (HlWlJ [1,199~01 j 1s~D4j53l 
Debi: payaele - encfr,g ,tt, 10!,,,llll ,us11,.ooo 1BVi'7 2,558,150 27.2~ 'J'T 

b1:1& amOl.ft!: ~ed 11,; 
a;n-1Cllb;J~ 1~~ooot (550.0001 f4:J.Jl3! !~,!i61l ....GJ.9121900l 

Lorg-18flll 1!8DI - 9111!1ng $ 7 ,:!.!ill ,(l:JO 1-1§.l---~ 1lil8,444 i 11500,~ 5 ~ .:J.G7,Q27 t 

https://13,,Ci3!).71
https://736,2.52


Gianlnl ,,_., __ C•pltal 9p,elll 
obllgllt.lon N'otn lt,l,IH IIDHsmenl 

~ 11-t~.AcU bom.11- ~ Pntd,I, l!lMbla olll! Tot11 

Ciiv-"3 9ffilllfl'll ' , 1,7,it,000 $ 4414!!?,_000 S 1116.1&i'11C4. l 235.51"!1 s Ml.MO.COO 'i Z2Di:l!17.,7~ 

Dt:ilJl IWI) til! - Mglrwu:ij 
!;ltil;illwuad 
liklb! Pll)TI>t!'U 1"1lf04! 
or., lli1!ltiansldli'_l;i1Gns. 
AD:1111J:H1 d ~ "li!•ll:ldalan bonds 
~ 11(111 c:tl dlCOOfll (l:nr-WI 
~G1 Oo!f,,n i11l gr;iln (loul en 11!I\J!'ldlng 

Lau ~ITICIITIII: r~d as 
W!Ttill~ 1B 

Lv~ lllt!t• nn!lro I 

3-, 162..IIIWI 

( 1,225J!(JO ► 

.ii. ) 
l!B,014 

1,-.ril'.l,'1'$ 

L 1!&0001 
Glntl!;i I 

3S.,05(1J)7D 
1!,&G0.000 
42290 .OCO) 

(1D,37D,5S7j 
CY11.m 
(.C8,31gJ 
~OOII 

.:!E1851,D!:i4 

n, 420.000 t 
il431~ $, 

72,'72.Df.1 
17.{1£411!17 
(J,9~1 

ll:''2.7!>0 

er.BS., 1(1 

1c~o1~) 
D:.!.t1~01$ i 

IKIJM7 

(101.11&) 
[ 0,242) 

79,389 

ffJ1Cll 
71~ I 

22,620,~IB 
~-010.COO 
~C,Geri,0:0) 

~.'91;.9) 

ZJ.. 111 
aim 

03,J 41 

~-~!i(I HR1 J 
111~37 0-,7 

136.$ 4).211 7 
82,aill,997 

C,2.2'21)1J04,J 
(18,577,c,491 

c:;.11m 
P'l,f.00 ► 
Ci9"1T7l 

~M.m,,.ce 

111,s1a,ma1 

$1~4!1~ 

52 



Long-term Debt at September 30. 2003 is comprised of the following 

General Long-ttrm Debt 

General Obllgatlon Bonds 

$8,705,000 Gaoeral Obftgation Bonds, Series 2003A, ls:stied to rofund the 
City's General Obligation Bonds-, Series 199-3. Interest accrues et rates 
ranging from 2.00% to 2.75% collateralr.ted by the full faith and credit of 
the City, SOtld principal is payable annually through J~ 2009 wi1h 
Interest pajcl semiannually, 

Revenuo Bonds 

$1.765,000 Spocial Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 
2002 fssued to refund the Series 1993, Franchise Fee Rowmue Bonds. 
lntetest accrues at rates ranging from 2.00% to 3.75% coUateralized by 
franehlse fees and oommunkalion taxes. Bond prlncipal is payable 
annually through December 2012 witn lnteres-t paid semiannuauy. 
(combined with $4,475,000 proprietary revenue bond) 

S 15,500,000 Cepltal 1mprovemen1 Revenue Bonds, Series 1999, 
oons!stlng of S7,620,000 S8fial Bonds maturing October 2000 through 
Occober 2015, and S7,880,000 Term Bonds maturing In 2024 lssuOd to 
rinance the cost of aoquisition, consttuc:Uon and equipping lhe new c ity 
hell oomplex and emergency operation center and a renovation of 
existing c ity hall. Interest accrues at rates ranging from 3. 7% lo 5.38%, 
coHateralized by half-oent sales tax ptoooeds. 

Notes Payablo 

S650.000 lmprovement Revenue No:e, Series 1992 payable to a rlnanclal 
institution for the purpMe of financing the cost of capi tal improvements 
within the Cilys Community Redevelopmenl Area. The note is 
oolla1e1alized by &d valorem tax revenue within the geographic 
boundaries of the Community Redevetopment Area, The note requires 
annual principal payments through December 2007. The in1erest rate Is 
set at 85.5% of the prime rate (the note Interest rate was 3.42% at 
Septembe, 30, 2003) and Is payable semiaMuaUy. 

Capital Leas.es P-ayablo 

$1 .280,000 capital lease payable lo Tryon Investment$ II LLC for poflce 
vel'lides. The lease Is collaterali2ed by the related vehicles that were 
capitalized In the amoont of the lease and ind udod as part of the capital 
assets of the City. The l$ase requires annual debt service pa)'ITlenl$ 
ranging from $284,228 to $311,353 Including principal and lruerest 
acauing al 5.37% through February 2005. 

S 8,705,000 

$ 1,765,000 

14,090,000 
$ 15,655.000 

s 161,777 

S 532,432 
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$73,827 capital tease payable to GE Capital for two Gtoundmaster 4500-
0 mowe,.s with attachment$, The lease b cOllatetalitcd by the reta1e<:1 
equipmenl that is capltaJlzed in the amount of the lease and induded as 
part of the capital assets of the City. The lease requires annual debt 
servioe payments of $20,731 lnd udlng prln~a.1 and interest eccruing at 
6.25% th,ougt'I June 2007. s 69,367 

$ 112,000 C8pltal tease payablt:> to IBM Credit CorpOl'alion for an AS 400 
Computer System. The lea.se is collateraflzed by the <elated equipment 
that is capil.alized in the amount of the lease and Included as part of tne 
capital assets of the City. lhe lea:se requires annua1 debt :sl)fViCo 
payments of S42.132 lnclucfing principal and Interest a,oc11,1ing at 7.95% 
through January 2006. 87,026 

S1, 118,891 capit&I lease payable to OSSI Software Solutions for the 
Safety Network. The lease Is oollatera!ized by the related harc:twa.re and 
software that is capitalized il !he amount of the lease and inctuded as 
part of tho capl!al assets of the City. The klase requires annual debt 
service principal paymems of $183,131 in ftSCal yeat 2004 &nd $2 18,722 
In fiscal years 2005 and 2006. There Js no int8fest cost associated with 
this: lease. 620,575 

$1,665,000 capital &ease payable to the Trust Fot PUblk land for fvtvre 
park land. The le8$8 is coflat•raUzed by the related property lhal Is 
collate.ralized in th& amount of the loase and ln,cluded as part of the 
capital assets of the City. The lease requires annual debt service 
payments of $416,250 plus interest at prime through August 2006. 1,248,750 

s 21ssa.1so 

Proprietary Funds · Long-term Oc.bt 

General Obligation Bonds 

$ 11.710,000 General Obligation Water end Sewet Refunding Bonds. 
Serles 1995, issued and used to refund the City's General Obligation 
Water and Sewe, Refunding 80,,cts, Series 1987, Interest eccnJes al 
retes ranging from 4.2% to 6%, collatera!lzed by the full faith and credit ol 
the City. Principal payable annually with interest being paid semiannually . S 2,075,000 

(85,529) Less deferred loss on refunding 
10,304 Plus unamortized premium 

S 1,999,775 

Revenue Bond$ 

$3,080.000 Capital tmprovemenl Refundr'lg Revenue Bond:s, Sorios 
1997, maturing October 2009 at an inleJC$.l rate of 4.89%. The bond Is 
col"8ieratizecl by a fil'$l nen upon the proceOOS of the local government 

S 1,735,000 half-cent sales tax. 
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$5,680,000 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Serles 1991, consisting of 
CapltaJ Appreciation Bonds, The Borids were partially defee-sed in the 
amount of $3,818,819, plus accretOd iruer&sl or $663,129 by the Water 
and Sewet Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993, The remaining 
bends accrete to a value of $5,680,000 due between 2008 and 2012, 
Interest rates 18nge from 6.75% to 7, 1%, collatoralized by a ien upon the 
water and sewet system's net revenues as defined by 1he bond 
resolution. Accreted interest at September 30, 2003 is $1,716,804 end 
has been added to the balance due. The Serles 1991 bonds are Issued In 
parity with the Ci ty's Water and Sewer Rorunding Revenue Bonds, Setl&s 
1993 and the Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Se<les 2000. 

S12,595,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Revonue Bonds, Series 2000, 
the bonds are secured by a pledge of and Uen upon the water and sower 
system's net revenues as defined by the bond resolution. The bonds 
refunded ell of the outstanding Serles 1986 Water and Sewer Revenue 
Bonds and a portion of the principal amount of the City's outstanding 
1992 Wastewa!er Improvement Assessment 8on<Js (Green Area}. 
Principal paid annually unt!l 2013, with Interest paid semiannually at rates 
ranging from 4. 750% to 5,625%. Tho Series 2000 bonds ate lssu<td In 
parity with the Cily's Water and Sewer Reveooe Bonds, Serles 1991 and 
!he Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds. Se,ies 1993. 

$4,580,000 F~ida Munk:lpaf Loan Council Revenue Bonds. Setit'lS 
2002A. The bonds are secured by a pledge of and tlen upOf"I the net 
revenues ol lhe Stormwate< Uti!lfy System. The bonds refunded an of the 
outstanding St0<mwater Utihty Revenue Boods, Series 1992. Principal 
paid annually until May 2012, with interest paid semiannually at rates 
rsnglng from 3 .25% to 5 .50%. 

$4,475,000 Special Revenue Refunding and lmprovemen1s Bonds, 
$e,les 2002 issued lo refund the Series 199-3, Franctilse Foo Revenue 
8onds. Interest accrues at r&tes ranging from 2.00% and 3.75% 
conateralized by franchise fees and communication taxes. Bond prlneipal 
is payab!e annually through December 2012 with ln1er0:St paid 
semiannually. (combined with S1 ,765,000 General long,term debt 
revenue bond} 

$14,075,000 Water end Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2003, 
the bonds are secured by a pledge of and Uon upon the water and sewor 
system's net revenues as crerin&d by the Bond Resolution, The bonds 
refunded an of the outslanding Series 1993 Water and Sewer Refunding 
Revenue Bonds. Principal paid annutilty vnll 2018, with i'lterest paid 
$emlaMually et rates ranging from 2,00% to 5.25%. The Series 2003 
Bonds are Issued In parity with !he City's Water and Sewer Revenue 
Bonds, Serles 1991 and the Waler and Sewer Refunding Revenue 
Bonds. ~lies :rooo. 

Less deferred loss on refunding 
Plu.$ unamortized premium 

$ 3.567,454 

8 ,180,000 

4.200,000 

4,475,000 

14,075,000 

(1,929.479) 
1 548,079 

$ 35,851,054 
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Notes Payable 

$13,880.310 State Revotvlng Fund revenue note #·110 payable to tl'le 
State with p,lncipal and interest payable semiannually et 2 .59% until 
2014. The not& is coltateralft.ed by special assessment revenue and net 
revenues ol lhe watet and sewer system. 

$29,910,686 Slate Revolv!ng Fund revMue note #140 payable lo the 
Stete with principal and lnteres-t payable semiannualty at rates ranging 
from 2.63% 10 3.79% unlil 2016. The note Is col!ateralized by special 
assessment roven1Je and net revenues of the water end sewer system. 

S24,,308,325 State Revolving Fund revenue note #090 (plant) payable to 
the Staie with principal end Wlterest payable annually a~ a rate of 3.68% 
and 3.75% until 2014, The note is coflaterallzed by water and sewer non• 
ad valorem revenue and impact fees. 

$18,896,360 State RevoMng Fund revenue note #100 (transmission) 
payable to the State with prlnclpal and interest payab!e semia-nnuelly et 
rates ranging from 2.89% ti) 3.57% until 2015. The note is oollateralized 
by water and sewer non-ad valorem revenue and impact fees. 

$17,814,884 State RevoMng Fund Loan AQreemont #7516P paya~ to 
lhe Staie wi1h principal and lnteres1 payable semiaMU81Jy a1 3.19% 
beginning Octobe, 2004. The security Is a lien on the net revenues of the 
water and sev.•er system and Im.pact fees. 

S18.712,500 S1a1e Revol\lW'lg Fund Loan Agreement #7516L 01 payable 
to the State with prlnclpal and inieresl payable semiannually at 2.93% 
beginning December 2003. The security is a llcn on the net revenues of 
the water and sewer system and Impact fees. 

$40,644, too State Revolvlng Fund Loan At)reement #7516L 02 payablo 
to the State with principal and Interest payable scmlannua!ly et 2.93% 
beginning June 2005, The security Is a lien on the net revenues of the 
water and sewer system and impact lees. 

capital LHseS Payable 

$2.35,$79 capital lease payable to Yamaha Ml)tor Corp for golf carts. The 
lease iS cot1a1erallzed by the related equipment in the amount of the lease 
and inducled as part of the fixed Mscts of the City. The equlpmem hes a 
gue,anteed residu31 vakle of $71,679. The lease requires moothly 
payments of $4,202, Including principal end Interest accruing at 6.37% 
through December 2003. 

$ 8 ,822,723 

21,683,628 

14,154,860 

12,297,906 

13,625,334 

5.828.281 

20,842,378 
S 97,255,110 

s 79,389 

56 

https://coltateralft.ed


S~eial Alsnsment Debt with Government Commitment 

In order to fund oonstruction of the City's water and wastewater utffity expansion In certain areas of the City, the 
City has issued Special Assessment Improvement Debi. The City is ectlng as agent in lho collection of the special 
ass8"ments levied end in the payment of the Special Assessmen1 Bonds outstanding. Such bonds are 
oollateralized by special assessments levied against the benefited propef1y owners. The City will aHumo 
responsibil!ty In the event of ~f&ull oo lhe outst&ndlng Speci31 Assessment Bonds. Current year special 
assessment e:oUocllons were sufficlen1 to meet fiscal year 2003 debt scrvi<» requirements. 

Information rOgarding Special Assessment Debt outstanding at September 30, 2003 Is as follows: 

Final 
Original 

Issue 
Interest 
Ratu 

Maturity 
Date 

Balance 
Outstanding 

Wastewaler AUessm&nl Refunding Bonds., 
Series 2001 (Graen Area) s 9,325,000 2.9 • 4.75% 2012 s 6,095.000 

Water Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 
2001 (Orange Area) 7,030.000 2.8 • 4.37% 2009 5,270,000 

Wast~ater As.sessment Refunding Bonds. 
Selios 2002 (Green Area) 8,855,000 4 .d ~ 5,0% 2012 8,655,000 

Wate-r l.mptovement Assessment Bonds, 
SCrios 2002 (Southwest 1) 6,1'0,000 1.5 • 3.675% 2015 5,875,000 

Water Improvement Assessment Note. 
Series 2003 (Pine 1-Slanct) 2,750,000 3.71% 2018 2,750,000 

Wastewater Improvement Assessment Note, 
Series 2003 (Pine Island} 5,250,000 3.71% 2018 5.250,000 

Florida Local Govemmont Fln\lnce 
Convnisslon Pooled COmrool'dal Papor 
Notes, Series A, Draw A-1-2 (Southwest 3) 21,500,000 

S 60,850,000 
2008 21,500,000 

55,595,000 

Less deferred loss on refunding 
Less unamortized discount 
Total Specl~I A.$$essmen1 Debt 

(1,576,264) 
(228,316! 

S 53,788,418 
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Capital Leases – The capital leases are recorded at the total present value of future minimum lease 
payments.  The following schedule shows the present value of these payments at September 30, 2003. 
There are no capital leases extending beyond 2007. 

Year Ending September 30, 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
Total payments 

Governmental 
Activities 

$          996,421 
1,008,029 

683,470 
15,548 

2,703,468 

Business-
type 

Activities 
$         8,403 

-
-
-

8,403 

$ 
Total 

1,004,824 
1,008,029 

683,470 
15,548 

2,711,871 

Residual value 
Less imputed interest 
Total present value of net minimum lease 

-
(145,318) 

$       2,558,150 

71,679 
(693) 

$       79,389 $ 

71,679 
(146,011) 

2,637,539 
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Changes In Long•Term Liabilities 

Long-term tiabillty activity for the year ended September 30, 2003, was as folk>ws: 

BegJnnlng Ending Due Within 

Balance Addition• Roduetlons Bala.nee OM Ye.at 

Governmental aetlvlde&: 
l.Ong·letm debt l•) s 27,144,962 $13,439,718 $( 13 ,304,753) s 27.279,927 s 2,609,607 

4.420.4S2 741,478 Compensated ebsenoes 4 ,1801037 240.415 
Tot.ii Govomn'let\4al s 31,324,999 $ 13,660,133 Sj131304.753) s 31J66.S19 s 3,551,065 

Buslnoss,lype aetMtlea: 
Watet al'ld Sewer 
U)r1g,term debt $ 125,564.194 S 80,389,688 $(26,922,247} S 179 ,031,635 $ 10.480,978 

843,735 114 ,221 Compensated absence, 810,980 32.755 
500,000 Settfement payable 1,0001000 {500,0001 500000 

127,375,174 80.422,443 (27,422,247) 1eo.31s1310 11,095,199 TOia! Water and SOwor 

Stormwater 
4 ,441,42? (414,225} 4 ,027.202 390,000 Lof'94ermdebt 

2S5.134 15,135 270.269 39550 Compet1Wtd absienoes 
4,696,561 15 ,135 (414,226) 4,297.471 429650 Total S:Otm\\'8.ter 

Oth&t Enterpr1H 
6,504,676 4,.S70,768 (5,160,SJS) 5,9 14 ,909 647,710 Long-term debt 

Compensated ab$o~s 325,913 82977 1s.m1 402537 50,015 

T o!al Othtr EtiterpriSe 6 830,569 , ,6S3J45 (5,166,868) 6317 448 697,725 

Total Buslnns,cype 
Long-lerm do?>t 13&,510,297 84,960,456 (32,497,007) 188.973.7◄ 6 11,518,688 

1,392,027 130,867 (6,353) t ,516,541 203,786 CompenNted absences 
500,000 Sottlomt nl p.,yable 1,000.000 !500,000) 500,000 

T ot:al Business-type $138,902,324 S ss,091 .323 S(33,003,360) S 190,990.287 S 12,222,474 

11> Govcrnmont,wic!e s,alement& inclUdG <Se:rerred IOss and premun on debt. 
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Bond Resolution – Resolutions for various debt obligations established certain funds and accounts and 
determined the order in which certain revenue is to be deposited into the funds and accounts. The City has 
also covenanted to budget and appropriate sufficient special revenue sources to pay the various debt 
obligations when due. All required balances at year end were maintained. 

Any holder of bonds has the right to compel the performance of all duties required by the bond resolution, 
including the appointment of a receiver. 

Conduit Debt Obligation – To provide for the financing of the acquisition, construction, improvement and 
installation of a 24-bed intermediate care facility for the developmentally disabled in the City, the Cape 
Coral Development Center, Ltd. (Center) has issued two series of Industrial Development Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1994A. These bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of 
the City and, accordingly, they have not been reported in the accompanying financial statements. At 
September 30, 2003, Industrial Development Refunding Revenue Bonds outstanding aggregated $500,000. 

To provide financing of the acquisition, construction and equipping of a six-story building consisting of 192 
residential units, 39 personal care units, and a 48-bed nursing home within the City, the City of Cape Coral 
Health Facilities Authority has issued a series of First Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A. 
These bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the City, and accordingly, they 
have not been reported in the accompanying financial statements. At September 30, 2003, Health Facility 
Revenue Bonds outstanding aggregated $14,720,000. 

To provide for the refinancing of a loan to finance the construction of a 25-bed expansion of the existing 
Health Center and a new entrance to the assisted living units, the City of Cape Coral Health Facilities 
Authority has issued a series of First Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1997. These bonds do not 
constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the City, and accordingly, they have not been 
reported in the accompanying financial statements. At September 30, 2003, First Mortgage Revenue Bonds 
outstanding aggregated $6,905,000. 

Advance and Current Refundings 

The City issued General Obligation refunding bonds, Series 2003A in the amount of $8,705,000 at an 
interest rate ranging from 2.00% to 2.75% and maturing in 2009.  The Bonds are collateralized by the full 
faith and credit of the City.  The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of refunding, together with other 
available monies, that portion of the outstanding principal amount of the City’s General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 1993, maturing on and after July 1, 2004 currently outstanding in the aggregate 
principal amount of $8,455,000 (the Refunded Bonds) and paying the costs of issuance of the Bonds.  The 
City purchased direct obligations of the United States of America that were placed in an irrevocable trust 
with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service requirements of the defeased debt.  As a result, the 
refunded bonds were considered to be defeased and the liability removed from the financial statements of 
the City.  The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next six years by 
$618,466 and resulted in an economic gain of $567,185. 

The City issued Special Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 in the amount of 
$6,240,000 at an interest rate ranging from 2.00% to 3.75% and maturing in 2012.  The Bonds are 
collateralized by a first lien on franchise fees and communication service tax revenues. Proceeds from the 
bonds, together with other available funds were used to refund all of the outstanding $6,540,000 Franchise 
Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 1993.  The City purchased U.S. Treasury Obligations that were placed in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service requirements of the defeased debt. 
As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the 
financial statements of the City.  Available proceeds from the Series 2002 Bonds will be used for all or a 
portion of the following: (i) acquisition of certain land for recreational purposes; (ii) acquisition of certain land 
for the location of new fire stations; (iii) expansion of the irrigation system at the City’s golf course; (iv) 
construction of improvements to the City’s golf course entrance; and (v) construction of improvements to the 
City’s golf course clubhouse and maintenance building.  The bond issue is split between governmental 
funds and an enterprise fund (Golf Course).  For the portion associated to the Golf Course, the reacquisition 
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price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $261,801.  This amount is being netted against 
the new debt and amortized over the remaining life of the refunded debt, which is equal to the life of the 
new debt issued.  This refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next ten 
years by $421,847 and resulted in an economic gain of $467,184. 

The City issued Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 in the amount of $14,075,000 at 
an interest rate ranging from 2.00% to 5.25% and maturing in 2018.  Proceeds from the bonds, together 
with other available funds, were used to refund all of the outstanding $14,900,969 (including accreted value) 
Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993.  The City purchased U.S. Treasury Obligations 
that were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service requirements 
of the defeased debt.  As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has 
been removed from the financial statements of the City.  The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying 
amount of the old debt by $1,014,275.  This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized 
over the remaining life of the refunded debt, which is equal to the life of the new debt issued.  This refunding 
was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 16 years by $4,901,529 and resulted in 
an economic gain of $2,385,805. 

12. Defeased Debt Issues 

Enterprise Fund Debt: 
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1977 
Junior Lien Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1978 
General Obligation Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds,
  Series 1978A and 1978B 
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1978 
Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds,
  Series 1980 
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 

   Total defeased bonds outstanding 

$ 

$   

1,770,000 
2,570,000 

9,860,000 
65,000 

5,565,000 
15,042,561
34,872,561 

13. Deficit Fund Balances or Net Assets of Individual Funds 

The following individual funds had deficit fund balances as of September 30, 2003: 

Governmental activities: 
Seawall Phase VI     $ (3,039) 
Seawall Phase VII (200,449) 
Seawall Phase VIII (12,108) 

The deficit fund balances are anticipated to be recovered through future assessment collections for the seawall 
projects. 

 Business-type activities: 
Golf Course    $ (785,905) 

This deficit net asset balance is anticipated to be recovered by Council approved rate increases, population 
growth within the City, and an increase in the number of tourists playing golf. 
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14. Construction Project Interest Cost 

Financial Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 62, Capitalization of Interest Cost in Situations Involving 
Certain Tax-Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants requires that the difference between interest 
expense on debt and interest earnings on reinvested debt proceeds be capitalized. 

In addition, Financial Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 34, Capitalization of Interest Cost, requires that 
interest be capitalized even when no new debt is issued to finance a project.  This amount is calculated by 
multiplying the weighted average construction expenditures by the weighted average interest rate of outstanding 
debt in the fund that used its existing resources to finance the expenses. 

Actual interest cost 
Imputed interest cost 
Less interest income 

$ 1,419,411 
562,922 

(132,820) 

Net interest capitalized $ 1,849,513 

15. Segment Information 

The City issued revenue bonds to finance its water and sewer department.  The water and sewer department and 
the special assessment funds are accounted for in a single fund in the financial statements.  However, investors 
in the revenue bonds rely solely on the revenue generated by the water and sewer activity for repayment. 
Summary financial information for the water and sewer department is presented below. 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

Assets:
  Current assets $ 10,339,447
  Loans from other funds 13,195,646
  Restricted assets 20,351,623
  Unamortized bond issue costs 432,026
  Capital assets 67,378,363
    Total assets 111,697,105 

Liabilities:
  Current liabilities 7,595,324
  Noncurrent liabilities 48,693,107
    Total liabilities 56,288,431 

Net Assets:
  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 14,937,266
  Restricted for debt service 3,369,182
  Unrestricted 37,102,226
    Total net assets $ 55,408,674 
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Charges for services $      26,894,473 
Depreciation expense (5,471,113) 
Other operating expenses (18,043,818) 

Operating income 3,379,542 
Intergovernmental 121,812 
Investment income 766,073 
Interest expense and bond discount amortization (2,107,880) 
Loss on disposal of assets (184,623) 

Income before contributions and transfers 1,974,924 
Capital contributions 9,266,607 
Transfers (6,131,208) 

Change in net assets 5,110,323 
Total net assets - beginning 50,298,351 

Total net assets - ending $      55,408,674 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

New cash  provided (used) by: 
Operating activities $      9,562,741 
Noncapital financing activities (7,715,233) 
Capital and related financing activities (3,454,100) 
Investing activities 1,209,442 

Net decrease (397,150) 
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 23,916,777 

Ending cash and cash equivalents $      23,519,627 

NOTE V.  OTHER INFORMATION 

1. Risk Management 

The City is a member of Public Risk Management of Florida (PRMF), a local government risk management 
pool, as defined by Florida Statutes 163.01(3)(h). The City has transferred its risk of loss to PRMF. 
According to their audited financial statements dated September 30, 2003, PRMF’s loss fund has been 
funded up to the aggregate reinsurance attachment point. The premiums PRMF bills to the City are based 
upon a single rate and no additional amount will be assessed to the City. PRMF’s actuarial report evaluates 
the pool’s retained exposure to loss. According to their actuarial report as of September 30, 2003, PRMF 
makes adequate provisions to cover its claims obligations through the loss fund, established to pay retained 
losses, together with the excess reinsurance coverage and investment income. The City has not had any 
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year, nor has it over the past three years, had 
any settlements in excess of insurance coverage. The City has obtained separate insurance coverage for 
risks that are not included in the pool. 
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2. Pension Plans 

The City has three defined benefit single-employer pension plans: 

¶ Municipal General Employees’ Pension Plan 
¶ Municipal Police Officers’ Pension Plan 
¶ Municipal Firefighters’ Pension Plan 

The defined benefit plans do not issue stand-alone financial reports and are not included in any other 
retirement system’s or entity’s financial report. 

The City also has one defined contribution single-employer pension plan for department heads and 
administrative management general employees. 

The City accounts for all three plans as pension trust funds; therefore, they are accounted for in 
substantially the same manner as proprietary funds with a “capital maintenance” measurement focus and 
employment of the accrual basis of accounting.  Plan member contributions, employer contributions, and 
contributions from other entities are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Benefits 
and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with terms of the plans. Plan assets are 
valued at fair value for financial statement purposes, as reported within the annual trustee statements. 

(A)  Municipal General Employees’ Pension Plan 

Current membership is comprised of the following: 

Retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving
 benefits 256 
Employees no longer with the City entitled to benefits but not yet receiving 
them 28 
Employees participating in Deferred Retirement Option Plan  (DROP)  

6 
Active employees 715 

 Total 1,005 

Plan Description 

All full-time non-uniformed employees at least 18 years old are required to participate in the City’s 
Municipal General Employees’ Pension Plan if they are not eligible for the Defined Contribution 
Pension Plan.  The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. This plan and any amendments were adopted through a City Ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Cape Coral. A Board of Trustees administers the Plan. All costs of administering 
the plan are paid from plan assets. 

Funding Policy 

Employees contribute 8.9% of their compensation. The City contributes the remaining amounts at 
actuarially determined rates that are designated to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when 
due. The current rate is 14.6% of annual covered payroll. 
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset 

The City has no net pension obligation (calculated in accordance with GASB No. 27, Accounting for 
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers) as all actuarially determined amounts are 
contributed each year. The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part 
of the October 1, 2002 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. The 
actuarial assumptions included (a) 8% investment rate of return, and (b) 7.0% projected salary 
increase which includes an inflation component of 3.0%. The actuarial value of assets was 
determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments over a four-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a 
level percentage of payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period as of October 1, 
2003 was 21 years.  The City’s annual pension cost for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 
was $1,783,828. 

Annual Percentage Net 
pension of APC pension 

Fiscal year ending cost (APC) contributed asset 

September 30, 2003 
September 30, 2002 
September 30, 2001 

$ 1,783,828 
   1,667,129 
   1,396,003 

100% 
100% 
100% 

— 
— 
— 

Concentration of Investments 

This plan does not have a concentration of investments that are not direct governmental obligations 
or agency securities that exceed 5% or more of plan net assets. 

(B)  Municipal Police Officers’ Pension Plan 

Current membership is comprised of the following: 

Retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving
 benefits 37 
Employees no longer with the City entitled to benefits but not yet receiving 
them 3 
Active employees 158 

 Total 198 

Plan Description 

All full-time police officers at least 18 years old are required to participate in the City’s Municipal 
Police Officers’ Pension Plan. The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries. This plan and any amendments were adopted through a City Ordinance 
by the City Council of the City of Cape Coral. A Board of Trustees administers the Plan. All costs of 
administering the plan are paid from plan assets. 

Funding Policy 

Employees contribute 7% of their compensation. The State of Florida makes contributions from taxes 
on casualty insurance premiums. The State of Florida’s Contribution to the Police Officers’ Pension 
Plan for fiscal year 2003 was $544,440.  The City recognized these on-behalf payments from the 
State as revenues and expenditures in the governmental funds financial statements.  The City 
contributes the remaining amounts at actuarially determined rates that are designated to accumulate 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The current rate is 15.4% of annual covered payroll. 
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset 

The City has no net pension obligation (calculated in accordance with GASB No. 27, Accounting for 
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers) as all actuarially determined amounts are 
contributed each year. The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part 
of the October 1, 2002 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. The 
actuarial assumptions included (a) 8% investment rate of return, and (b) 7.5% projected salary 
increase which includes an inflation component of 3.0%. The actuarial value of assets was 
determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments over a four-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a 
level percentage of payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period as of October 1, 
2003 was 26 years.  The City’s annual pension cost for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 
was $773,188. 

Fiscal year ending 

 Annual 
pension

cost (APC) 

 Percentage
of APC 

contributed 
Net pension 

asset 

September 30, 2003 
September 30, 2002 
September 30, 2001 

$ 773,188 
   706,219 
   605,911 

109% 
118% 
120% 

$ 386,687 
  389,736 
  258,036 

Development of Net Pension Asset (NPA) 

This municipal Defined Benefit Plan has been subject to the minimum funding standards since the 
adoption of the “Florida Protection of Public Employee Retirement Benefits Act” (Part VII of Chapter 
112, Florida Statutes) in 1980. 

The development of the Net Pension Asset to date is as follows: 

9/30/03 
Actuarially detrmined contribution (A) $ 769,696 
Interest on NPA (25,438) 
Adjustment to (A) 28,930 
Annual pension cost 773,188 

Contributions made 841,896 
Annual pension cost (773,188) 
Increase in NPA 68,708 
NPA beginning of year 317,979 
NPA end of year $ 386,687 

Concentration of Investments 

This plan does not have a concentration of investments that are not direct governmental obligations 
or agency securities that exceed 5% or more of plan net assets. 
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(C)  Municipal Firefighters’ Pension Plan 

Current membership is comprised of the following: 

Retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving
 benefits 32 
Employees no longer with the City entitled to benefits but not yet receiving 
them 2 
Active employees 132 

 Total 166 

Plan Description 

All full-time firefighters at least 18 years old are required to participate in the City’s Municipal 
Firefighters’ Pension Plan. The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries. This plan and any amendments were adopted through a City Ordinance 
by the City Council of the City of Cape Coral. A Board of Trustees administers the Plan. All costs of 
administering the plan are paid from plan assets. 

Funding Policy 

Employees contribute 7% of their compensation. The State of Florida makes contributions from taxes 
on casualty insurance premiums. The State of Florida’s Contribution to the Firefighters’ Pension Plan 
for fiscal year 2003 was $483,358. The City recognized these on- 

behalf payments from the State as revenues and expenditures in the governmental funds financial 
statements.  The City contributes the remaining amounts at actuarially determined rates that are 
designated to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The current rate is 23.9% of 
annual covered payroll. 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset 

The City has no net pension obligation (calculated in accordance with GASB No. 27, Accounting for 
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers) as all actuarially determined amounts are 
contributed each year. The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part 
of the October 1, 2002 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. The 
actuarial assumptions included (a) 8% investment rate of return, and (b) 7.5% projected salary 
increase which includes an inflation component of 3%. The actuarial value of assets was determined 
using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments 
over a four-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level 
percentage of payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period as of October 1, 2003 
was 26 years.  The City’s annual pension cost for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 was 
$1,063,609. 

Fiscal year ending 

Annual 
pension

cost (APC) 

Percentage
of APC 

contributed 
Net pension 

asset 

September 30, 2003 
September 30, 2002 
September 30, 2001 

$ 1,063,609 
1,028,984 
1,014,391 

101% 
103% 
105% 

$ 298,488 
   344,300 
   315,588 
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Development of Net Pension Asset (NPA) 

This municipal Defined Benefit Plan has been subject to the minimum funding standards since the 
adoption of the “Florida Protection of Public Employee Retirement Benefits Act” (Part VII of Chapter 
112, Florida Statutes) in 1980. 

The development of the Net Pension Asset to date is as follows: 
9/30/03 

Actuarially detrmined contribution (A) $ 1,060,471 
Interest on NPA (22,863) 
Adjustment to (A) 26,001 
Annual pension cost 1,063,609 

Contributions made 1,076,306 
Annual pension cost (1,063,609) 
Increase in NPA 12,697 
NPA beginning of year 285,791 
NPA end of year $ 298,488 

Concentration of Investments 

This plan does not have a concentration of investments that are not direct governmental obligations 
or agency securities that exceed 5% or more of plan net assets. 

(a) Defined Contribution Plan 

General Employees Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

The City established a single-employer defined contribution pension plan for department heads and 
administrative management general employees on April 23, 1997.  

3. Other Postemployment Benefits 

The City provides group health and life insurance benefits to its retired employees. All full-time regular 
employees are eligible for these benefits if actively employed by the City and meet the retirement 
requirements as set forth by the City. As of September 30, 2003 there were 281 retirees receiving medical 
benefits and 282 retirees receiving life insurance benefits. The cost of these benefits is paid by the City; 
retirees are responsible for dependent group health coverage, if selected by the retiree. The City finances 
the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis and recognizes expenditures at the time premiums are due. The 
premiums for these benefits, not including the retirees’ costs for dependent health coverage, totaled 
$1,362,650 during fiscal year 2003. 

4. Contingencies 

The City is currently receiving, and has received in the past, grants which are subject to special compliance 
audits by the grantor agency and which may result in disallowed expense amounts. These amounts, if any, 
constitute a contingent liability of the City. Accordingly, such liabilities are not reflected within the financial 
statements. The City does not believe any contingent liabilities are material. 

The City currently prepares rebate calculations on all debt subject to arbitrage per the United States 
Department of the Treasury Regulations, Section 1.148, and the Internal Revenue Service Code of 1986. 
Rebates, if any, are paid to the Internal Revenue Service every fifth year after the year of issuance. Within 
the five-year period, any positive arbitrage (liability) can be offset by any negative arbitrage (non-liability). 
These rebates constitute a contingent liability of the City. The City does not believe any contingent liabilities 
are material. 
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The City is a defendant in various lawsuits.  Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 
determinable, in the opinion of the City’s counsel the resolution of these maters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

5. Other Revenue 

Other revenue in Governmental Fund types at September 30, 2003 is as follows: 

Other 
General Gas Governmental 

Fund Tax Funds Total 
Insurance damage claims $         88,863 $             - $                697 $ 89,560 
Dock litigation support 60,500 - - 60,500 
Donations 49,336 1,200 10,110 60,646 
Electric co-op distribution 113,806 - - 113,806 
Federal police confiscation - - 9,877 9,877 
Fines 784,989 - 15,616 800,605 
Garage sales signs 8,697 - - 8,697 
Legal notice reimbursement 12,107 - - 12,107 
Recaptured state housing funds - - 282,664 282,664 
Road improvement contributions - - 554,057 554,057 
Sales of surplus material 154,944 1,706 - 156,650 
Tower leases 101,272 - - 101,272 
Other 10,931 3,070 25,117 39,118

 Total other revenue $    1,385,445 $         5,976 $         898,138 $ 2,289,559 

6. Subsequent Events 

In November 2003, the City issued $8,295,000 of Water Improvement Assessment Bonds 
(Southwest 3 Area), Series 2003 for the purpose of paying for a portion of the costs of the project 
and paying costs and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance and sale of the Series 
2003 Bonds. 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – BUDGET COMPARISONS 
September 30, 2003 

Budgetary Basis 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, the following Special Revenue 
Funds: gas tax, police confiscation-federal, police confiscation-state, fire impact fee, park impact fee, road 
impact fee, community redevelopment agency, community development block grant, local housing 
assistance, and greenscape donations, Debt Service, and all the Capital Projects Funds.  The budget to 
actual comparison for the general fund and major special revenue fund are presented on pages 75-76 of 
the required supplementary information and other governmental funds are presented on pages 97-113 of 
the combining statements. 

Budgetary Information 

The following procedures are used in establishing the legally adopted budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements. 

1. During July, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal 
year commencing the following October.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. On or before September 30, the budget is legally enacted by City Council through passage of an 
ordinance as required by City Charter, and an ordinance for setting the millage is passed as required by 
the State of Florida. 

4. The City Manager can authorize changes within a fund.  However, any other revisions require approval 
of the City Council.  Various supplemental appropriations were approved by the Council during the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. 

5. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, certain special revenue, 
debt service, and capital projects funds.  In addition, project-length financial plans are adopted for the 
capital projects funds. 

6.  Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level. 
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City of cape Coral. Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDmJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

For tno Yoar Ended September 30. 2003 

Variance with 
Ftnal Budget 

Budaeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Fin-al Amounts iN•gatlVel 

REVENUES 
Ta~es: 

Property $3 I ,302,869 $31,439,261 $32,014,131 $ S74,870 
Frand'liso 2,8 12,000 2,812,000 3,379,802 567,802 
Communication 3,199,300 3,199.300 3,791,547 592,247 

Licenses and pemils 3,602,278 3,602,278 595,301 (3,006,977) 
lntetgO\'emmentae 13.767.956 13,809,899 14,862.263 1,052,384 
Charg,es for seMCeS 7,122,280 7,1 59,280 10,078,573 2,919,293 
lntOrf>S1 income 333,293 333,293 478,613 145,320 
oin.r rovsnue 11•661200 1,580,004 11385,4-45 {194.S59l 

Total revenues 63,605,876 63,935,3 15 66,585,675 2,650,360 

EXPENDITURES 
Cl.irrent: 

Gene1'31 90vemment 13,804,567 14,285,511 12,447.269 1,838,2-42 
PubliC $;Ho.ty: 

Pol!ce 16,698,557 16,854,8-40 15,714,682 1. 140, Hi8 
Fire 11,893,860 12,422,431 11,662,507 759,924 

Public works 5,517,259 5,552,800 4.920,654 632,146 
Community deve,topment 1,348,3 13 1,347,988 1,122.139 225.849 
Parks and recreation 7,539,759 7,816,817 6.709,222 1,107,595 
Transportation 5,316,537 5,&68, 191 4,962,919 905,272 

Capnat outlay 10.026,249 16,315,029 11,296,921 5,018,108 
Debt $el'Vice: 

Principal 255,821 754,137 783,570 (29,433) 
tnleresf and fl.seal charges 35,461 35 461 83249 [47.788t 

Total expenditure$ 72,438,383 61 .253,205 69,7031132 11,S50073 

E~ce.ss of revenues over (under) expendltutes (8,832,507) (17,317.8901 (3.111,457) 14,200,433 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} 
Transfets in 4,165,919 4,415,919 1,-499,642 (2,916,217) 
Transfers out (1,217.881) (t.3821881! {1,3791129} 3,752 

T otaJ other nnancing sources (uses) 2,948,038 3,033,038 120513 !2,9 121525~ 
Net change in fund balance {5,864,469) (1',284.852) (2,996,944) 11,287,908 

Fund balance • beginning 16,540,262 16,540.262 16,540,262 
FuDd balance • endin9 $101655?93 $ 2.255.410 $13,543.318 s 11,2871908 
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City of Cape core.I. Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANO CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE· BUDGET ANO ACTUAL 
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND• GAS TAX FUND 

For the Year Ended Septembel' 30, 2003 

Variance with 
Final Budgel 

Budgeled Amounts Aclual PosiHvo 
Origlnal Final Amounts {N!:9atlve} 

REVENUES 
Gas taxes $ 5,760.000 s &.780,000 $ 6,407,369 s 647,369 

Interest income 150,000 150,000 80.280 (69,720) 

Other rovonue 11928-.904 t,557,278 &976 !1,&$1,3021 

Total revenues 7,838.904 7,467,278 6,493,625 !973,6&3) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Tr.1nsponation 
Capital outlay 

T olal $.Xt)endltures 

4,203,330 
532218 

4,735,548 

4,328.365 
535557 

4,863,922 

3,037,985 
241,296 

3,279,281 

1,290,380 
294,261 

1,584,641 

Excess of re..,enues CYvet expeodi1u,cs 3, 103,356 2,603,356 3,214,344 610,988 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfets in &00,000 &00,000 

T ,ansfers ou.1 
Total ~her financin9 sources (uses) 

Nel change In fund balance 
Fund balance • begiMing 
Fund ba~nce • ending $ 

(3,103,358) 
!3, 103,3S61 

5,640,343 
5 ,640.343 ~ 

!3, 103,3S6) 
(2,603,3&6! 

5.640,3.43 
! .640,343 $ 

!3, 103,356) 
!2,603,356) 

6 10,988 
5640 343 
s 2s1,331 1 ~ 

610,988 

lho,988 
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Municipal General Employo-os• Ponslon Plan 

SCWule Of Funding proq[lff 

Actu.,111 
v,,luetlon 

dlSI: 

1011103 

1011102 

1011101 
H)/ 1,00 

11)(1199 

10,1/9$ 

Actuarial 
\lalue of 

flfttJ(I) 

$ 67.•57, 18S 

64,400,318 

61,020,065 

55,7S3,997 

'8,732,134 

42,602,939 

Atnlltlll 
ac:,;rved 

1/abttltv (AAL.) 

10SEY ICI lb} 

• 74,973,737 

70.386.501 
67.057.431 

61.330.291 
54,827,900 

-48,698.'196 

Un.fvnded AAL 
(UAAU 
{b:a} 

$ 1,516,552 

$.983, 183 

6.03'1,366 

6,076,294 

6,095,766 

6,095,657 

fund.ct 

'"'° ,,on 
89.97% 
91.50% 

9 1,00,Y. 

90.17% 

88.88'ro 
87.•8% 

CoveNtd 
payroll (S) 

$ .23,066,4"9 

20,129,88 1 

20,003,002 

18,353,122 

16,561,449 

16,028.4$7 

UAALasa 
%of covered ....... 

(O>::f)l(l 

~'6% 
29.72% 

30.18% 

33.1 l 'ft 

36,81% 

38.03~ 

SelMdule of Contributl9n1 frpro £mPl9Y!' and Other Contribyt[QA Eftlltles 

Year ended 
Septernbet 30, 

Atln4.1.al 
required 

contritw& n 
Cily 

contribution contributed ··-
20()3 

2002 

2001 

2000 

1999 

1998 

• 1,783,328 

1,657, 129 

1,396,003 

1.393,259 

1,704,775 

1,987,058 

$ 1,783,828 

1,667,S29 
1,396,003 

1.393,259 

1.104,775 

1,987,058 

100% 

100% 

1001(. 

100% 

100% 
100% 
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Munlclpal Police Officers' Pension Plan 

Schedule of Fundlna Prosrttt 

Actuarial 
vafuaUon 

date 

Ac:tu arfal 
value of 

HH11 (t) 

Actuarial 
aoctued 

llabUitv (Ml) 
:,ntry •qe Cb\ 

Unfunded Ml 
(UAALl 

Ottl 

Fu~ed ,.uo 
(alb) 

eo ....... 
pawou (et 

UAAL Na 
% of CO\'ered 

oavroll 
f'b:!lfC) 

1011/03 

10,1/02 

1011/01 

1011100 

1011199 

1011198 

$ .t(),711,716 

38,577,451 

36,776,883 

33,669.857 

29.048,.797 

24,693,247 

$ 42.310,154 

40,lS8,240 

38,655,389 

35.651,001 

31 ,051.243 

26,549.027 

$ 1,596,438 

1,780,789 

1,878,506 

1,991,144 

2.002,446 

1,855,780 

96.22% 

95.59% 

95 .1◄ % 

94.◄ 2'% 

93,55% 

93 01'"4 

$ 7,922,388 

6,761,190 

6,817,312 

6,223,372 

5,860,653 

5.434,338 

20.18% 

26,34% 

27.S5% 

31.99% 

34.17% 

34. 15% 

Schf:dvlt g( Contrlbullons rrom Emp1owr and Other Contrtbutlpq Entitles 

Yoarendod 
September 30, 

Annual 
roqulred 

con &ribution 
Clly 

contribution 
Stow 

eontr lbuUOn 
Pon;, nt"g• 
eonttlbuted 

2000 

2002 

2001 

2000 

1999 

1998 

$ 1,312,328 

1,220.770 

1,013,061 

1.017.859 

1.060,689 

t,041,087 

$ 841,896 

837,919 

727,714 

803,742 

739.095 

718,472 

s 542,632 

470,433 

383,857 

348,252 

322.615 

322,615 

106% 

107% 

110% 
113% 

100% 

100% 

• Frozen per Chapto< 185, FlQrida Sl8tutes, es emended, 
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Munlclpal Firefighters' Pension Plan 

Schedule or Funding Prog,:;ess 

Actuar1a1 
valuatfon 

dato 

Acluatl.al 
val .... ot 

.,.,,, (a} 

Actuatlal a«,_, 
llabllltv (MU 
10kYl99 (bl 

Unfunded AAL 
(UML) 
lb::!! 

Funded 

"'"' (alb) 
Covered 

Rtvt9!1 (c) 

UML as a 
% ofeowred 

oavroll 
ffb:t)lc) 

10/110 3 

10/1i02 

10/1101 

1WUOO 

10/1199 

10/1198 

s "6.680, 169 

44,078,199 

41,812,673 

38.003,3 17 

32,395.878 

28,953.166 

$ 49,509.636 

47,055,340 

44,618,549 

40,732,255 

35,286,677 

29,230,516 

$ 2,829,467 

2,977,141 

2,745,876 

2,728,938 

2,890,799 

2.2n.3so 

s..-
93,67% 

93,8S% 

93,30% 

91.81% 

92.21% 

s 7,667,748 

6,958,668 

6,595,183 

6,444,523 

6.121 ,001 

6,105,742 

36.90% 
42.78% 

◄ 1.63% 

42.35% 

47,23% 

37.30% 

Schedule of Contributions from Emptpnr tad Other Contl'1buti rn, Entltl• t 

Year ended 
September 301 

Annual 
requited 

contribution 
City 

con tnbutlon 
State 

conttibutlon 
Percontago 
con tribut&d 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

1999 

1996 

s 1,543,829 

1,402,497 

1,382,949 

1,300.826 

1,681,770 

1,282.158 

s 1,076.306 

1,057,696 

1,068,855 

1,217, 149 

1,336,969 

9$6,963 

s 483,35$ 

344.801 

,344.801 

344,801 

344,801 

345,195 

101% 

100% 

102% 

120% 

100% 

100% 

• Frozen per Chapter 185, Florids s1a1ut.es, u amended. 
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The information presented in the required supplement.aty schedules was determined as part of 
the actuarial valuations a1 lhe dates Indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial 
valuation follows: 

Valuation date 
Actuc11l81 oost method 
Amortization mcthOd 

Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation m&lhOd 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return 
Projected salary increases· 
• lndudeS Inflation a t 
Post retirement COlA 

General 
cmployeos 

1011/02 
~rozen en1ry age 
l evel pero8ntage 

Closed 
21 ye:81$ 

4-year smoothing 

8.00% 
7.00% 
3.00% 
3.00% 

Police 
officers 

10/1/02 
Frozen entry age 
level peroentage 

Closed 
26 years 

4•yeor smoothing 

8.00% 
7.50% 
3.00% 
3.00% 

Firefighters 

10/1102 
Froz.en entry age 
Level percentaoe 

Closed 
26years 

4•year smoothing 

8.00% 
1.50% 
3.00% 
3.00% 



 

 

   

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for 
particular purposes. 

Á Court Training Fund – used to account for monies received from court fines, which are used for police 
education. 

Á Police Confiscation-Federal Fund – used to account for monies received from federal confiscation cases and 
used to purchase equipment for the Police Department. 

Á Police Confiscation-State Fund – used to account for monies received from the sale of confiscated items in 
non-federal cases and used to purchase equipment for the Police Department. 

Á Fire Impact Fee Fund – used to account for impact fees that are used to provide additional fire public safety 
facilities. 

Á Park Impact Fee Fund – used to account for impact fees that are used to provide recreational park facilities. 

Á Road Impact Fee Fund – used to account for impact fees that are used for transportation capacity 
improvements. 

Á Community Redevelopment Agency Fund – used to account for monies received from tax incremental 
revenue by all taxing authorities in the community redevelopment area. 

Á Community Development Block Grant Fund – used to account for monies received from the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development for community development. 

Á Revolving Loan Fund – used to account for monies received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development to fund loans to small businesses in the area. 

Á Local Housing Assistance Fund – used to account for monies received from the State to provide assistance to 
very low, low, and moderate income families for the purpose of obtaining affordable housing in the City. 

Á Seawall Phase IV, Phase V, Phase VI, Phase VII, and Phase VIII Funds – used to account for the collection 
of assessments after the construction of seawalls. 

Á Greenscape Donations Fund – used to account for donations received for landscaping medians on City 
streets. 
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DEBT SERVICE FUND 

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-
term debt principal and interest. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than 
those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. 

Á City Hall Complex Fund – used to account for the construction of a new City Hall Complex and for renovations 
and improvements of the old City Hall. 

Á Ecopark Fund – used to account for improvements at Ecopark from grants and City monies. 

Á Seawall Phase VII Fund – used to account for construction of seawalls. 

Á Cape Coral Six-Laning Fund – used to account for expansion of Cape Coral Parkway to six lanes. 

Á Santa Barbara Access Fund – used to account for construction of Santa Barbara Access. 

Á Del Prado Widening Fund – used to account for the construction to widen the North end of Del Prado 
Boulevard. 

Á Gleason Parkway Extension Fund – used to account for construction of Gleason Parkway Extension. 
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City of Cape Corot, Fk>rida 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

September 30, 2003 

Special Revenue 
Police Polle• 

C<>urt Confi&eation Confiscation 
Training Federal State 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents s 1,489 s 110,820 s 80,888 
Notes recetvable 
lntergovemmcntal receivable 
Prepeid items 
Restricted asseuments receivabkJ 

Total assets 1 469 110820 80,888 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable end other accrued liabi!it!e$ 289 
Accrued payroll 
Ove to other fun<!s 
Oefe.rred revenue 
Advances from other funds 

Total liabllltles 289 

FUND BALANCES 
Reserved for: 

EnC\Jmbtances 2,932 
Prepaids 
Debt service 

Unresec:ved. designated 
77,647 Unr&SCl"Vcd, undeslgnated 1,489 110,820 

110,820 80,579 Total fund tuilanoos (deflci1) 11489 
Tobll liabitlties and fund balances $ 1,489 $ 110,820 $ 80,888 



S~ecial Revenue 
Fire 

Impact 
Fee 

Park 
Impact 

Foo 

Road 
Impact 

Foe 

Community 
Redevelopment 

Agency 

Community 
Development 
Block Grant 

Revolving 
Loan 
Fund 

s 1,824,112 $ 3,184,303 $10,154,108 $ 590,978 

t,000 

s 
137,279 

$ 277,209 
562,081 

1,824,1 12 3,184,303 10, 154. 108 591,978 137 279 839,290 

19,495 12,3 12 169,287 6 ,869 
6,336 

58,259 
6,546 

72,474 

19,495 12,312 169,287 13205 137,279 

56,970 180,425 3,229 
1,000 

1,747,847 

1,804,617 
s 11824, 112 ~ 

3,151,991 

3,151,991 
3 ,164,303 

9,804,396 

9 ,984,821 
$ 10, 154110! I 

574,544 

578,773 
59 1,978 s 137,279 

839,290 
839,290 

$ 839,290 
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City ot Cape Corat, Florida 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (continued} 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAi. FUNDS 

September 30, 2003 

Special Revenue 
local 

Hou.sing Seawall Seawall 
Assistance Ph.1st rv Phase V 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash cq-ulvalents s 1,221,687 $ 78,955 $ 61,886 
Notes receiveb&e 
lntetgovemmental receivable 158,443 
Prepaid items 
Ros-ttlcced assessments receivable 500 8,632 

Total assets 1,380,130 79455 70 518 

LIABIUTIES 
Accounts payable and other accru&d l iabllltles 153,681 
Accrued payroll 531 
Due to other funds 
OetMred revenue 
Advances from other funds 

Total llabili11es 154,212 

FUND BALANCES 
Reserved for: 

Encumbrances 
Prepalds 
Debt service 

Unreserved, designated 
Unreserved, undesignated 1,225.918 79455 70.518 

Total fund ba~nces (deficit) 1,225,918 79,455 70.518 
T otsl liabilities and fund balances $ 1,380,130 I 79455 s 70.518 
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Spedal Revenue 

Seawall 
Phase VI 

s 21,325 

77,751 
99 076 

34,042 
68 073 

102,115 

(3,039} 
(3,039) 

$ 99,076 

Seawall 
Phase VU 

$ 11,440 

269,787 
301,227 

259.512 
2-42.164 
501,676 

(200,449} 
(200,449} 

$ 301,227 

Seaw-all 
Phase VIII 

$ 4,575 

12,297 
16,:872 

9,949 
19.031 
28,980 ' 

(12,108) 
(12 ,106) 

$ 1s,s12 

GrNnac,ape 
Donations 

s 33,201 

33,201 

33,201 
33,201 s 33,201 

Debt Servlee 
Fund 

$ 461,654 

461.678 

12,217 

449,4$1 

461,678 s 461,678 
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Cfty of Cape Coral, Floc!da 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (conllnuod) 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Seplem.ber 30. 2003 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Notes receivable 
lnterQ(Wemmenlal recetvable 
Prepaid items 
Restricied assessments receivable 

Tota! assets 

L IABILITIES 
Accounts payable and otl\8r accrued liabltities 
Accrued pS)'Toll 
Due to olher tund.s 
Deferred revenue 
Advances ftom other fvncls 

Total l~bi!itlM 

FUND BALANCES 
Reserved for. 

Encumbrances 
Propaids 
Debt service 

Unreserved, designated 
Unreserved, I.Wlclesfgn.$ted 

Total fund balances (dollct't) 
Total nabili1ies encl f1,1ncl balances 

City Hall 
Comelex 

$ 

C.apltal Projects 

Ecopatk 

s 90,000 

548,915 
3,530 

642,445 

17,829 

606,738 

624,565 

10,606 
3,530 

3544 
17,880 

$ 642,445 

Seawall 
Phase VII 

s 

445.440 

{445,440! 
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Caeital ProJeets Total 
Gleason Nonmajor 

Cape Coral Santa Barbara Del Prado Parkway Governmental 
Six-Laning Access Widening Extension Funds 

$ 1,410,693 s 798,449 s 1.294,021 $ 1,683,260 $ 23,375,033 
562,081 
844,661 

4,530 
388,967 

1 410,693 798,449 1 294 021 1,683,260 25,175,272 

102,745 45 58,359 5,268 604,438 
13,413 

679,210 
300,503 
329268 

102.745 45 58,359 5.268 1,929832 

54,722 11,081 133.~6 61,175 972,293 
4 ,530 

449,461 
1,253,226 787,323 1,102,366 1,616,817 20,038,310 

1,780,846 
1,307,948 798,404 1.235,662 1

1
677,992 23,245,440 

s i ,410,693 s 798,449 s 1,294,021 ~ 1,683,260 ! ~g-175,272 
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Qty of Cape C-oral, Fbnda 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. ANO CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Vear Ended Sept"'mbet 30, 2003 

Special Revenue 
Police Police 

Court Confiscation Confiscation 
Tra.ininSil Fed eral State 

REVENUES 
Ta)(es $ s $ 
Special assessments 
lntergoYernmental 
Impact fees 
Interest income 20 3,026 624 
Other revenue 76 9877 37199 

Total revenues 96 12,903 37,823 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Public Safety: 

Polioe 

••• 
Parks and rea eation 

7,894 

Transportation 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal re~ement 
lntere,st charges 

To<aJ expenditures 7.894 

Excess reYenues 
ove, {under) expenditure$ 96 12,903 29.929 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 4,884 
Transfers out (167,940) (4,884) 

Bond proceeds 
Payn,em to esaow agent ror refunding 

Total other llnanclng sources (uses} ! 187,940) 
Net change In fund balances 

Fund botanees • beginning 
Fund bagances • ending 

96 
1,393 

$ 1,489 s 
(155,037) 
265,857 
110,820 s 

29,929 
so,sso 
ao s19 
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se:eclal Revenue 
Fire 

Impact 
fff 

Park 
lmpac.t 

Fee 

Road 
Impact 

Fee 

Community 
Redevelopment 

Agency 

Communlty 
Oovtlopment 
Block Grant 

Revolving 
Loan 
Fund 

s s $ s 427,622 s $ 

1,190,923 
20,178 

,.21 1,1 0 , 

3,465,016 
58,515 

3.521 ,531 

S.426,170 
99,744 

551 175 
6,077,089 

8,808 

436 430 

538,125 

538, 125 

22,924 
200 

23, 124 

234,544 538,125 1,552 

32,052 

246,234 

36,942 

3,267.513 
125,724 
270,173 1,771 

416,250 

278.286 3,740,705 395,897 236,315 536,125 1,552 

932,815 (219,174) 5,681 ,192 200 115 21,572 

136,264 
(208,291) 
645,000 

(722,857) 
(149,884) 
782.931 

1,021.666 
1 1,5&1 !l? 

231,935 
(452,870) 

1,120,000 
p .241,492) 

(342,427) 
{661,601) 

3,713,592 
I 3 151 1991 

1

(2,166,397) 

(2,166,397) 
3,514,795 
6.470,026 

~ .984,821 I 

(62,695) 

(62,695) 
137,420 
441,353 
576,773 

21,572 
817,718 

J 839,290 
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City of Cape Coral, Flori~ 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (c.ontinued) 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
Fo< tt\O Year En6od September 30, 2003 

Seeclal Revenue 
Local 

Ho u.sing Seawall Seaw all Seawall 
Assistan ce PhaM IV Phan V Phase VI 

REVENUES 
Taxes s s $ s 
Special assess.ments 33. 105 
lntergovtWnm611tal 927,985 
lmpa~ fees 
lntetes.t income 19,730 1,188 1,620 7,305 
Olher revenue 282,664 920 1,381 

Total revenues 1,230,378 1. 189 2,540 4 1 791 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General govemment 1,190,366 3,748 
Public sar&ty: 

Police 
FJ,o 

Parks and recreation 
T ransport.aUon 

Capital outtay 
Debt servk:e: 

Principal reti'ement 
Interest charges 

Total ex~ndltures 1,190,366 3,748 

Excess revooues 
r,ver (under) expenditures 40,013 1,189 2,540 38,043 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfefs in 
Transfers out 
Sood proceeds 
Payment to esc:row agent for refuncling 

Total other fllanQng sources (uses) 
N et chang& In funcs balances 

Fund balances ~ beginning 
Fund ba&ance, • ending 

40,013 
1,185,905 

5 1,2251918 ~ 

1,189 
78,266 
7§,455 $ 

2,540 
67,978 
70,5 18 I 

38,043 
(4 1,082) 

!3,039l 
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Sp•cfal Revenue 

Seawall 
Phas&VU 

Seawall 
Pllase VIII 

Grffnseape 
DonaUons 

O&bt Service 
Fund 

s 
142,394 

$ 
1,663 

s $1,712,396 

2,497 
71~ 

145,605 

1,327 
194 

3,184 

614 
10,110 
10 924 

16,562 
49 

1,729,007 

156,724 914 27,856 80,427 

156,724 914 27,856 

1,753,333 
1,287, 158 
3,120,916 

(11 ,119) 2 ,270 (16,932) (1,391,911) 

(676) 

(676) 
( 11 ,795) 

1186,654! 
J :200.«s: ~ 

2,270 
(14,378) 
~1211081 s 

(16,932} 
50,133 
33,201 

1,502,622 
(366,199) 

8,705,000 
(8,613,614) 
1.225,809 
(166,102) 
627,760 

I 4611678 
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City of C.tpc Coral. Fbrida 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPE.NDJT\JRES, ANO CHANGES IN FUND BAI.ANCES (c;,ontinued} 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Special ass8$$menls 
lntergovemmental 
Impact fees 
Interest income 
Other revenue 

T o1al revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
current: 

Geno,al govetM'lttnt 
Public Safety; 

Pollce 
Fire 

Parks and recreation 
Transportation 

CapltaJ ou1fay 
Debt service: 

Principal retkement 
Interest charges 

Total expenditures 

Excess revenues 
over {under) expenditures 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
fa, the Year Ended Septembet 30. 2003 

Capital Projects 

City Hall Seawall Cape Coral 
Com,elox Eco,eark PhHO VII Six-Lanlns 

$ s s s 
554,817 

929 69,994 
3,488 

929 554 817 73 482 

156,179 662,006 7,383.266 

156 179 662,006 7,383,266 

(155,250) (107,189) (7,309.784) 

OTHER FI NANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 90,000 876 3,800,000 
Transfers out 
Bond proceed• 
Payment to esecow agen1 f0t refunding 

Total other financing soUlc&S {uses) 
Net Change In fund balances 

Fund balances • beginning 
Fund balanoes • end:ing 

(155,250) 
155,250 

s s 

90,000 
(17,189) 
35,069 
171!~ I 

6 76 
678 

(676) 

3 800 000 
(3,509,784) 
4,817,732 

I l.3l!f.!ili! 
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Cae;ltal ProJects 

Santa Barbara Dtl Prado 
Acceas Widening 

Gleason 
Parkway 

Extenalon 

TotJI 
Nonmajor 

Govemmtntal 
Funda 

$ 

18 ,566 
91 

18,657 

$ 

22,760 

22 760 

s 

17,464 

17 464 

$ 2, 140,018 
177,162 

2.020.927 
10,082,109 

392.596 
898.138 

1si710,9so 

2,234,256 

530,063 387,262 3 11 ,898 

7.894 
32,052 
36,942 

125,724 
13,236,365 

530,063 387,262 311,898 

2. 169,583 
1,287,158 

19,129,974 

(511,406) (364,502} (294.434) (3,419,024) 

s 
(511.406) 

1,309,810 
798,404 

(364,502} 
1,600,164 

S 112351662 

2,000,000 

2.000,000 
1,705,566 

(27,674) 
S 1,677,992 

7,786.381 
(3,431,952) 
10,470,000 

(10,577,963} 
4,228,486 

807,442 
22,437,998 

s 23,245,440 
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City or Cape Coral, Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAHCES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
POLICE CONFISCATION· FE.DERAL SPEClAl. REVENUE FUND 

FOt the Yt3/ En<Jed September 30, 2003 

Variance with 
Final Budgel 

Bud9!ted Amounts Actual Positive 
Or1Q1na1 i!'lnal Amounla (N!Qatlve! 

REVENUES 
Interest income s $ $ 3,026 s 3,026 
0th« revenue 240,000 240,000 9877 !230, 1231 

Total reYenues 2 40 000 240,000 12,903 (227,097) 

EXPENDITURES 
Public Safety: Police 12,060 72,060 72,060 

Exoess or revenue$ over expenclilvtes 167,940 167.940 12,903 (155 ,037) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfe,s OU1 (167,940! !167,940) p67,9401 

Net change rn fund balances (155,037) (155,037) 
Food balances • begwllng 265,857 265857 265857 
Fund btllonces • en~ $ 265857 $ 265,857 s 110,820 s jl55,037! 
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City of Cape COtal, Florid.'! 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPeNDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES. BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
POLICE CONFISCATtON • STATE SPEClAL REVENUE FUND 

For lhe Yea,1 Encl&CI Scptembet 30, 2003 

Variance wllh 
Final Budget 

Budlil!led Amounts Actual PotllM 
Original Final Amounts tNegatlve! 

REVENUES 
lnltfW ineomo s . s $ 624 s 624 
Other revenue 40,000 40000 37, 199 (2,601) 

Tola! revenues 40 000 40000 37,823 {2,177) 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety: Police 40,000 40,000 7,894 32 106 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 29929 29 929 

OTHER FlNAHCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfe<s in 4,884 4,884 
Tran.sfe<s out 

Total other financing souroes (uses) 
(4,884) ,41884! 

Net ch&nge a\ fund balance, 29,929 i9,929 
Fund balances• beglnnhg 
Fund Wlanee, • ending $ 

501650 !<S.m I 
50,650 
50,650 

50,650 
$ 80,579 $ 29929 
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City of Cape Coral. Florid.a 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AHO CHANGES IN FUN.D BALANCES· BUDGET ANO ACTUAL 
FIRE IMPACT FEE SP£CtAL REVENUE FUND 

F0< the Year Ended Septembel 30, 2003 

Varl1nee with 
FIMI BUdg♦t 

Budgeted Amount• Actual Poaldve 
Ortalnal Final Amounts (N•aatlv.~ 

REVENUES 
Impact fees s 400,000 s 58.S,160 s 1,190,923 $ 605,763 

Interest income 16,000 16,000 '20,178 4 178 

TotM rc~ 416,000 601,160 1.211, 101 609 9'1 

EXPENDITURES 
Public U fOty: Are 243,525 328,289 32,052 296,237 

Capital outlay 45802 165 673 245234 ,ao1561t 

Total e:q,,endilures 289,327 493962 2 78 286 215676 

Excess o# re-venues Oil'$r expendilures 126,673 107198 932 815 825 6 17 

OTitER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

T rani;fers In 136,26' 136,264 

Tr:insfers out (160,3'6) ( 165,605) (208,291} (42,68$) 

Bond proceed& 38,673 645.000 645,000 

Pay.Ml\1 to escrow egent for refunding F2218S7l F 22.as1t 

Tola! other financing~~ tuses) 112e.s1Jt i107,19&t ~149,M4t !•2.686! 

Not c::hf.n,g♦ In fund balances 782,931 782.,931 

Fund balances . beginni1"19 

Fund balances• ending s 
1.021 686 

1.021.686 

11021.686 

• 1,001,686 s 
1,021 .686 
1,SOC.617 s 742,931 
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C!ly of Ca;H CoQI, A c11tcta 

SCHEDUU Of! REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AH.D CHANGES IN FUND BAI.ANCES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
PARK IMPACT FEE SP!C&AL MVENUE FUND 

FQf' lhe Yur Ended Sei,tetnbet 30, 2003 

V•riance with 
Flnal Boduet 

Bo5!ieted Amounts Actual Positive 
or1a tl'\l.1 Fln•I Amounts jN5attw1 

REVENUES 
l~fM$ $3,306,837 $5.829,330 $3,465.016 $i2,3&4,314) 

Interest Income 69,000 69000 56515 {1214851 

Total nwenues 3,375,837 5,698,330 31S21,S3t (2,376,799) 

EXPENDmJRES 
Pam and recreation 1,325,200 36,9"2 1,288,338 

Capita-I oullay 3,087,847 3,888,938 3,287,5 13 60 1,◄ 25 

Debt service: 
Prtnclpal 416J50 4 16.2-50 

Total e>q>ef'lditutes 3,087,847 s 630 ◄68 1 1 3 740 705 l.889a763 

Excess of reverwes under oxpordtures 287 990 267,862 (219,174) (487,036) 

OTHER ANANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 23t ,935 231,935 

T rans!er& OU1 (379,303) \376,305) (452,870) (74,585) 

Bond proceeds 91,313 1,120,000 1,120,000 

Payment to escrow agent for r~ \Jnding (1,2411492} ( 1.241,492) 

Total other tlna1'<:lng sources (uses) !287,990} (267,862) !342,◄271 i7◄ ,SG.Sl 
Not ehatlge in r,Jnd balances {561,601) (561,601) 

Fund bMal'lces • beginning 3,713,-592 3 713.592 3,713,592 

Fond balat'lces • ending S 3,713,592 s 3i713,s92 $3,151,991 $ !561,601~ 
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City of Cape coril. Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDJTURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
ROAD IMPACT FEE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOf (he Year Ended September 30. 2003 

Bud:aett,d Amounts 
Or'llilinal Final 

REVENUES 
lmp'1el fees s 2,543,320 s 2,543,320 

Interest income 
Other revenue 2,5871633 2,587,633 

Total revenues 5,130,953 5,130,953 

EXPENDITURES 
Transportation 2,191,282 2,321,006 
Caphal outlay 867,63.l 737,909 

Total •xi>ondituros 3058915 3p58,915 

E.'icces.s of revenues ewe< expenditures 2.on,ooa 2,072,038 

OTHER FINANCI NG SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (2,072,033! (2,072,0c38! 

Net change in fund b313nees 
Fund balances• beginning 5,470,026 6 ,470,026 

Fund balances• ending s 6,470,026 s 61470,026 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Actual PosiUv• 
Amounts IN!i•tl'Vt} 

s 5 ,42&,170 S 2,662,&50 
99 ,744 99,744 

551 175 !2,036,4S8l 
6,077,089 946,136 

125,724 2,195,282 
270,173 487 736 

395 897 2,663,018 

5.681.192 3,609, 1S4 

(2,166,397! !94d29! 
3 ,514,795 3,514,795 
6 ,470.026 

$ 9,984,821 s 315 14,195 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET ANO ACTUAL 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

For th& Year Ended Sopteni>or 30. 2003 

Actual 

Amounts 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 
{N• gauva} 

S 427,622 

8,808 
s (396,691) 

1.808 

436,'30 (394,883) 

234,544 369,708 
1 TT1 156,574 

236,315 

200,115 
526,282 

131.399 

(62,695) 
137,420 

441,353 
S 578 TT3 s 

6 021 

137,420 

137.420 

REVENUES 

PrOC)CrtytaxM 
Interest inoome 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Gener&I government 

Capital ou!Jay 
Total expendltlJtes 

Excess or r6Vtt'lue.s ove, e;cpenditure.s 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

TrMSlc,'$ out 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances • beginning 
Fund balances - ending 

B udgeted Amounts 

Orlilnal 

s 976,060 
7000 

983,060 

756,093 
156.251 

914.344 

68,716 

(68,716) 

441 .353 

s 441 ,353 

Flnal 

S 824.313 
7000 

831 ,313 

604.252 
158 345 

762,597 

68,716 

(68,716) 

441 ,353 

S 441353 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEHOrr\lRES, A.NO CHANGES IN FUNO BALANCES · BUDGET AKO ACTUAL 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT B LOCK GRAHT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Variance with 
Flnal Budget 

Bucl9eted .Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES 

tntergovemmenlal $ 1.049,4a3 S 1,026,445 $ 538,125 $ (488,320) 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 1,049,4a3 1.026,445 538,125 488,320 

Excess of revenues over expendibJre$ 
Fund balances • begiooing 

Fund balances • ending s s s s 
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City or c~ Core1, Flerlt!a 

SCHEDU\.E ~ REVtNU£$, EXPENOITUA!!S, AHO CHAHGl!S IN AJHD BAL.AHCts • BUDGET AHD ACTVAL. 
LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE SPECIAL REVENU£ FUNO 

For 11n, YNt En.I«! $tp1wmbtr 30. l003 

Varlanu with 
Flnal Budget 

Budilotlfd Amounts Actual PotltfV9 
Orfplnal Final Amount• lN!i•Uve) 

REVENUES 
lntergovenvnental $1,658,012 S l .◄ 95,176 $ 927,985 s (567.191) 
Interest income 19,730 19.730 
Other revenue 593,2S3 282 664 !3101589} 

Total revenues 1,656,012 2,088,•29 1,230,379 (BM,050) 

EXPENDITURES 
General govenvnent 1 658,012 2,068,429 1.190,366 898,063 

Excess of rev9nues over e:xpendit\lrt$ 40,013 40,013 

Fund balances • beginning 1, 185 90S 
1

1 185 905 1. 1&51905 

Fund balances• ending S 1,185,905 $1,185,905 $1.225,918 $ 40,013 
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City Of C8')t Ccnl, Florida 

SCH!.DUI.E Of REVENUES, EXPENDITTJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BA.L.AHCES • BUOOET AHO AC1VAl 
OREENSCAPE OONAnOHs SPl!:CW. R!VOIUI! FUN.D 

FOr !tie Year Ended Sel)Oember 30, 2003 

REVENUES 

lntereM Wlcome 

Olltet reventJe 
TO!JI ro~ues 

8ud9• t.ci Amounts 
O!!Blnal Final 

s s 
380.600 408,457 

380.600 408,-467 

s 

Ac.1ual 
Amounts 

814 
10,110 
t0,924 

Vari ance with 
Flnal Budgt-1 

Positive 
iNeg.atMIJ 

$ 814 

!39i,347l 
(397,533) 

EXPENOITURES 
General gOYemrnent 

Excess o f revenues under exp 
Fund balances • beglnnlno 

Fund ball!lnoes • ending 

ondil~11·ts 
380600 

50133 

$ 50,133 

408457 

50 133 

$ 50,133 s 

27856 

(16.932) 
50133 
33201 $ 

380 601 

(16.932) 

,,s,932l 



City or C:ape Coral, Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXP£NDmJRES, ANO CHANGES IN FUNO BALANCES • BUDGET ANO ACTUAL 
0£8T SERVICE FUND 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Variance wlth 

Final Bud-gel 
Bu~• tod Amount , Ac:tual Potitlve 

Original Ffnal A.mounts i NeQ ■tlW) 
REVENUES 
PrOporty IOKN $ 1,677,912 $ 1,6 77,912 s 1,112,396 $ 34,,464 
Interest Income 16,562 16,562 
Ottier revenue 49 49 

T otaJ revonuos 1,677,912 1.sn s12 1,729,007 51,095 

EXPENDITURES 

08"efa! government 79,185 80,427 (1,242) 
Oebl servioe: 

Pri~ 1,781,433 1,763,242 1,753.333 9 ,909 
Interest and flseaJ Charges. t 292 636 11310 ,086 I 287 158 22930 

T ocal ♦xpenditures 3,074 069 3 Hi2 S15 
1 1 3,120 9 18 31,597 

Excess of ,evenvn under expendib.lres (1,396,15 7) (1.474,603} (1,391,911) 82.692 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfen In 1,396,157 1,395.418 1,502,622 107,204 
Ttansrers ovl (368,200) (368,199) 1 
Bond proceeds. 9,280,455 8,705,0C() (575,455) 
Pfymenl to e&CtOW agent tor relundi~ !81833,070) (816131614l 219 456 

TotJI OlhGr financi'lg sources (uses) 1,396 157 1 474 ,603 , .2251809 £248?94l 
Nel c:h.ange in fund balances (166,102) {166,102) 

Fund b81ar'K:es • bogirriig 

Fund balances • ending s 
621,780 
621780 

627180 
$ 627,700 • 

627 780 
451,678 s i166.102! 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
CITY HALL COMPLEX CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

From Inception and ror lhe Ye3r Ended September 30, 2003 

Prlor Currtnt Total to Pr0;ject 
Years Year Date AUthOtizatlon 

REVENUES 

ln1erest income s 924,609 s 929 s 925,538 $ 

Other revenue 7 439 7 439 340,000 

Total revenues 932,048 929 932,977 340,000 

EX.PENDrT\JRES 

General Govemmenl 664,458 664,458 

Capll&I oul!ay 21,586,659 156 179 21?42,838 27,305,1 13 

Total expendib.Jre& 2225111 7 156 179 22,407,2ge 27,305,113 

Excess o f revenues under expenditures {21.319,069) (155,250) (21,474,319) (26,965,113) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

OebC prooee(ls 16.220,235 16,220,235 18,375,000 

T t11nsfers In 6,843,494 6,843,494 8,590,113 

Transfer out ,, ,se9410J (1,589,.410) 1 

Total other financing sources (uses) 21.474319 21,474,319 26,965,113 

Net change in fund balances s 155,250 (1SS,2S0) $ s 
Fund balances• b~innlng 1S5,2.SO 

Fund baiances • endln!J s 
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City of C&pe C0tal. Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, ANO CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES .. BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
ECOPARK CAPITAL. PROJECTS FUND 

Ftom tneeptiQn 1nd ror the v .. , Ended September 30, 2003 

REVENUES 
lnto,vovenvnental 

Pno, 
v .... 

$ 754,788 

Current 
Yu, 

s 554.$17 

Total to 
o ... 

$ 1,309,605 

Pl'ojeCI 
Authorization 

$ 1,344,374 

EXPENDITURES 
capital outlay 

Excess of revenues under expenditures 
805,159 

(50,371) 
662006 

(107,189} 

1,467 165 

{157,560) 

1 482274 

{137,900} 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 
Transfer out 

Total olher financing sources {uses) 
Net change in fund balances 

Fund t,at,nce$ .. beginnir,g 
Fund balances • coding 

s 

2 1S,339 

!129,6"9! 
65,440 
35069 

s 

90,000 

90000 
(17,189) 

35 069 
17880 

s 

305,339 

!'29,899! 
175,440 

17.880 $ 

137,900 

137900 
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City of Cape COtal. FIMda 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANO CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
SEAWALL PHASE VU CAPITAL PROJ ECTS FUND 

From lnoeption and for the Year Ended Sep:embet 30, 2003 

Prior 
Years 

Current 
Year 

Total to 
Date 

Project 
Authorization 

REVENUES s $ $ s 

EXPENDrTURES 

Capital May 
Excess of revenuos under expenditures 

437 526 
(437,5281 

437 526 
(437,5281 

522.240 
(522,240) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfer$ in 

N 01 Ch#nge In fund balances 
Fund balances• beginnin,g 

Fund balances• ending 

_ 
$ 

_;4:,36=8::,50e... 
(676) 

___ 

s 

_,,6e;78e_ 
678 

1676) 

$ 

437 526 522 240 
as~ __ .;. 
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City of Cape Coral. Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDrTURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES• BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
CAPE CORAL SIX-LANING CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

From Inception encl for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Prk>r Current Total to Project 
Yu,- Year Date Authortutlon 

REVENUES 

lmerest Income $ 209,001 s 69,994 S 278,995 S 

Olher re"Venue ------'- __ .,,"'"'8'--_ J 48 3 488 
Total r'O'VOOOCS 209,001 73 '82 282.483 

EXPENDITURES 

Ca.pltaf outlay t 1,812,573 7.383,266 u~, 195i839 20,2 t1,497 
Exces-s of revenues undet expendil.Ufes (11,603.572) {7,309,784) (1 8,9 13,356) (20,2 17,497) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) 

Transftts in 16,421 ,304 3,800,000 20,22 1,304 20,2 17,-497 
Ne1 change in fund balances $ 4,8 17,732 (3,509,764) $ 1,307,946 s 

Fund b31:tniees • beginning 4 8 17 732 

Fund balances• ending $ 1,307,948 
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City of cape COtel, Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENOfT1JRES, ANO CHANGES IN FUND a.A.LANCES· BUDGET ANO ACTUAL 
SANTA BARBARA ACCESS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
From lnception aM f« lhe Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Prior Curre.nt Total to Projoct 

Years YHr Data AuthorluUon 

REVENUES 
Interest ir-como $ 39,312 $ 18,566 $ 57,878 $ 

0.her revenue 50,000 91 50,09\ 

T ocal revenues 89,312 18GS7 107 969 

EXPEN.DITURES 

Capital outlay 1979502 530063 21509.565 4 sso n2 
E,o;o$$ or rev-enu-e:s under expenditures (1.890,190) (511,406) (2,40 1,596) (4,sso.m> 

OTiiER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 3.200,000 3.200,000 4,eso.,n 
Net change in fund ba4atl(es s 1.309,810 (St 1.4/Je) s 798,404 s 

Fund balances• beg!nnlng 
Fund balances • ending • 

1 309810 
798,4(),f 
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CilY ot Cape Coral, Florid.J 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 8UOOET AND ACTUAL 
DEL PRADO WIDENING CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

From lnceplion and fQr the Yea, Ended septembet 30, 2003 

REVENUES 
lnterast Income 

!',lo< 

Years 

$ t64 

Current 
Year 

$ 22,760 

Total to 
Date 

$ 22,924 

Project 

Authortutlon 

$ 

EXPENDITURES 

Capital outlay 
Excess of revenues over {under) 9)(pendiWre$ t64 

387 262 
(364,502) 

38'7262 
(364,336) 

1,6001000 
(1,600,000) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Tramfers in 

Net change in fund balance$ 

Fund balanotS • beginning 
Fund balances• ending 

11600,000 
$ 11600.164 

s 

(364,502) 
1 600,16,4 
1,235,662 

1,6001000 
$ 112351662 $ 

116001000 

111 



Cify of Cape Coral, Florida 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANO CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES · BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GLEASON PARKWAY EXTEHSK>N CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

From Inception and for the Year Ended SOpttmber 30, 2003 

REVENUES 
Interest inoome s 

Prior 
Years 

Current 
v .. , 

$ 11,,e, 

Total to 
0.ate 

$ 17 i464 

Project 

Authorlutlon 

$ 

EXPENDITURES 

capital outlay 

EJ«:e.$S ot revenues under expenditures 

147 653 

(147,653) 

311898 

(294,434) 

459 551 

(442,087) 
2.,200,000 

(2,200,000} 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 
Net change in fund balMCO$ 

Fund bal-,nee$. t,egtnnlng 
Fu:nd b:i:1~$ • en~ 

$ 

120,079 

,21.s1, 2 

2 ,000,000 
1,705,566 

(271574} 
$ 116771992 

2,120,079 
s 1,677.992 

2 .2001000 
s 
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds a.re used to acoount for activity for which a fee is charged to e"l(ternal users for goods 0r s.ervices 

• YaCht B.asln Fund - used to account for the operaOOos of the City's public marina and dOCkS. 

• Buildlng Division Fund - used to accounl ror the City's construction permi1ting activities.. 

• Goff Course Fund - used to acc1X1nt for lhe opera1lons of the City's pubUC golf course. 

• Water Park Fund - used 10 aet;.OUnl f01 the operations of the Cliy's public watct partt and aqua!ic facilities. 
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••• 

ASS!TS 
C161'enl assets: 
cm and cash equivaletlis 
Aooounts recew&b'le, 11e1 
k'lv~t10ries 
Prepiakl •ms 

T«al curren.1 ~ 

Noncurr-'11 HMts: 
R.tstr~cd CW\ and e11sfl eq.J!vft!nts 
IJnamQl1itctd bond issue (m1S 
~!)GI~ 

8\lildings 
&Jilding impfovemen.ts 
rmprovemems oll'ler tlafl buNlngs 
Equ;,rnent 
ConSll\JellOn In progt't\» 

Less accumWted deP1"'cia1ion 
Total c.apilal ns,cts. net 

Total norn;urren.t a.ue~s 
Toi.I assets 

'""' 

UA81l.m:ES 
current l ai:111~1$$; 
AccQunts P"Yllble and oltlet awuG(l liiQill!ies 
Accrued p&)T(jl and 00mpensaeed al>Senoes 

T 0-.111 curren.l !lablQs 

OJ~ lillbililies $)8)'801e lfom reslrictod as,e,;s: 
0.posits 
Accf'lle(I itli«est payable 
Debi: 

Revenue bonds 
Capilal lea.ses 

T«sl debl 
Oc!'e~ fi:venue 

roia1 current fiaoillties payable rrom 
resiri~ assets 

Noncurrenl liabililif!s: 
Aclva,11($$ from Oltler runos 
CCirnpensa~d acsenoos 
o.,,t 

Revenue bonds 
Cll)ital 1eases 

T Ola! di!bl! 
Tot.al rt0nC1XreM liabl/tfes 

Tot:il lbbiltie!I 

NET ASSETS 
lln't!lti:Kf ~ capieill 85$$1$, nel of ,eta~ debl 
un,es,icr,ie,d 

To<.:il ~ assett 

City of Cape Con!, Ftorida 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSeTS 
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Sc91K3mbcr 30. 2003 

y-
Basin 

&iildlng 
Division 

' 290,802 S 3,052,S.S 
3,026 

1.492 
2~.320 3,052,845 

20,555 

628,781 
3,583 422,2:26 

37,517 
(326, 1002 195,018) 
J26n9 364 725 
32s1n g 
622 049 

364 725 
34 17.370 

11,071 10,3, 146 

'1'58 
15.58 

19':f7 297 as 

4,873 292. 171 

4,$13 292,171 

7,6MI 256,095 

7.~§ 
28,061 }Q~ 

328,n9 364,72$ 

' 
~7259 ,., ... s 

21206,796 
2 s 11 s21 

1 1

OOff 
Course 

' 377.580 

30.070 
8,124 

4 l 3,774 

18J,653 
96.382 

1,5~,304 
,.,~ .eoo 
2,227,2'1 

897,448 
3,877 

{2~301927} 
3~6,750 
3 , 6 786 
J.no,s59 

37,460 
48,101 
83,561 

45.633 

38$,()(10 
7,710 

3§17 10 
131 977 

570,659 

53,04-3 
•8.742 

3,878,880 
7 1,(l°ro 

J.s!io.d59' 
4 052.344 
4 706,464 

11, 1 Ul,519) 
330,814 

' t?,!519061 

Wat•r 
Paik 

' i,089 
,.~02 

1 ♦,540 

30,231 

1 71.◄ 78 
13,720 

29.492 
$20,660 

3,327 
4,620,902 

669,921 

{2,9'3319641 
2 910 347 
3

1
~ 1SC5 

3 125,778 

40,537 
491629 
90,166 

265.000 

255,000 

255,000 

346,480 
40,026 

1,3 18,640 

ll~h&.&:m 
I 1(b 140 
2,048,3'2 

' 
1,338,707 
i26112,3t 

11077104 

To-1al 

$ 3.730,118 
,,628 

, 9,610 
7 $18 

3,791,970 

JSS.131 
110.102 

1,&4♦,3S1 
1,6!0.•78 

3.327 
7,476,924 
1,793,176 

41,394 
is.rss1oes1 
6,828 561 
7 293,744 

11,086 754 

192,214 
294182'.5 
•86,839 

297,283 
45,$33 

SM),(100 

7110 
647,710 
13U7? 

1,122,603 

m .Sl3 
352,522 

5,195,520 
71679 

~:~:: 
7,iij'.M§ 

913,642 
2,5'3i!26 

l 3i457 l-068 
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City Cl Cape c.orat. Floricla 

STATEMENT OF REVfNUES, EXPENSESAN:DCHA.NGES lN FUND NET ASSETS 
NONMAJ()R; ENTERPRISE FUNOS 

for fie vea, Ended $e?'!fflbet 30, 2000 

Ya-cht 
Bas.In 

ButldlnQ 
DM1l on 

Goll 
Course 

W•tff 
Park Tolll 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for semces 
Other reven!U! 

Total operalif'19 revenues 

$ Z'7,2n 

247 277 

$ 4,789,861 
227650 

5017511 

S1,407,&'4 
5 108 

1 412 752 

11,965,244 
13 179 

1697ll1423 

• 4,410.026 
245.t37 

8.68;S.5e3 

OPERATING EXPDISES 
S81aries, ~ea 8l'ICI empbyee benellla 
COnlt8CIU81 SMtlces, ma?e<lab and &upplla& 
CHtpreciatiol'I 

Total open111no eJCPen&ea 
Opera&ig Income (IQ,u) 

10,2n 
$8,111 
38.381 

184181 
82490 

3,0&4.821 
4 15,ffl 

05.014 
315751<!91 
, .442.,220 

185,65$ 
545,116 
111& 164 

1.527,145 
p1 ◄1ffl! 

1,093,693 ....... 
2011°7 

21139 i5 
[l&oi!67) 

5,014,,682 
\ ,.882,759 

529076 
7.406.497 
'i.24i.«l6 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
IIW!en!SI incomt! 2,350 36 .,.., 641 3,660 
!merest expense al'ld bond d.$00UM amortization (164,431) (133.772] (298,203) 
Losa Ot1 dlsposat ot assets (Ul60} 1111szs~ l",™l 

Total t1onoper-a t1ng revenues (eJCP8n&n} 2350 ,. p 73,3M! 1135.091} !306,071! 
Income (IOss) belOre conlJlbU(ion& 

and transfers ...... 1,, 42.256 {287,759) (295.945} $43,395 

C8plt&I ccn1tlt>uUon& 2,82:3 2,623 
Tran$!«& In 325,000 341~2 568 432 

ToUII convl>uUOf\S and iran&fiar& 327,623 341,432 &&9.055 
Change In net ~&&et& ...... t ,442,2-56 39,864 45.484 1,811.4$0 

Tol;lll ntc\ 8$$0ls • be,ginniig 509 142 1,129.265 f825iJ69) ,.001.980 ,.a«.818 
Total ns1 auett • endng 59S,988 • 2,671,521 S i78S,905J S 1.077,464 s 3.4'70M • 
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CASH ,1.ows FROM OPERA.TINO ACTMTIES: 
Clish ro:efYed from GUstl:m$'1 

Clish ?O'llfflC!llls lo suppliers 
Cl$tl l)t)fflOl'IIII 10 O"""°)CCI 
~ ...... ic.~ 

NelCMl\~t,yoc,oril:lng OCM:a 

CASH FL~ FROM HOHCAPITAL ,tHA.HCING 

ACTMTII.S.: 
Trant!ors In 
Tra,n11,rs o,,a 

NIICW\~b)'~ 
llnen:ing aef11!1M 

CASH FLOW$ I ROM CAPITAL AND RE:t.ATEO 
FINAHCINO AC'TMTIES:: 

Acq.uillon am! c;ons:i,.icto,, d capital aMtlt 
Pa)fflOl'I! 10 rel!11ndlng esaow eoom 
PN)ceeo,!'tQffidfltll f....-U 
Pl'ln4,eloe,.<'1'$"1tl(ll'IOetll 
lnlcre,tpe"d 
~neesfromothef ~ 

Net eo,n us«I or cox.el ellO re,,,'° 
,.,_.nv aclMllin 

CMH n.ows , ROM INYHTING ACTIVITIES: 
lnYIIS~ lncorre 

Nee cosh 11f'CMC!ed by inYO\llno te(yldff 

Ot>eralnll inooo'rle oou► 

City d Cope Cota!, A:lrido 

lNTlRPIUSE. 1UNOS 
STATEMEHT OF CASH ~ow, 

HOHMAJOR Dn'ERPRISE FUNDS 
For lt.e Yoat tndoo ~ber 311, 20C3 ... 

c~~ 

' 1,531,419 
(4n,661) 
(797,367) 
,.e.SM'I 
209 , .. 

325,0CO 

v ... , luMlng ... ..,., 8Hln 

' 247,3~ S 5,322,876 
(38,187) (325,494) 
(67,855) (U14,29S) 
(12,818) 
1'0&09 2.383,087 

(M8,T42t 

325000 

(282,.7$3) 
(906,2151 
422.1)4 
(46.9$i) 
(76.130) 
!2,0<> 

j83&¥.I~) 

.,, .,, 
Not lnc,...M (dKl'UM) In ush ond cash ecu....«enta 
Ceth eni:t~~&l$n~- bcglrnn" 
Cull and c.asl", eq.,milonl,. enditlgi 

t57.$43 ,.,.., s 

2,U<l,381 ,,.,.. 
J 3,062.645 ' 

(303,,172) ... ,., 
591.?.33 

5-1,,86() 
1~.1·01 
150,567 ' ' 

l,999,72& 
2 Oi!l8 519 
4,oa5,247 

Th• fol ~~ oWII\Q NCOndlH cuh •Ml c,,ft .,q to 
ttlo $Qte,m..-rt of Het Aa..U filollffl-.lM En.!erprin Funds 
Casi\ ar'ld eash eqUMJenls 

icd easn ai,c1 c:e,ti eQ.li.,.aen1• Re:llr.ct
Toto! casf'I rid ca9"1 fll)J1181tMl 

CIUATION Of Of'ERATING INCOMt (LOS$! TO 

,..,.., 
' 

2Ql,&02 

I 3..052.645 ' 
J.C62AfS 

371.580 
183,653 
Ml,233 

9,089 s ' 111,•1a 
180,567 

:V30, t16 
)55,131 

4.()85.247 

UCOM
MET CASH PROVIDED 8YOP£1t-'TWG ACTIYITIE$! 

e~~!!!! ' S ,~2.220 ' (114,393} ' (160,8$!J ' 1,249.466 

AOiu•l!'Nl'Cl Ill) ...oon~• opcriltr,G i- (IOM) 
oo not eati'I on:MCICO bot o~r,g acis....u .. : 

Oepreciafc:t'I a.pet'IM 
tll'Crteff) .,,uo in~ 

Aeoounls recei--.t,1, 
1...,;011ommon1a1 r«-ble ·-

36,387 

(3,0@) 

9!1,018 1116, 164 

,..., 
201,507 

4, 742 
(1,S69) 

529.078 

1.716 
(1,569) 
2.651 

Fr.;>lld Mml 
Una~edoo,-di ..... CC5111 
cruM (ciccruse} Flhbliliet: ln
AcCOun1, Ptyt)ll ff'4 en-« KCl\.led 11,!Miles 
Aecn.ied ~)fol erd ccn,oenM11(1 .:,wrqs 

Rettllclocl de(ffl'ed ~ -f«a' ~U$ln-,el'!IJ 
NQI: Clish pt'(Mdctd b)' 01,.'fflil:rlg tc:IMIIH 

!378) 

•. .,. ,.,, 
3J118 

44~ ,30 

103.14$ 
450.532 
292,171 

2.ml~ 

(81) 
9,184 

9.138 
(11,522) 

"' 1 181'21 
S'R.1h 
?;Qll,788 

"'" 
15,863 
10.018 

527o'J 
71 &4$ 

(459) 
11,447 

137.577 
451,,06 
29$,488 
118,429 

1!25~ 
2.7'9S 329 

w,tor ..... 
' 1,983,16,.5 

(700,924) 
(1 ,083,617t 

(128, fflt 

"""' 
341,432 

34t 432 

(f,47dt 

(24 5.000) 
c1oe.ss:u 

(359.058) .. , .. , 

T°"' 

' 9,064,7$ 
(1,$40,26&) 
(4,583.154) 

, 1861CM02 
2,7p!b@ 

666-.4-32 

&86.4.32 

<':16.981) 
(!108,,2111) 
422.134 

(2111.959) 
(182,712) .... , 

(1,46$.$93) 

3650 
3,660 

,,.. 
,,,..,, ~"" 

(268.742) 

" " 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

Pens.loo Tt\lst Funds are used to account for three defined benefh plans a.net one defined contribution plan, which 
accumulate resources fOf pension benefit payments to 11s empk)yeeslrctirces. 

• Municipal General Employees' Pension Plan - accounts for a defined benefit pell$lon plan for non-uniformed 
employees if they are not eligible for the Defi,ned Contribution Pension Plan. 

• Municipal Police Officers· PcMiOt'I Plan - accounts for a defined benefit pension plan for police Officer$. 

• Municipal Fi.-efighters· Pension Plan - aocounts for a defined benefit pension plan for fitefightcl'$. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held in an agency capacity for others and therefore cannot be used 
to support the City"s own prog,ams. 

• School Impact Fee Fund - used to account for the City's collection of school impact fees, at the time of 
buildlng permit Issuance, fo, the Lee County School 80&rd. 

• Teen Youth Cent.et Fund - used to account for monies hekl for Youth Crime lntervenUoo Ptogram. Inc., a 
non-profit organizal.ion, 

• Solid waste Fund - used to account ror the City's coHecUOn or soJid waste roes fOf' Waste Management inc. 
whO performs lhe solid waste collection and disposal services tor the City. 
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City of Cape Conti, Florida 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
September 30, 2003 

Pension Trust Funds Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Employee conlribvtiOns recelvabfe 

lrwostmen.ts, at fa!rvalue: 
U.S. government obligalions 
Federal agency notes 
Corporate bonds 
Corporate stocks 
Mo,tgage-backed securities 
Mutual funds 

T ot,I investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
~etunds payable and other liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trusc rOr' pension be-nefltS 

Municipal 
General 

Employees• 

s 2,303,608 
1,504,587 

3,766,120 
3,014,316 
7,710,430 

29,843,8:34 
6.430,100 
8,193,965 

58,958,785 

62,766,980 

1,562.328 

S 6112041652 

Municipal 
Police 

Officers' 

s 1,263,0 16 
802,594 

2.,431,562 
1,782,378 
4,,212,288 

16,776,635 
3,552, 166 
7,132,193 

35,887,222 
37,952,832 

9 12058 

$37,040,77'-

Munlclpal 
Fl.retlghtera• 

$ 1,736,821 
975.095 

2,641,766 
2,163,118 
5,278,936 

20,141, 100 
4,387,309 
6, 139,845 

40,752.074 

43,463,990 

1 047.304 

S 42,416.686 

Penslon 
Trust 
Funds 

s 5,303,445 
3,282,276 

8,839.~ 
6,959,812 

17,201,6$4 
66,761,569 
14,369,575 
21,466,023 

(35,598,081 

144, 183,802 

3,521.f590 

S 140,662,112 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended September 30. 2003 

Pension Truat Funds Tot,11 
Munlcip;il Municipal Pension 
Gtneral Polle• Munlclpal Tn.ist 

Eml!IOl;!H' Offleers' Firefighters' FUnds 
ADDITIONS 
Contribullons: 

Employer 
Employu 

$ 1,783,828 
2,129,651 

s 841,696 
613,710 

$ 1,076,306 
538,n, 

s 3,702,030 
3,282,132 

State 54-4.440 <1$3 358 1,027,798 
Total contributions 3913 479 2,000,046 2,098,435 8 01 1.960 

lnlefest income: 
Not increase in fair value ot investments 6,440,770 4,090,061 4,428,408 14,959,2$9 
lntere$1 1,466 495 823,702 997,697 31287,894 

Total interest inoome 7,907,265 4,913,763 5,426,105 18,247,133 
Less investlnenl expenses j 173,871) (97,971) j1341683! j406,525J 

Net Interest income 7 733 394 4,816,792 S,291,42'2 17,640.608 
Total addition$ 11 646873 s,81s,838 7,389857 25,852.568 

Benefrts and rel\Jnds 3,205,936 1.253,641 1,007,733 5,467,310 
Administrative expenses 44772 31 393 54,035 130.200 

Total dectuctions 3,250,708 1.285,034 1 061 768 5,597,510 

ChMge In ne1 assets 8,396,165 5,530,804 6,328,089 20,255,058 
Not 3$$8-ts - begiming 52,808,487 31,509,970 3610881597 120,407,05' 

Net a.ssc1s • ending s 61,204.652 s 37.040,TT4 $ 4214161686 $ 140,662. 112 
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Cityof Cape Cofal, Florida 

COMBINJNO STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSET$ ANO LIA8!UTIE$ 
AGENCY FUN OS 

For the Year End~ september 30, 2003 

School Teen 
Impact Youth Solid Total 

Fee Cen ter waste AQ;eney 
Fund Fund FuOd Funds 

ASSETS 
Ca3h and c&:sh eq,Jlva,ents 761,741 $ $ 630,902 s 1,392,643 • 
AcCOtJflb recei•,att,e . 46.000 461000 

Total asset, 761 741 676.902 1438643 

oue TO OTHERS (OCTOBER 1, 2002) 71$,660 329,252 83,2-39 1,128,14 1 

Addl!lons: 
COlleeliOns 8 ,936,767 637.515 7,799,898 17,374-,180 
lnv.slm0n1 lnQOime 1704 31 !S43 33J 47 

Total addlt:ions 8 .938,767 639,219 7,831 441 17,407,,427 

~ liol'ls: 
Rerrittances la Lto County Sctlool Soard 8.884.7l4 8 ,884,734 
Remnanoes 10 Teen YOlllh Cenlet 968-471 968,471 
Ronit!onoe, to Y/a&te Ma~m 7.237,778 7,237,778 
Admlnis.rative oxponffl 5 .942 S,942 

968,471 7,237,778 17,096,925 TOI&! 6ecNClioos 8,890,878 

Total due to others ending b.alanc:e $ 7$1 ,741 $ 678,902 $ 1.438,643 • 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
(Unaudited) 

The Statistical data relates to the physical, economic, social, and political characteristics of the City.  The 
Statistical Schedules differ from other financial presentations because they generally disclose more than one 
fiscal year. 

COMMENTS RELATIVE TO STATISTICAL SECTION 

The following statistical table recommended by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board is not included for 
the reason stated below: 

Á Table of Computation of Legal Debt Margin is omitted because the Constitution of the State of Florida (FS 
200.181) and City of Cape Coral set no legal debt limit. 
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City of Cape COfat, Florida 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS <11 

(Unaudited) 

Table 1 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fi&eal Year 

Function 2001 2002 2003 

General govemment $ 10,246,131 $ 10,959,838 s 15,882,887 
Public safety: 
Police 15,134,154 15,540,428 16,681 ,383 
Fire 11,049,393 11,333,512 12,343.150 

P\;btlc WOfkS 4,714,307 4,869,549 5,086,678 
community developmenl 3,527,983 4,322.273 1.130,261 
Parks and recreatkln 6,991,882 7,327,464 7,565,632 
Transportation 8.817,123 9,629,953 9 ,645,598 
lnteresl on 1ong. 1enn debl 1,839,904 1,646,963 1,518,503 

Water and sewer 41,545,021 34,255,664 38,977,836 
Stormwater utility 5,806,100 5.945, 177 6 ,986.521 
Yacht basin 13 1,370 143,507 164c,781 

Suildi"lg division<21 3,575,291 
Gott course 1,678,942 1,727,979 1,701,144 
Weterpatk 2.04~.834 2.080,358 2.275,012 

Total S 113,527,144 $ 109,782,665 S 123.534,477 

Source: City of Cape C0<al, Fi"lanci.al SOrviC-os Oepartmen1 

<11 The last 3 R$.Cal years are reRected fot complianoo l<> Govemmental 
Aoooun1tng Standards Soard (GASS) Statement No. 34 Implemented 
fiscal year ended, September 30, 2002. 

<21 The building division was reponed in community ckMt!opment a"I prior years. 
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City of ~ Coral, Ac:w1d3 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE REVENUES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 111 

(Unauditod) 

Table 2 

Flt.ea.I Ve.at 
2001 

Fisca l Ve.ar 
2002 

Program Revenues 

Fisc.il Year 
2003 

Charges tor services 
Opctati~ gtanW and contributions 
Capital grants and contribu11ons 

Total 

Taxes 
Interest inoome 
Gain on sale or capital assets 

To<al 

S 47,756,028 
12,616,074 
5,898,41 5 

S 66,270,517 

s 37,801,805 
10,896,259 

$ 48,698,064 

$ 51,498,859 
12,702,429 
22,068,602 

s 8612s9,a90 

General Revenuo.s 

s 43,595,087 
7,113,829 

$ 50,708,916 

sou,ce: City of Cape COral, Fi'lanclal SeMCes Department 

11 
• The lest 3 fiscaJ years are reflected lot oompllance to Governmental 
Accoun~ Standards Board (GASS) S.etement No. 34 implemented 
fiscal year ended, September 30, 2002. 
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S 58,197,072 
13,894,4 13 

39,383.352 
$ 111 ,454,837 

$ 49, 133,919 
8,144.538 

138,387 
S 57,416,844 



1

C.ty 01 Cap Cnn,l FIMdl. 

~~ GOVERNMENTAJ. ElCJ!ENDrnJR!S lliV FIJHC'l'ION ill 
u,BT TEN FISCAi. 't£,,RS 

[U ll.liml~) 

llllll!i .Hrvlca, 

""--"' 
il,tp■ ■I 'Ar'inclp_■I ■11111 liia1 liil-et!I G■llw.d IP,ub1lt Pauanil 

:1,1owmi;nanJA TNIM~llllion t'Kff.111 I011 f!IIJ{~ nllrelllBlt Clta'GH Tllilal 
P!' """!il $43.,1ii;sM s §JlDoo s 6,5e6. 1:itl s; 1:'.6ir iit~~ll $ 3,004,42( i ili'.5,4'16 1$ ~ 1~ 
I~ g,11)il129 1&,42',308 10,353,841 4.,007M)II ,326l.Oa1 1 ,134,n'.11 251,711 45.598i800 

fl,061,36, 4.7~5Je95 2, :!-5, ,Y., S 1,251;000 204.!ai 44,,(;(!Q,,n3 1we 9,731,03-4 ;>0.07!.0~ 
,-gg1 10,7-41,!m 21,036,5119 7,174,77, 4,941.11115 7.'112.,4.e-~ 1,.ll't 1,7&3 1flii5,292 53 ,m 1{i2!1 

t1r.]1l L2,a94,5(7 22,Q!n,:t~ 8,251.977 5 , 151,71!1 4.1~.723 1,H!6;5E6 127.4!1 SI ,17-0, 1°'1 

j&(l{I u,:ili3.(r33 23.585, 1 -25 l', ln.,M8 4,714.175 4,i;a,1,p;MI 307,964 87,AOS 53,115,&1 
25(;..132 128,,023 tl0,'278,5-37 .!000 13.22!;,.00J 24,443,196 0,.14&,;1:)4 !l,:.!30,609 6.64{1.,-20 

t.4),o93,UII 2QQi1 14,171, 15'1 l7,r01B,03B '1,202.568 5 . 966.. 1 E.5 WJ17.(Jlill 4137.915 148.417 
338,.EB4 5!),81111 81,172,538 2:002 14.4{!0,ll!Jll 25,6ila,.500 7.4{13~10 ti,661$28 8.5611,300 

15,.TZ),2:l,7 27,41'r,13a &. 1:2.e,e2a 13,746.164. l~,:M3,008 ·1,1oo..a:2.0 (l:l,4.11!1 74,840,141 
~ 

~ Cil)' r:J ~ Cetlil, fiNl'dal Savi:M C~e 1L 

L'll l~I Ginn and~~ Ardl-

(Zl GaneraJ ~ n e,!IIIIITIUnlty d!!ef~ 

124 

https://1,134,n'.11


,

C.iy 111 Cl!~ c;«;JI,. A:Nlclil 

GeN!RAI.. 1G01i'ERNl\l!;NlAL REVl!NUl!: l!W SOU Ree ~•1 

UST TEN FlSClil.. YEARS 

jUruiy!I~ 

Taba. 4 

s,iaal.il 

illilillNlll@l'llit 
Cormnl.lW11&atlon LtcaMoH,. ct\11111 11■ fo.r l nw- llnpKt 'fea11, 

f llleal Fr:aiii:IM 'HMi:llil p,liii'ni■, M'.rifl:H al'lld il!Wflnnl!mt;il' lntan11,t,, 
pilr TD11i ,~Iii ,._ 

~l!e,n r~m AIWl'IUe an&1101:ht1r To&iil 
18194 .$ 1~1.351 s :z.gro ,2111 5, s ;~ :5, ,u06,3&1 s 9,300 ,'9415 s 3J'20,0«l S 41 .,g34.99f, 
19!l!Si 12..es6,i 911 ~ 1,u9.Jii14 ◄--◄20.0,2 9,1.(5,5'3 e . .sas,M11 48.,121,t'S!i 
1500 ~4l)Q 2.941~ V 4o,336, ~59,539 11 ,Otl,!l,575 AA!l 0,096 &IJ!iZJ!.l:IB) 
1!l97 2:-1~.llflll ~ 1,B4&,!H7 ~666,1120. ,0,3-0:in 3,894,900 49. 117,.&44 
1!1!JII :.N,'11110,tl-C(J 3,;268..140 2,1 D,448 6,622,:J.t 2 , 1 A-io,rJO lll,233,CSUl 154-~ sm 2.'1,83'11,007 3.,_11.!<51_~ 2 ,-4 ffl., 234 &,lk6,3}'d 1~4S,it 8217,900 GO, 40'). 1 al) 
~ 2fi, 1)33;20,2 3.174,GG• 2,606,555 6-/061.~ 14 ,184~ 7.,620,11 !5 li-2,fi0,7,!)!_jp 
2001 3.T,01~,452 l.52!11M3 3 ,22.J ,1Kl5 d,7.8!1,958 14.4-161.132 e.~ 67,751>.◄85 
2002 :i3 ,ll!i,'511 3,2Dll,06il ],<C69,719 -41.51{1.883 7,no~ 14,230,766 ~ .470 1a, s 1.-t85 

121 200l 3aµ11,171 3,319,002 3,1'!;11.$47 ~,3n1 10,411.B.57J l&,321U1".it 1:3\~4161 86,3:i'3, 134 

~ Cl!'f (11' ~ Cooi1.. Fin;ina;iJ Smb~ ~fflel!t 

,,, lndude1 ~.ind~ ~e~ Funds. 

1'111 !:Ncln'loal "Ille 18leciiin rnum;;ili:ns '!ill! II)' Iba, 51¥1!! ~r. WBS ~ Qciabar 1, 2001, 

Ill lltiiMfll'i d..,_5IOl1 D:IMI)' Is; r~ ff\ BA flt~ i'u!d i:fl'ecwc 0~ 1, 200.2. 
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Cly d Clpe car.ti. Flilrtda 

TAXIIBLE SN.ES 
lMT T!!N FISCAL VEAMi 

(Um1ud~) 

Ta'bla ll 

~ a!llll Rt El2W11 ~ L..fi QD!Um!:}! ~ Cll1t ~ !;;!_I!! ~nil Oii,111111 
1'1194 $ 165,.i11,7$1,la ll!l!ilJ', Ii .tA !l,3Ji26. 1'99 '!ll7!~ Ii 381, 171,0-llti &!l:2'lli 
,g9B, 171,Ml2:,-7+11,212 3.31',j 4.733,<1'19.1'23 11J..28% 399,ffl,OOO IH1J% 
1996 1113.963,9&UJ1 7 .. :r:i~ 4,97';,i:ra, 1-'I!) !k 11 'll, 4Ul,tnU'3?' 4!13~ 
1ri)!J,7 1 r.4~32',,&!lll,ei!1 5.80% '5,302~.565 B..SB'.4, 4511,172,-143 7.51% 
1998 20Cl,2J6,Ml9.!ilOII 7~ S,8-Ja, Hl6, 1(i 1 ll01'J.. 4ij!J,006,!JQJ 10.~Mli 
1999 ,12i5,1 u .~2.926 7. S!Jo'tC. e,342,1160, 13B l11.7o11;% 553,1•1,723 1'l.35% 
:2000 2:44,5611,825, 1:36 8-64~ 7 ,2117 .111Eii8117 15 (15% Eit2, 7~,3,,4() 10,711,1-
2[101 Z~.61U3US2 4.52'% 7,1513,3 4;298 ll.3:2% 652,964,2.06 6.58% 
2002 259,650,892,.'769 1,5&':J'i .S.027.0<l1,U7 l .C.5'Ai et!B..J;1.I!, 7.J:2 6,'i15'ti, 
2[103 $.7,9.ir,!if~ 2..34~ 18,:149,-4!}3,(IM 4.!12% 74:i', 1911,76'.I Q 1.000!. 

Soof'C8"' flOMeo D8p811rn,,;rn DI Ae't'erllle 

,,, sr.a1fi's Rec::,j )l8llf 11ni:fod Jurtl) JO, 
111 CII)' 01 CIII! eora, amDU"i1 Is. e!itrnllfed ~Ince dall!J b-y d!)- r.s nc bn~ m.,3,_Jl!ble fran ~ Florldm Dep.irtmer_a of F::aw nl!l!I. 
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City of Cape Coral, FJorit1a 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAi- YEARS 

{Unaudited) 

Table 6 

Total 

Fiscal taxes 
year 1levied <> 

1994 $ 20,011,554 

1995 22,676,376 

1996 22,663,971 

1997 22,763,261 

1998 22,805,674 

1999 25,794,715 

2000 26,927,903 

2001 28,726,625 

2002 30,728,274 

2003 35,751,603 

<11 Source: Lee County Property Appraiser 

Percent of 
current ta.xts 

Total collected to 
taxes total taxes 

COlltcted ro levied 

$ 20,019,907 100.0% 

22,043,356 97.2% 

22,679,900 99.2% 

22,538,010 99.0% 

22,547,070 98.9% 

25,494,110 98.8% 

26,621 ,859 98.9% 

28,464,930 99.1% 

30,789,121 100.2% 

35,555,201 99.5% 

Property taxes become due and payable on NO\lember 1 of each year. A 4% discount is allowed if the 
taxes 8/e paid In November, with the discount declining by 1% each month thereafter. Accordingly, 
tax.es collected will not be 100% of tax levy. Taxes beoome dellnquent on Aprll 1 of each year. and 
tax certifice:tes for the full amount of any unpaid taxa& and asseuments must be sOld no later than 
June 1 of each year (the proceeds of which are indvded in this oolumn). 

(2:I Source: City of Cape Coral, Financial Serviees Oepanmen1 
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01Jo1 Ctti,e Cu•R', Fm 

A~ED AtilD l!!S11MA.11£D AC"fU.i.t. lJALtJ M TAXM!II.. 
L.AST JEN flsef!Ji. ~S 

1Unnudiled~ 

MCJlif!Jn'Y 

Tab'la 7 

IP«swl~II 

i:lf tobll 

Roi wgp!Kt)' P~Ol'll! P'!P•'h' Toltl HSollf4 ed 11D 

~ ttcl Esil~~d E'411meflld li!ljwl 

Ail .. ed l!CW!!I Auilli ■■ ild K.11.11111 A?Ml:M«f ..uual ll:IIIITlilfed 

Y8III wtut ....... v.iu• Vllllle ial11e M!'IID1 \!Jil U. 

189i1 I 3.37tl.553.3tl0 $,-4,1715.0!!B,70J I; 1!2,'331:,040 $ 1 O'.l,2:P::t,440 S :i,561,liM,Zltl S 4,3!.o!l,:Jaa, 140 &t.11~ 

1W,:i 3,4117 ,2\T.l,4UII 4 ,233.e.M!,S3ll 193,.111111,9-50 196,3511.470 3 ,601i'1~30 .. "'29 ,11116.!lOO 1111.~ 

,eM 3,JS3,45,fl,700 ,1~.210 1 S1'1.,(i~◄. J,O t!ll;i,2116,!il!D 3,643, 07!J,l!OCI .c!,!i!l1,364, ,so 7~!';1}.'i 

1~ !t-435,V5,200 4.3''9. 139,4ml 196,738,000 1£18; 90,160 -3,632',IHO,Z!O 4 ,576 ,329,620 ?Bl.l?,i', 

1iii!B :'!,4:'l!l,7Y.l,:P40 4,AOl, 195,.UO 199,CU.830 200,22B.560 :3.6-33. m ,570 4.800.◄24 ,JJOO 7D.10"tl. 

,gge l,560,-4-94,870 ll,SSS.871.(l;l(J 181,1:ll).~ 1{11.,964.660 .!'l,7"1:l,.215-_:!20 .fl,7!itl,B55.900 71,.77'l', 

~ 3,,747,721.280 4m;' JJ!)IJ ,o!)(I ,~,.;22,360 184,-884,!;l,10 ] ,93-l!,34l,640 !5,1;122 .{1(12, GOO 70..29'ti 

~ 1 4 ,OO-l ,1J!,l ,-420 ~31.720 21M,0311,4ll0 2 1,.2 ?, 140 4,237,l'J'7,910 ~M-3,U54,f!60 '17.11&'1, 

~ 4.4~ ,200.210 ~193,1Nl 2,g,fil12,d60 228, 96,62fl 4,1 14, fi&l,&?,O 6, 112,969,69l n. 2'lli 

~ 11.,w,1,uoo 7,202,'959, tBO 216.~ 11,,&10 286, 6,000 5,6110,5311,5"10 7.489,0711,,000 74.ll&i% 



City or cape Co~. Florida 

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRE.CT ANO OVERLAPPiNG GOVERNMENTS-

PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE - LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudi1ed) 

Table a 

Share of 

total 
Cl!X of C■E!:! Coral tax rate 

Flsc.al O.bt G• r1• .ral Sc:hool levted 
l!;•r General servlc:. Total COUl'l!X board Otherm Total all b:z: Cui 
1994 4.9.JOC) 0 .8700 5.8000 5.2170 9.235 1,720 2·t .9720 28.40% 

1995 5.4298 0.8700 6.2998 4.8470 9 ,372 2.008 22,5268 27.97% 

1998 5.4298 0 .8376 6.2674 4 .7470 9.3'8 U551 22..2134 28,21% 

1997 S.4298 0 ,8376 6.2674 ◄ .4751 9.245 2 .375 22..3625 28.03% 

1998 S.4298 0 .8370 6 ,2674 4.4751 9.306 2.927 22.9755 V ,28% 

1999 S.9673 0 .9058 8 .8929 4.4751 9.308 3.018 23.6920 29.09% 
2000 5 .9873 0.8605 6.8478 4,4751 8.941 3.550 23.8139 28.76% 

2001 5.9873 0 .7914 6.7787 4.3277 8.798 3.525 23.4294 28.93% 

2002 5,8033 0,7144 6.5171 4.32:77 8.478 3.525 22.8484 28.53% 
2003 5.8033 O.S712 6.,3745 4.3277 8.580 3 ,501 22.7832 27.98% 

Source: lee County Ptoperty Appraiser 

''' Olhcr 00nSlst:s of Lee County Ca,:>aal Improvement, Lee County Ublary, West Coast tnland Waterway, Lee County 
Hyacinth Control, Lee Counly Mosquito Control, Sooth Rorida Walet Management Olstllct, SOI.Ith Florida Weter 
Manageme11t Everg1-,c1es, and City or Cape Coral Munlelpal Sorvice& Taldog Unit (SOiid W3tlte lnc:ineratot). 
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Clfyof Cape COl'al., Florida 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Table 9 

Fiscal New assessments Collections 

year durl~year Billi~• during year 

1994 $ (96,843) $ 14,002,008 s 10,353,299 

1995 132,799,343 36,444,334 31,312,914 

1996 26,075.610 19,197.505 

1997 24,363,ns 15,335,629 

1998 853,082 23,005,131 15,805,974 

1999 238,082 20,655,571 13,678,408 

2000 14,737,787 9,862,618 

2001 20,555,000 12,206,843 13,143,632 

2002 39.255,000 12,861,700 14,348,718 

2003 47,364,000 15,540.911 19,97Z,684 

Source: City of Cape C(l(al, F'"tnaneial Services Oepartm6tlt 
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City of Cope Coral. Florida 

RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO 
ASSESSED VALUE AND NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT 

PER CAPITA 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Table 10 

D•bt per 
Net bonded Not capita 

debt as a bonded percentage 

As.seued Net p«eentage debt Ofptr 

Fl•eal taxable bonded of assessed pe, eaplt• 

year Po2utaUon 11
• value Pl debt IJ) vaJue eaelta lneome ... 

1004 83,768 S 3,561,885,230 S 34,170,569 0.96% S 408 1.80% 

1995 86,140 3,601,126,430 27.737,398 0.77% 322 1.30% 

1996 88.119 3,648,079.000 25,819,710 0.70% 291 1,10% 

1997 90A64 3,632.010,230 23,701,836 0 .65% 262 1.00% 

1998 93,017 3,638,777,570 21,708,961 0.60% 233 0.80% 

1999 97,637 3,742.215,200 19,826,087 0.52% 201 0.74% 

2000 102,067 3,932,343,640 17,438,398 0 ,44% 171 0.62% 

2001 107,377 4,237,777,910 15,180,525 0 .36% 141 0.51% 

2002 114,,919 4,714,588,660 12,797,650 0.27% 111 0.38% 

2003 124,449 5,608,534,540 10,704.775 0.19% 86 0.29% 

<1> Source: City of Cape Coral. Department or Com~ lty Development 

(2) SOuf'U': Lee County Property Appraiser (see tab'e:7) 

<J> Souroe: City of cape Coral, Flnancial Services Department 

<•> S<,uroe: u . s. Oepartmetit or Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis (see table 15) 
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City of Cape Corel, Fk>dda 

RATIO OF DEBT SERVICE EXPENDrTURES 
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT'" 

TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Table 11 

General Percent of 

Fi scal govtrnment Debt dtbtsorvice 
year exeenditure5 C2) service to exe;enditurH 

1994 $ 43, 119,509 $ 1,783,561 4.14% 

1995 45,598,8110 1,682,480 3.69% 

1996 44,460,413 1,679,265 3.78% 

1997 53,209,629 1,681,705 3.16% 

1998 51,770,104 1,676,249 3.24% 

1999 53,175,681 1,677,268 3.15% 

2000 60,278,537 1,679,174 2.79% 

2001 60,093,115 1,681,536 2.80% 

2002 61,172,538 1,681,586 2.75% 

2003 74,640,141 1,677,911 2.25% 

Source: Cl1y of Cape Coral, Financial Services Department 

• 11 Generet Ob!lga.tion Bonds reported In the Enterprise Fund hsve boon excluded. 

l2J General Govemmont expenditures include General and Special Revenue Funds (see table 3), 
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Oty ot Capo Coral, Florida 

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT ANO OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT 

(Unaudaed) 

Table 12 

Percentage Amount 
applicable to applicable to 

Net debt City of City of 
outatendlng Cape Coral Capo Coral 

( ' J 
City of Cape Coral s 10.704,775 100.00% s 10,704,775 

lee County 226,633,000 "' 15.19% '" 34,425,553 

Total net direct and net ovcrtapp«lg debt $===·=5,=130_.3,..28._ 

There is no County School District debt applicable lo the City of Cape Coral. 

<1) Soucoe: City of Cape Coral, Flnanciel Servfoes Department {see tabk) 10) 

m Source: Lee County Clerk of Court. Finance Division 

m Determined by dlvlctlng: 
taxable asussed valuation of the City of C$pe Coral (see table 7) S 5,608,534,540 
by the total taxable valuation of l.ee County. S 36,916,753.496 
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Cit,<11 ~ CQnal, fl:Mtdll 

SCIIEOOLJe OF w.\Tl!R .AND SEWER REVEKUE BOND C~E 

U$T HN AseAl. veARS 

(U11a.!dt11:1,;JJ 

Tabla 'IS 

Fiscal 

yur 
OJMQU"g 

l't~IIH!Wl 

,Op,er;11t.1ng 
111 P e!l1$GS, 

Nel ~llivtl!U& 

H ,1lldiht rar 
dabt service 

011111 lil!IN'iea ~ulr<11m1m1s o, 

Prlotle!I lnltftiii Total 
nm-

~OV!!§• 

:s; 15,262.321 ii, 10,442,17:5 1 4.8~0. ,.co s 1150.000 S 1.211).550 '2,1W,550 2.'Z7 

~ 17,1133,.339 12,702,300 4,JJ1J;O:} 91Xl.OOO 1 ,2115,350 2, 116.,350 2.C5 

1996 1 !),84Ei.«.iGl!I 12,314,41,Ul 7;472., 152 00-0,000 1,154.,950 :.i', ' "4.!l!ffl 3.!I~ 

1gg7 22.2-ie~ 1.J.,.163,1!16 9,052.833 2,0'10,439 1,722.~79 J,73,2.5111, 2A3 

1!196 2J.,U0e,90!5 11a. 12&.1:tn !9,M0,304 2,101,584 1,821,729 5;123.J1i3, 2'115 

1!199 2◄,GQB,801 'Ii , 5 7 !1,,900! 11,11-17,111 2,431,44~ 1,706.227 11,143,663 2J'B 

2000 2$,,689, 115 1L l-41Y-!7 ,.3,34'1',ti08 :2,111-n, tl7 1,533,41:l 4, •43,550 3.22 

200, ~.'lf11 1:3.tiiZt,JOJ. 1'2,B11 .~il-4 2,ltll,991 ,.628,722 4,18,2,71':1, 3.°'1 

2G02 2'6..563. '132 "14.828..830 , 1 • 'n,j. .-Ii~ 2,G!r:"l,4150 1,4&:1..246 .il!,163.695 2.82 

2003 27,ffl0,!546 "18.Q4~J;ltBI 9,lilti,721! 2,1!!11 !i,840 1 ,21!16,074 4,021.~t4 2 .39 

Sou-oe: Cly or 08pe ClOOII. FIIWl'dlll Sc:rvu:s. D !!pmlml!III 

1' ' 1h:lullis lnlen:!!.l ina:rn~ ex1lUl!titi !li)ecial as&e8(,1'118i'11 hOOfTI .i111t ,lid v.ilarcm ta:cs .1111 !hey an: u:.l!d kl piYf Ger.er.ii Obllgnbon 
lbon~ Md are nill. tWS~9 l'cn r-UY!!ll!NI ~ mquln!ml!flll. 

11.J Excludes di!~ e:,qiem.e. ~ e~. ~ dlw;amttpn,.rr:an, .:imartizZD'l, g.iilli1oss en c:z~ d fmsd assl!l:I, ;s,d spcdlll 
.assmamenl e11pemee 

!IJllndutl c!l'l'y,de~ be1"19 kalrtr.d tr)' Inc n.ol l!M!lffl.le of ihe ,sysl1!111. 

llJ Dlllll &llf'iio8 Ni'4tftlil:! bru;Qd on plad91!d m.1!rn.ll!' ~i11 m diir..-.&i.l In bo-rtd ~TI ts 

1l4 

https://m.1!rn.ll
https://l!M!lffl.le
https://Ger.er.ii


Cifr 11r ca;:,a CY..I. Flr111d.li 

:SCHEDULE OF 5-TORMWATER DEBT ,co.VEM.GI!. 
LAST TBI FLSCAI!. YEAFIS 

( Una udted) 

T!!b!!II H 

NIii 1'1111\tllWII 

fiscal OJ!emlll-0 Oper1iln,a1 11.wall:.IIJI for Dl!bt ~rvb ~ulramantlli ._ Tlma111 

p r>WI/Nll.Mltl, De:!IISD■ flt tlat,t Mflli0a I PM5!l!I IMlfHI TiQ4JII 1111:r,•11ra~ 

1W4 1 5,. 4{19\8,'26 s -4 .mi. Ge(! s 1,.2;10., :rn ,$ 220,000 $, ,4,17,.801 Si li67,IID1 1 8-C, 

1!!J95 5.""5'9, 767' 2,!lQIMilJ7 ~~ljij 1JQ,o 431 ,!134 1!!57,834 l .8J 

1996 5.MIS.11~ 3,584,7~ 1,8.10.680 7-'0,llnl) .:i2,.!141!i 1!6!1,5<te 2..73 

19'97 5. 782. 125, 3,1;!35,600 1,7Ba.~95 :l50,00ll -414, 1 &9 ~.18a 2..6'9 

19911 5.652,3-7-4 3,"!IZJ,!i14.!i :?.,!12f!A29 ~!l,l!Di!i 400,6-43 ~5.6'13 :ieo 
19!)!] 5.JB'l,B'T-8 l ,~54, :1!7(1 , ,130.608 280,000 36$.854 6e5,1154t :Z,e,i;I 

2000 6_89,1,6117 3;145,368 2.,7'1!il.'281 2llS-.OOD JGS,8!M GM,084J ,4..13 

200T 6.3,45,724 '4,008,'161 2,.2'17.263 31Q,toll "J~2.1!l'!:I l'lti:2,i'ee 3,..39 

2002 !},,,958,6'8 •,2-4'1,83il 2,714.c)tZ :QQ,IDJl .JM,J§o4 Mt,394 4.08 

9,.$11t2 '1'S8 2003 s-. l,,C, 1 , IJCi!J 4.0~W!at 3Bil, COll 193,ll31 573,831 7.01 

Soumc: City of c.,pe- Coo:(.~~ &:nia!is Deparln i:ril 

r;,1 lru:lad~ lnlllfcs.l lrll:IX:k"Tlei (c:iuit.nle a::m~II.JG:bn in~t). 

111 Exd•~ dnprccl;ilion m:pem.~. fnmres'I e~pense, l:oml li~!ff'(!tnut1 tlffiOl'tizstlon, g;a"l\fosa: 0!1 dis~ OIi fh(ied a:saets.. ial\11 
11pe,dalaa~I ~ll. 

111 h(:llltM OIW<dobt bnng lindcd by tha nel r.c:venue, ~ !he s~em. 
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C,:,,, cl!~ C-0181, A)li(l11 

Dl!M:OGRAPHIC SliATISTIOS 
LAST fl!M F'l&tlAL Vil:!ARS 

(U11atdilt!d] 

Tab\a 15 

Flaw 

)'.!!If 

i.- 01nm!J l!Dl?!!l:.Jon 111 

P11rliWltlii1 

'fo~ i:flilnil!! 

111 Ci!~' CO!",_! e~ol11llon 
PuUill!Dga 

"TO/til cll,111110 

illodlm 
ai,a k1 

l:!!US ~ 

E dm;al:ioli 

l!a!ff/1 'll"11Xi4 
lll'lr l)!lmeli'l.tlJ 

IJn!lmiJIOl'ffi!!!'II 
m.,_.MUIJI 

fll .. M~ 

IP.r' 
c,plg 

lnC.011111 II) 

19'4 "Jm,410 2Jl~ 83,76!! .2.~ ,ii) 111,91115 5-J% ~ ,4!!i(I 

~ ffl ,lll2 2.5% ii!!\ 1.CD z.~ 41) 12,2,17 '1,4% :2J,Ga4 

1~ 311-UII~ 1 9%, ll!l,.11!) 2.3'it. .di) 12,•oo 4,0% 2!),,144 

-,w, ;Y:i,U44 2.7%, !l!l.t"-64 2..7',t, ,4l) 12,S11C :U% 261100' 

1WS ,4l(l~i$37 2 .9% 00.011 7 211~ -42 12,'1 12 3:2% :27,106 

199{1 .c;fr,1ec 5.3% '97,637 5.0% 4:? 12,59!1 2.7% 27.1tlfj, 

2000 44!\~ 3.2% 102,067 4.5',(, 40 1j,(l97 2..7':'li 27.8'1) 

21l>01 ◄ 5'1.,918 :J.l~ 107,377 5.2'-' 40 1:J.~ :?J'',f, 21.,961 

;aoo2 475.(173 .CA-'t, 11~;9'19 7.0'-'i 42 1J,IIQ-C u~ 2H~ 

~ 497/122 "'·" 1~ ,44g 11.ll'-"i d2 15,51:H 4.J% 2!),MQ 

◄ 1 1 soorw; Ll5D cot:rt, De;Jmtn,t!NI ,or cammur,i1ty De"411QJ1fl'lllnt. f'l.:nmg, .ind ~1111S1hit s~ DM!.tt!s 

4l'i Sauroe.: City Oi1 Cape CM> DQP,'.illmnnt af Commui.ly D1we!Qjl1r;&11l, DMr,__()1'1 <II' Orowth l!f'ld llll"'ICI M)ln.1gcmr.ns 

P> Soorce. Stc:hool Cl~ afLee Cmriy 

++) U..S tl~ffl41711 of ~. &weal or L&bllr Slat!&~ 

~ U. S. OtJp,emr"'"1 (If C(Jlnmsce E!umJ or~ MB"'Sla 
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Oty of Cape Cotal, Fl()rida 

TEN LARGEST PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

September 30, 2003 

(Unaudited) 

Tablt 16 

Taxable 
valuation Cl> 

cape Coral HOidings, Inc. $ 14,844,630 

Dewars Lake Development LLC 14,209,850 

Tarpon Poklt Association LLC 11,943,950 

Coral Cove L TO 11,361.3 10 

Thieman Enterprises UC 11,056,9 10 

Eagle, GregoryW. Trust 10 ,24 1,860 

Reafmaril. Cape Harbour LLC 9,852,600 

Fvllenkamp, Dennis J . Trust 8 ,801,790 

Slaisco LLC 8 ,682,360 

Wal-Mart StOC'eS lncorp()(ated 8,533,770 

Percentage 
of total city 

aunament '2> 

0.28% 

0.27% 

0.22% 

0.21% 

0.2 1% 

0.19% 

0.18% 

0.17% 

0.16% 

0.15% 
Total s 1091529,050 2.05% 

11 < Source: City of cape Coral, Financial S&rvices Department 

<21 Tho total real property taxable value of Cape COral is S5,332, 117,930 (see table 7). 
Percentages for reference purposes only, Percentages ere rounded. 
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City or c~ ecn,, F"loi;da 

PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION, AND BANK DEPOS:ITS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEAAS 

(\lnalvdllt1d) 

Table 17 

Resldentl'al constNction in 

Estimated Parc;ent 
Fiscal actual Tot.al Total Number lncrease Bullcflng 

YH' val ue 111 111 eume!Jons taxable of units ldecre.ue) COSIS 

1994 $4,359,333,140 S 797,447,910 S 3,561,885,230 1,195 10.6 % $62,114,686 

1995 4,429,995,000 828,366,570 3,601, 126,430 1,040 (13.0) % 49,786,529 

1996 4,$61,36(,190 9 ·13.285, 100 3.646,079,090 1,141 9.7 % 55.884,083 

1997 4 ,576,329,820 944,310,590 3,632.010,230 1,260 12.2 % 63,251,186 

1998 4 ,600,(24,000 961,646,430 3,638,777,670 1,664 30.0 " 82.24 1,306 

1999 4.750,855,900 1,008,640,680 3,742,215,220 1,939 16.5 " 124,154,065 

2000 S,022,a82.600 1,090,549,960 3,932.332,640 2,419 24.8 " 202,297,648 

2001 S,"43,654.860 1,205,676,950 4,237,777,910 2,311 (4.6) % 214,015,963 

2002 

2003 

6, 112.089.690 

7,489,076.090 

1,398,401,030 

1,880,541,550 

4,7 14.588,660 

5 ,608.534,540 

3,456 

•.~ 
49.S " 31.9 % 

311,226,065 

424,593,◄SO 

I!) Sou'ce: lee County Propeny Appraiser 

12) source: City of Cape Coral. e>eparunent of Community Ocve60s)ment: Includes new construction. remodels 
and i:>dditroos. 

m Source; F~ I oeposll tnsuranot Corporat'On (FDIC) Web silo, as Of Jvne 30, 2003. 

C•) During flac;al ywr 1997, The Cape Cor.111 D•P3rtntent of Community OevolOpmont tedet.ned the com_pos!llon of 

OO,Ck$ an6 p001s. resulting In tower $131islies lhan In prior year;. 

<'J During f1$c.)1 year 2003 . thefe wa, one signillcan1 project oonsi$1ing or 198 units. 



Commerelal industrtall 
ntt~loua cons.trucUon rn Docks and e2;o1a '11 

Perc«tt Percant 
Numti.t 

of un its 

Increase 
idecn•sel 

Building 
eo<ts 

Number 
of e!;rmlta 

Increase 
(d•creuej 

Building ..... Bank 
deeoslts ~I 

37 2.8 % $ 14,.541,151 14.085 (2.B) % $22.8tt,179 S 3,670,063,000 

206 456.8 % 4,,457,070 14,899 5.8 .. 25, 104,349 3,788,037,000 

130 (36.9) % 17,872,145 1$.28/l 2.6 % 25,093,018 4,935,45$,000 

129 {0.8) % 16,623,528 1, .... (ll0.3) " 
,., 

10,843,912 S,093,131,000 

125 t3.1) % 15,057,214 1,173 19.5 % 
,., 

13,4, 14,661 5,330,656.000 

200 62A % 17,032.639 2 .019 13 .9 % 16,253,296 S,628,,240,000 

197 (3,0) % 22,3 11.532 2,459 21,8 % 20.833, 195 S,703,502,000 

18 1 (18.3) % 15.~8.714 2,442 (0.7) % 23,024, 126 6..321,701,000 

239 ,. 494 

48.4 " 106.7 % 

27,846,691 

22,334,642 

3,409 

3,713 

39.6 " 8 .9 % 

3.S,!573.2!56 

44,28!5, 166 

6.,706, 129.000 

7,356.361,000 
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Chy of Cepe Cota!, FIMda 

MISCEUANEOUS STATISTICS 

seplembe< 30, 2003 

(Unaudited) 

Table 18 

Cate of incorporation 

Form ot govemmenl 

Number of counci scats 

Clialrmanlmayor etection 

Length of term 

Flsca1 year begins 

City employees per 1,000 population (1 ,298 full lime equi'v'a!en1s) 

Location: 
County 
Land area 
Ltllltudo 
Longitude 
Eleva1lon 

Public safaty: 

Fire protecUon: 
NumbM of stations. 
Number of firefighters and officers 

Po!loe p<otection (City of Cape C0tal Police Department Oflly): 
Number of s.1adons 
Number of sworn officers 

Utiti1y &ervlce: 
Mun:icipal Water Department 

MethQd or eoquirw'lg water 
MethOd of trea1lng water 
Number of connections - water 
Number or connections - sewet 
Average daily consumptkln per oonsumor 
Wa!et design capacity 
Waslewaler design capacity 
MHes of watec distribution 

Waler meter Information: 
Number of consumers 
Number of water mete($ In operation 
Number of unmetered water consumers (lri1galion) 
Number of gallons passing through master meter 
Number of gallons of water me1e1ed 
Number of gallons nushed 
Number of gallons unaccounted fOJ 
Percent unaccounted for 

August 18. 1970 

Council • Manager 

Seven 

Mayor is elected at large 

Four years 

October 1st 

10.43 

lee 
114 square mlles 

25 • 38' North 
e 1• 57' West 

10 feet 

7 
134 

1 
156 

Pumping (wells) 
Reverse osmosis 

•0,792 
36,330 

89 gallons 
15.00MGO 
15.10MGO 

628 

47,697 
40,792 
31 ,082 

3,269,625,000 
2,639,196,000 

173,292,000 
408,092,000 

12.62% 
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City OI CIP4 Coral. Florida 

MISCELLANEOUS STATJSTICS (conUnued) 
September 30, 2003 

(Unaudited) 

Table 18 

Public workS/utilitie-s: 
Senit&ry sewers 

Paved streets (lane miles) 
Paved alley$ 
s.dewelk$ 
Stormwater dntinage pipes 
Swales 
Fresh water canals 
Salt water canals 
Catch basins 

Recreation and culture: 
Parks: 

Developed parks: 
Number of p3'ks - city owned 
Number of acres 
Number o( parks - county and state owned (Including sehoof.s) 
Number of acres 

Undeveloped p~: 
Number of parks - city owned 
Number ot acre, 

Other recrea1lon: 
Number of city-owned gort cOVtses (18 hOle) 
Number of acres 
Number of other golf courses {2-18 hole. 1-9 hole) 
Number of acres 
Number of city-owned water park facilities 
Number of acres 
Number of city-owned !heaters 
Number of city-owned senior citizen centers 
Number of city-owned yacht basins 
Number of cfty-owned art studios 
Number of city-owned special poP',Aations facilities 
Numb« of city-owned recrealion centers 
Numbet or city-owned teinnls feeilhl0$ 
Numbet or clty--owned racquetball faclllties 
Nurnbet or ci ty.-owned beKhes 
Number of city-owned bOal launehes. k>Cks, at'ld lifts 

Number of llbraries: 
Number of vol1.#T't8s (videos, audios, and books): 

catalogues 
Periodicalsubscripdons 

141 

C&ay 180 milea 
PVC 330 miles 
Iron 60 miles 

3110 miles 
12 miles 
69m!les 

485 miles 
2,897 miles 

295 miles 
105 miles 

45,781 

25 
348 

14 
1,172 

25 
839.65 

1 
180 

3 
512 

1 
16 

1 
2 
1 
1 
1 
2 
1 
1 
1 
7 

1 

208,771 
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City of Cape COtal, FIOrlda 

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 

September 30. 2003 

(Unaudited) 

Table 18 

E<1uca1!on: 
Public schooJs: 

Elementa,y schools: 
Attendance c:enters 
Number of teache,s 
Number of students 

Middle schools: 
Attendance cootcrs 
Number of teachers 
Number of students 

High sc'1ools: 
Attendance centers 
Number of teachers 
Number of stv(lents 

Voce!ional schOOI: 
Attendance centers 
Number of teachers 
Number of high sehOOI sludents 
Post secondary students 

Ratio of total tcachers:stvclents (exdudes vocational schoof) 

Heallh care; 
Cape CCM"al Hospital; 

Number of beds 
Number of physicians on .staff 
Number of employees 
Private rooms 
Operation status 

Sources: City of Cape COfal, finance Department, Budget Division 
CICy of Cape Coral, F1re Department 
City of Cape Coral, Police Depattment 
City of Cape Coral, Public Works, UUUties Olvlsk>n, Administration 
City of Cape Coro!, Public Works, Ulililies OMs.tOn. Distribution/Collection Section 
City of Cape Corel, Pubf1e Works, Utililles Olvb-lon, Weter Production Section 
City of cape Coral, Public Works. 5er\1Sces Division 
City or Cape Coral, Parks and RecreaUOn Oepanment 
Cape Coral - Lee County Public: Library 
School Oi$1rlct of Lee County 
Cape Coral Hospital 

8 
346 

6,064 

4 
220 

4,275 

2 
201 

4,492 

1 
22 
7S 

20S 

19.3 

281 
146 

1,408 
281 

Public nonp(Ofit 
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City Of Cape C«al, Florida 

EXISTING LAND USE STATISTICS 

September 30, 2003 

(Unoudlted) 

Tablo 19 

Units Percentage 

Total number cf developed lots 11> 102,200 37.81% 
Total numbe, of undeveloped k>ls 168,11 7 62.19% 

Total nutnber or lots 270,317 100.00% 

land usa breakdown: 
Single family homes 
Duplex/triplex 
Multifamily 
Mobile hom es 

Total residential use 

Hotel/motel 
Loc::el OOslrne,, 
General busin&U 
Light industry 

Total business use 

Institutions 
Public utility 
Public parks (excluding state ONR lands) and golf courses 
Private parks and gott course 
Cemetery 
01her (trae1s) 

Total other uses 

Total strucl\/res ca1egorized by use 

ReaidenUal housing 

Number or slog!e•famty homes 
Number or duplex 
Number of mul1ifarnily 
Number or mobile hOmM 

Total residential housing 

Source: Cfry cf Cape Coral, Oepartmenl of Community Ocve&opment. GLM Division 

• Typical lot s~ Is 40' x 125'; minimum of two lo(s requirod for a homesite. 

44,483 16.46% 
1.757 0.65% 

959 0.35% 
80 0.03% 

47,279 17.49% 

16 0.01% 
114 0.04% 

1,805 0.59% 
560 0.21% 

2,297 0 .85% 

142 0 .05% 
25 0 .01% 
19 0 .01% 
7 0.00% 
1 0.00% 

527 0 .19% 

721 0 .26% 

50,297 18.60% 

Number of N umber 
structurH of units 

44,483 44,483 
1,757 3,514 

959 8,358 
80 80 

47,279 56,435 
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City of Cape <»-•I, FIOl'lda 

TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS IN THE crrvt t) 

September 30, 2003 

(Unoudlte<I) 

Table 20 

Number of 
Em,elo:t:er Type of business IMe!O:t:HS 

Lee County Schoof Board Education 1,844 

City or C..pe Coral G0\18mment 1,574 

Cape Coral Hospi'tal Healthcare 1,408 

Putllix Supermarkets Grocer 913 

Wal•Mart Co,poration Retail 600 

Gvlf Coast Village Assisted living 270 

Whitney Education Group Education • Reel Esta:e 248 

Lowe's Home Improvement Cenlor Retal • Home Improvement 240 

The Bleeze Corporallon Publlshef,Newspaper 211 

Wa:lgreen's Retai • Pharmacy 210 

Source: City of Cape Co,al, Eoonomic Devetopment Office, as of December 30, 2003 

<11 The data shows only employees wot'kln,g in the City of Cape Coral end does not include other 
jobs with the same employer located throughout Lee County. 
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City of C3pe C.Oral, Florida 

IMPACT FEE COLLECTIONS 1'> 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Uneudltcd) 

Table 21 

Utlll~feu 
Road Flro Park Water Sewer 

Fiscal 
year 

Impact 
Fees 

Impact 
Fees 

lmp,ac.t 
Fe<ts 

Impact 
FtH 

Im pact 
FN9 

1994 s 1,618,328 s 193,777 $ 490,294 $ 333,879 s 545,957 

1995 929,456 129,518 378,888 562,530 6,214,358 
,,, 

1996 1,348,832 159,388 418 ,123 416,872 2 ,250,743 

1997 1,781,776 192,987 493,171 491,685 2,101 ,251 

1996 2,062,258 247,893 619,187 751,461 2,715,527 

1999 1,763,859 284,312 738,974 733,880 2,643,553 

2000 2,077,305 344,384 957,139 978,393 2,959,295 

2001 2.401,273 330,439 971 ,366 992,669 2,390,929 

2002 4,072,716 706,448 1,562,335 1,589,244 2,685,375 

2003 5,426.170 1,190,923 3,465,016 2,734,427 4,721,612 

Source: City ot Ca;,e Coral, Departmont or Financial Se<Nices 

<11 These are fees charged to new construction for anticipated Improvement costs resulting 
from the Impact that new construction has on va,ious City facilities such as water production, 
sower services, availability of park and fire facilities. and street improvements, 

t21 Orange and green area sewer projects were completed in fiscal year 1995. 
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KPMG LLP 
1.50 EU! Las Ola~ &:)<11~.!rd Telephone 954 524 6000 
Fett Uu08tdtle, FL 33301 FaA 9511 482 <t765 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance and on 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an 

Audit of Flnanelal Statements Performed in Accordance 
With Government Auditing Standards 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the 
City Council 
City or Cape Coral, Florida: 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activttles, eaeh major fund and the aggregate remaining fund infoonatlon o f the City of Cape Coral. 
Florida (the City), as or and 10< the )'<lar ended September 30, 2003, which coUectlvely comprise the 
City's basic: financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 23, 2003. We 
conducted our audit in acoordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applk:able to financial audits contained in Govemment Aud;fing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

COMPLIANCE 

As part o f obtaining reasonabfe assurance aboul whether the Clty's basic financial statements are 
free of material misstatament, w-e perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provisions or laws. 
regulations. contracts. and grants, noncompliance wilh which oou1d have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of nnancial slatement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was nol an objective of our audrt. and acoordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests d fsdosed no instances o f noncompliance that are 
required to be tep,or1ect under Govemment Auditing Standards. 

INTERN.AL CONTROL OVER FINANCtAL REPORTING 

In plaMlng and performing our audlt, we considered the City's internal control over 1inancia1 
rePof1ing in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the basic financiaJ statemenls, and not to provide assurance on lntemal control over financial 
reporting. Our consideration or internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in internal control over financiaJ reporting that might be material weaknesses. A 
material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of OM or more internal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements In amounts that 
would be material in relation to the basic financial statements being audited may occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course o f performing their assigned 
functions. We noted oo matters involving internal control over financial reporting and its operation 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report Is Intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor. City Council and 
management of lhe City of Cape Coral. Florida and federal and state awarding agencies and pass
through awarding entities. and is oot intel'Kled to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specffied parties. 

LL-P 
December 23, 2003 

■■■■=..~~!::;~: .. ~.:,~.-.~:. 
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Kf>MG LLP 
450 Ent Lff Ota, Boulev¥d Telef)IIOne 95-1 S24 eooo 
Fon LtuderdW. f L33301 F&K 95446:zA765 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance 
and Internal Control Over Compliance Applicable to Each Major 

Federal Program and State Project 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City or Cape Coral, Florida: 

COMPLIANCE 

We have audited the compliance ol the City or cape Coral, Florida (the City) with the types of 
compliance requirements described In the U.S. Office of Management and Budget ("OMBj Circular 
A-133 Compliance Suppleme11t and the requirements de$etlbed in the Executive Off,ce of the 
Governor's State Projects Compliance Supplement, that are applicable to each of its major federal 
programs and state projects for the year ended September 30. 2003. The City's major federal 
programs and state p<ojects are identified in the summary of auditors· resulls section of lh8 
accompanying sd"ledute of findings and questioned oosts. Compliance with lhe requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of Its major federal programs and state 
projects is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an oplnJon 
on the City's compliance. based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit or compliance lo accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of Ametica; the standards applicable to nnanc:ial audits contained in Government 
AudiUng Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: 0MB Circular A-133, 
Audirs of States, Local Governments, and Noo-Prof,t Orgsnliations; and Chapter 10.550 Rules of 
tho Auditor General. Those standards, 0 MB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10 .550 Rules of tho 
Auditor General, require thal we plan and perform the audit to obla.rt reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of complianoe requirements referred to above thal eould 
have a dlrect and material effect on a major federal program or state project occurted. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's eompflance with those requirements 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
bolieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis ro, our opinion. Our audit does not provide a 
legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements. 

- ~-, ..... ---.. ._._. ......... .,, 149 1111·... --.. ----··,,. .... ---



.

In our opinOO. the City complied, in all material respects. with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major fede<al programs and state projects for the year ended 
September 30, 2003. 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

The management of the City is responsible for establishnlg and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations. contracts, and grants applicable to 
federal programs and state projects. In planning a.nd perfomiing our audit. we considered the City's 
Internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program and on a major state J)fojeci in order to determine our auditing procedures 
for the purpose o f e:xpressing our opinion on compliance, and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in acoordance with 0MB Circular A·133 and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Auditor 
General. 

Our consideration of the Internal c:onlrol ave< compliance would not necessarily d isclose all matters 
In the rntemaJ control that might be material weaknesses. A matcriaJ weakness is a condition In 
which the design or operation of one or mOfe of the internal control components does not reduce to 
a relatively &ow level the risk Lhat nonoompliance with appUcable requirements or laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program or a major state 
project being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the 
normal course o f performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the intemal 
conlrol over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

SCHEDULE OF ExPENDrFURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS ANO STATE FlNANC!Al. ASSISTANCE 

We have audiled the basic financial statements of the City. as of and for the year ended September 
30. 2003, and have issued our repon thereon dated December 23. 2003. Our audit was performed 
for the purpose or fooning opinions on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The 
acoompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is 
presented for purposes of additionaJ anatysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A· 133, Audits of States. Local Govemments, and Non,,Profit Organizations. and 
Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Auditor General and is not a required par1 o f the basic financial 
statements . Sueh information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applled In the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, In our opinion, is faJrly stated, in all matetia.l respects, In relation 
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use or lhe Mayor, City Covocil and 
management or lhe City and the federal and state awarding agencies a.nd pass•through entitles, 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

December 23, 2003 
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City of Ca.pc Coral. Flor-,da 

SCMEDULE OF EXPENDIT\JRE$ OF FEDERAL AW.ARDS 
AHO STATE FINNiCIAL ASSISTANCE 
For the Year Ended Sc,;,tembef 30, 2003 

Feder11 
CFDA 

num~r 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF tiOUSING ANO 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT: 

C~nlty Pia ming and OeW!lopment 
Communi!y OeveiopmeM BIOck Grants.1E.nlillem9M$ 14,2 18 

U.S. OEPARTIAENT Of JUSTICE: 
OffiQt ol Jus6ce Progaum (OJP): 

P8s,e<J. Throllgh Sl8te of Florida, Dopurlmattt d 
L.89<11' Affw; ;md LH C<,cmry, F10rlda: 

Crime V.etlm Asai$Wlot: 16.575 
VIC.fifl'/$ of Crimo At;t (V.O.CA.) 

Office Of Jus1iee Program$ (OJP): 
Passed-Through Stilfti of Florid&, Dep.wtmMt oJ 
C,ommunify Al1iHr$ and Lee Counr,,, Ftorida: 

Byme Formu18 Orsnc: 16.579 
Com'::>in~ ll:tw Enfo~nt AQ~l Narootic:s 

{C.LE.A.N.) 
Drug EnforoemenlAdmin1$tf3!ion {DEA) 

Office of Jt.rS!ioe Programs ~OJP); 
Local Law Enfo~m(fflt BloC:k Gtam9." 16.592 

B\l~u of Juslioe AUils:18008 VI 
Bun!&>J ot Justice As$-$1anc;;e VII 

Office of Community O..ierted P011clnr.i Service;:: 
Public S-"lely Paf1r-ershlp tlf'ld Comrr.unity 
PoUdng Grams: 16.7 10 

Copa t.ffliV1.1rs;I! Ill Grants 
CQs;,11 In Sd\oots II Program 

Office of .AJ"-n~ JilSliat and Delinquency Prevention 
(OJ,EP): 

.AJvenilc 11\enlOflng Program: 16.7~ 
Cops l,be 2002 Gr.ml 

F.ctera-1 or 
pan through 
gnntnumbl, 

803MC120027 
802MC120027 
BOt MC120027 
899MC1200'27 
898MCt2~7 

v,200 

0 1-CJ.J1-09-46-01· 150 
NIA 

2001-llHIX-184• 
2<102-t.B.aX,0373 

95-CC-WX-0298 
2000-SH+WX-~2 

200Z~M-WX-0188 

• 253,577 
279,139 

4,254 
4"0 
IS?& 

,., ... 

R02S 
9.80l 

21,826 

39,262 
A9,254 
88,506 

14,350 
226,833 
241183 

350..391 
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City of Capet Coral. Flotlda 

SCHEOUlE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
ANO STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (contlnUitd) 

For lho Yc;,r Endod September 30, 2003 

...... , F•d• rJI or 
CFOA pus ttlcough 

number grant numb., 

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY: 
Office ot W;iste-,t,.it.cr Man.igement: 

PaSHd• nwoug,11 State of FJolf(Ja, DetJflltmlNlt ol 
Envif'onmonllll Protor:tlon 

CapJtM/utJofl aranr, kx State RevoM119 Funds 
Pina l5lancl CS12067516P 

WWG12067516l0 1 
CS1208751&P 

VIWG12067.516t. 0'2 
SOUthwestAtea II CS12067516P 
Sooth.¥t'9&t ma m CS120675HIP 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TM A NO 
HUMAN SERVICES: 

Admili$1ratlon fot Childicn ;ind Fatnif1CS: 
Passed• nwugn State of Florlda, OeptHtmeftt of 
~ ~nd F/tll1.Wc$: 

SOdal SMiees B6oe1( Granc 93.681 
Special Populallons NIA 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL. AWARDS 

ExJ?!ndlturu 

$ 227,093 
S,757.6$7 

•37,44£ 
20,•$3.699 

•90.321 
502,753 

27,8511.997 

87,2 14 

$ 29,223,238 
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$CHEOULI. Of, EXP£HOITU'tE$ OF FEDERAL A.WARDS 
AHO STA.11! RNANClALA.SSISTAN~ (COl"llln..,•O) 

fo, ... YotEnclllCI Slp!om'oer 30, 2003 

..... cs,. Staie COl'ltt•cV 
~•to •qiancyJprogram dtl• 

ST.-.T'E OF fl,,QRIOA, DEPARTMEm' Of 
£NviROt,IM.EHTAL PROTECTION: 

f lOl'iclll Rfl~allan 0e'll!i:opme(II A.Nie!&~ Pn,;rarn (FROAP): 

J¥eo P11it: 
Sf:)011 c«nplo 

Water Re50ilrot M;ina;eir..ent 
Gillor $1ougll Projecl·Plla'Se IV 

STATE~ FLORll)A., DEPARTMENT Of 
EOUCAllON: 

P;i,sed-T~ l.ef C()(Xlty ScflOOI Boel'ti', 
SCIIOCII a/Id IMtriltlional E-nhano.men! Pf'OljrDm$,. 

Drvo Abilt& RHi.111ra i;d\/UIS:wl (O.AR.f,J 

$TATE OF FlORJOA, OEPARTMEN"I' OF 

COMMUNITY AFFAIRS: 
EfMIP(IRC)' l<bn:ts:,e,nletl! ~ms: 

Oecont81'1inat1Qn Eq11lpmenl 

STATE OF FLORIDA. Fl..O~OA HOUSING FINANCE 

CORPORATION: 
SID Ho11titlO "'11~1,._..s Partnership ~m ($.H.LP .) 

$ TAT£ Oil" FLORIDA, OEPARlMENT Of CHILOREN 

ANO f AMII.IE$: 
Community Deve10pmen1 Sotvlces: 

SOtOllll Pcpw.tlons 

STATE OF Fl.ORlOA. OEPAAT116NT OF 

JUY£N!LE JUSOCE:. 
OOnb"ielecl Sorvlr.es.-J11v&l"l1t Ptog!llffls: 

Youltl O:imt 1ntetvtnilon Pl'og,em 
TOTAL EXP£NOfTURESOF $1'ATE FINANCIAi. ASSISTANCE 

TO TAL EXPENDITURES OF FEOERAL A.W/4RIJS ANO 
STATE FINANCIAL ASSIST AMC£ 

9nnt numboN' ~"""' 

31.017 
FO 1l26 
F02163 

31.039 
wAPrm 

48,040 
NIA 

62.008 
OJOG-04,~&-02-098 

$2.901 l'l'A 

NIA '°·'°' 

ao.002 
U\005 

Tnnst«s to 
bpenliturn Subr-.elplenb 

, .... • ,'3Jl64 
'6,644 

185,0!!3 

,,._ 

50,000 

1,190,366 • 1.Hii .7" 

n..,, 

, n1 "·"' aso 1,109. m 

J, 30.95l.068 • 1,169.799 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

September 30, 2003 

NOTE 1. PURPOSE OF THE SCHEDULE 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance (the Schedule) is a 
supplementary schedule to the City’s basic financial statements and is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis. The Schedule is required by Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of State 
and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and by Chapter 3A-5, Rules of the Florida Department of 
Banking and Finance, Florida Administrative Code, Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance. 

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Basis of Presentation  

Federal Financial Assistance – Pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984 (Public Law 98-502), the Single Audit Act 
Amendments of 1996 (Public Law 104-156), and OMB Circular A-133, federal financial assistance is defined as 
assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, that nonfederal entities receive or administer, 
in the form of grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property interest subsidies, 
insurance, or direct appropriations. 

State Financial Assistance – Pursuant to Florida Single Audit Act (Section 215.97, Florida Statutes) and Chapter 
27D-1, Rules of the Executive Office of the Governor, Florida Administrative Code, state financial assistance is 
defined as assistance from state resources, not including federal financial assistance and state matching, 
provided to nonstate entities to carry out a state project. State Financial Assistance includes all types of state 
assistance as stated in the rules of the Executive Office of the Governor, established in consultation with the 
Comptroller and appropriate state agencies that provide state financial assistance. It includes state financial 
assistance provided directly by state awarding agencies or indirectly by recipients of state awards or 
subrecipients. It does not include procurement contracts used to buy goods or services from vendors.  

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance – OMB Circular A-133 requires the Schedule to present the total 
expenditures for each of the City’s federal financial assistance programs as identified in the Catalog of Federal 
Domestic Assistance (CFDA). The CFDA is a government-wide compendium of individual federal programs. 
Federal financial assistance programs that have not been assigned a CFDA number are indicated with an “N/A.” 

Catalog of State Financial Assistance – Chapter 3A-5, Rules of the Florida Department of Banking and Finance, 
Florida Administrative Code requires the Schedule to present the total state financial assistance expended for 
each individual state project as identified in the Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA). The CSFA is a 
comprehensive listing of state projects. State financial assistance projects that have not been assigned a CSFA 
number are indicated with an “N/A.” 
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B.  Type A and Type B Programs  

The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133 establish the levels of expenditures to be 
used in defining Type A and Type B federal financial assistance programs. Type A assistance programs for the 
City of Cape Coral are those programs that exceeded $300,000 for the year ended September 30, 2003. 

Each nonstate entity that expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess of $300,000 in 
any fiscal year is required to have a state single audit for such fiscal year in accordance with the requirements of 
the Florida Single Audit Act (Section 215.97, Florida Statutes). 

C. Reporting Entity 

The Schedule includes all federal financial assistance programs and state projects administered by the City of 
Cape Coral and included in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

D. Basis of Accounting 

Expenditures included in the Schedule are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting for 
governmental funds and the accrual basis of accounting for enterprise funds as defined in Note I to the basic 
financial statements. 

NOTE 3. SUBRECIPIENTS 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the City of Cape Coral provided federal awards to 
subrecipients as follows: 

Federal CFDA Amount Provided 
Program title Number to Subrecipients 

Community Development Block Grant – 
Entitlement Grants 14.218 $423,987 

Of the state expenditures presented in the Schedule, the City of Cape Coral provided state financial assistance to 
subrecipients as follows: 

State CSFA Amount Provided 
Program title Number to Subrecipients 

State Housing Initiatives 
Partnership Program (S.H.I.P)  52.901 $1,169,798 
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NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Federal financial assistance expenditures are included in the City’s basic financial statements as follows: 

Expenditures 
General Fund $ 816,116 
Special Revenue Fund: 

Community Development Block Grant 538,125 
Enterprise Fund: 

Water and Sewer 27,868,997 
$ 29,223,238 

EPA grant funding is included as a liability in the proprietary funds. 

State financial assistance expenditures are included in the City’s basic financial statements as follows: 

Expenditures 
General Fund $ 537,484 
Special Revenue Fund: 

Local Housing Assistance Fund  - State Housing
 Initiatives Partnership Program (S.H.I.P) 1,190,366 

$ 1,727,850 
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City of Cape Coral, Florida 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued) 

September 30, 2003 

(1) Summary of Auditors’ Results: 

(a) An unqualified opinion was issued on the basic financial 
statements:     Yes 

(b) Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the 
audit of the basic financial statements:     No 

Material Weaknesses:     No 

(c) Noncompliance which is material to the basic financial 
statements:     No 

(d) Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs:     No 

Material weaknesses:     No 

(e) The type of report issued on compliance for major programs:     Unqualified 
opinion 

(f) Any audit findings which are required to be reported under 
Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the Auditor General:     No 

(g) The programs/projects tested as major included the following: 

Name of Federal Program CFDA # 
U.S. Department of Environmental Protection: 

Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.458 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development: 
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlements 14.218 

U.S. Department of Justice: 
Cops More 2002 Grants 16.726 

Name of State Project CSFA # 
State Housing Initiatives Partnership Program 52.901 
Gator Slough Project-Phase IV 37.039 

(h) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type $300,000 
B programs: Federal & State 

(i) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 of 
OMB Circular A-133:     Yes 

(2) Findings Relating to the Basic Financial Statements Reported 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards:     None 

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance:     Yes 
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Cily of Cape COl'al, FlOtida 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS ANO QUESTIONED COSTS (continued) 

Septembet 30. 2003 

State Project Finding and QuostJoned Costs 

Item 03-2001 Criteria 
52.901 

The FJodda Local Housing Finance Corporation State Housing 
Initiatives requires that the maximum assistance for 
Partne,shlp homeowner'Ship assistance strategy be limlted 10 

$30,000 per unit. Program 

Condition 

For one (1) of the thiny (30) files tested, we noted 
that an award or $42,029 was made for a.n lndividual 
unit. 

Perspective 

Th.is condition Is considered to be isolated in nature. 

Effect 

Failu(e to comply with the requirements applicable to 
assistance provided under the residential housing 
rehabilitation program could result in future funding 
under the SHIP program being denied. 

Questioned Costs 

$12,029 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the City develop policies and 
procedures to prevent awards exceeding the 
maximum requirement for the homeownership 
assis1ance program, 
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